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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Tuesday, September 22, 2015 
7:00 PM 

A. CALL TO ORDER at _________ P.M. 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

C. ROLL CALL:  Kay Arnold _____, Nancy Conzelman _____, Chuck Curmi _____, 
   Bob Doroshewitz _____, Ron Edwards _____, Mike Kelly ____, 
 Shannon Price _____ 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Regular Meeting - Tuesday, September 22, 2015 

E. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

E.1 Approval of Minutes: 

September 8, 2015 

E.2  Acceptance of Utility Easements: 

E.3  Acceptance of Communications, Resolutions, Reports: 

Fire Report - August 2015 

E.4      Approval of Township Bills: 

Year 2015 
General Fund (101) $1,114,127.84 
Solid Waste Fund (226) 9,794.14 
Improvement Revolving Fund (Capital Projects) (246) -0- 
Drug Forfeiture Fund (265) 1,048.21 
Golf Course Fund (510) 2,114.01 
Water and Sewer Fund (592) 498,078.27 
Trust and Agency Fund (701) 2,787.68 
Police Bond Fund (702) -0- 
Tax Fund (703) 155,651.08 
Special Assessment Fund (805) 6,974.96 
Total: $1,790,576.19 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Tuesday, September 22, 2015 
7:00 PM 

H. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

1) Request for Board Action - Text Amendment 012 to Zoning Ordinance 99
2) Request for Board Action - Extension of PUD Option for Pomeroy

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

J. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Request for Board Action - 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
2) Request for Board Action - 2015 Tax Rate Request

K. SUPERVISOR AND TRUSTEE COMMENTS 

L. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

M. CLOSED SESSION: 

At ________ p.m., ________________ moved that a closed session be called for the 
permissible purposes of discussing attorney opinion under OMA Section 8(h).  
Seconded by ________________.  

N. ADJOURNMENT 

Invoice Edit Listings 

PLEASE TAKE NOTE:  The Charter Township of Plymouth will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers 
for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at all Township Meetings, to individuals with disabilities at 
the Meetings/Hearings upon two weeks notice to the Charter Township of Plymouth by writing or calling the following: Human Resource 
Office, 9955 N Haggerty Road, Plymouth, MI  48170. Phone number (734) 354-3202 TDD units: 1-800-649-3777 (Michigan Relay 
Services) 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 

MINUTES 

Supervisor Price called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Shannon Price, Supervisor 
Nancy Conzelman, Clerk 
Ron Edwards, Treasurer 
Charles Curmi, Trustee 
Robert Doroshewitz, Trustee 
Michael Kelly, Trustee 

ABSENT:   Kay Arnold, Trustee, Excused 

OTHERS PRESENT: Patrick Fellrath, Director of Public Utilities 
Mark Lewis, Chief Building Official 
Mike Mitchell, Director of Parks and Grants 
Dan Phillips, Fire Chief 
Thomas Tiderington, Police Chief 
Kevin Bennett, Township Attorney 
David Richmond, Spalding DeDecker Assoc. 
Alice Geletzke, Recording Secretary 
33 Members of the Public 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Regular Meeting - Tuesday, September 08, 2015 

Moved by Ms. Conzelman and supported by Mr. Edwards to approve the agenda for the Board of 
Trustees regular meeting of September 8, 2015.  Ayes all. 

E. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

E.1  Approval of Minutes: 
BOT Minutes - 08-18-2015 Proposed 

E.2  Acceptance of Utility Easements: 

E.3  Acceptance of Communications, Resolutions, Reports: 
Building Department Monthly Report - August 2015 
FOIA Monthly Report - August 2015  

E.4      Approval of Township Bills: 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 

MINUTES 

Year 2015 
General Fund (101) $    235,137.20 
Solid Waste Fund (226)  102,411.38 
Improvement Revolving Fund (Capital Projects) (246)    86,556.04 
Drug Forfeiture Fund (265)  1,308.04 
Golf Course Fund (510)   3,756.56 
Water and Sewer Fund (592)    405,157.49 
Trust and Agency Fund (701)     -0- 
Police Bond Fund (702)   9,935.00 
Tax Fund (703)  -0- 
Special Assessment Fund (805)  12,016.36 
Total: $     846,278.07 

Moved by Ms. Conzelman and seconded by Mr. Edwards to approve the consent agenda, 
subject to review of the bills by Mr. Doroshewitz.  Ayes all. 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Mr. Donald Soenen asked that the survey include a question about whether it’s important to 
residents that facilities be physically located within the township; Mr. Chris Hunter asked for 
clarification on the timing of the park proposals, the makeup of the review committee, and offered 
to provide input or serve on a committee of residents; Mr. Ed Haggerty asked for information on the 
recent movie night, audit completion, accounting on the fireworks and private party, legal 
representation costs and settlement costs for current and past fiscal years, and  questioned the 
omission of provisions in the ethics ordinance for soliciting donations and accepting gifts; Mr. 
Steven Birmingham asked that notice of the September 22 meeting be sent via e-news to residents; 
and Mr. Ken Garner questioned his name appearing on two police reports for appearances in the 
park with his camera. 

G. PUBLIC HEARING  

H. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

1) Request for Board Action - Community Park, Recreation, Open Space, and
Greenway Plan

Board members reviewed the bids received with Mr. Mitchell and discussed the timing of the survey 
and the plan, makeup of the review committee, and whether or not the plan could be completed in-
house. 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 

MINUTES 

It was moved by Mr. Doroshewitz and supported by Mr. Curmi to postpone awarding the contract 
for the Community Park, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenway Plan until the next meeting. 

AYES: Doroshewitz, Curmi, Kelly 
NAYS:  Conzelman, Edwards, Price 

Motion failed because of a tie vote. 

Moved by Ms. Conzelman and seconded by Mr. Edwards to approve to award the contract for the 
Community Park, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenway Plan to MC Smith Associates.  

AYES: Conzelman, Edwards, Price 
NAYS:  Doroshewitz, Curmi, Kelly 

Motion failed because of a tie vote. 

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1) Request for Board Action - Ethics Ordinance - 2nd Reading

After discussion, it was moved by Ms. Conzelman and seconded by Mr. Kelly to approve the second 
reading of Ethics Ordinance, Amendment 15 to Ordinance 1016.    Ayes all on a roll call vote. 

A copy of the Ordinance is on file in the Clerk’s office for public perusal. 

J. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Request for Board Action - Malicious Communications Ordinance – First Reading

A revised copy of the Ordinance was distributed and Mr. Price showed a short film on the tragic 
results of bullying in schools and on social media.  Police Chief Tiderington and Attorney Bennett 
expressed their views on the importance of having a local ordinance.  Mr. Price invited members of 
the public who wished to speak on the proposed ordinance to do so at this time. 

Jerry Vorva, Ed Haggerty, Chris Hunter, Sandra Groth, Steven Birmingham, Bill Carter, Ken 
Garner, Don Schnettler, Estelle Oliansky, and Duane Zantop expressed their concerns regarding the 
proposed ordinance.  Among subjects brought forward were requests for additional time to study the 
revisions, concerns regarding constitutionality, feelings of being harassed in the Township 
workplace, need for clearly defining the intent of the ordinance, and whether the ordinance will 
quash public dissent.  Roy Banks thanked Mr. Price for holding open office hours and for his 
meetings on Tonquish Creek. 

Moved by Mr. Curmi and seconded by Mr. Doroshewitz to postpone the first reading of Malicious 
Communications Ordinance, Amendment 16 to Ordinance 1016.   
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 

MINUTES 

AYES: Curmi, Doroshewitz, Kelly 
NAYS:  Conzelman, Edwards, Price 

Motion failed because of a tie vote. 

Moved by Mr. Edwards and seconded by Ms. Conzelman to approve the first reading of Malicious 
Communications Ordinance, Amendment 16 to Ordinance 1016. 

AYES: Edwards, Conzelman, Price 
NAYS:  Curmi, Doroshewitz, Kelly 

Motion failed because of a tie vote. 

2) Request for Board Action - Qualified Consultants for Engineering Services

Mr. Fellrath reviewed the proposals received and the recommendations for engineering services. 

Following is the list of recommended qualified consultants for as-needed engineering services: 

Hubbell, Roth and Clark 
OHM  Advisors 
Spalding DeDecker 
Wade Trim 

Moved by Mr. Edwards and seconded by Mr. Kelly to approve the attached list of qualified 
engineering consultants to perform as-needed engineering services for the Division of Public 
Services; Park; and Building and Community Development Departments.  Ayes all.  

K. SUPERVISOR AND TRUSTEE COMMENTS 

Mr. Curmi asked for updates on the sidewalk gap plan, road crack sealing, and audit completion. 

L. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mr. Ed Haggerty noted that none of his questions had been addressed.  Mr. Duane Zantop and Mr. 
Don Schnettler expressed further concerns about the ethics ordinance, and Ms. Doreen Sharp, an 
employee at Discovery Middle School, commented that bullying is being handled well in at least 
two PCCS schools, and wondered why the board seems always to be in a rush to move on agenda 
items. 

M.   ADJOURNMENT 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 

MINUTES 

Moved by Mr. Edwards and seconded by Ms. Conzelman to adjourn the meeting at 10:05 p.m.  
Ayes all. 

______________________________ ________________________________   
Nancy C. Conzelman, Township Clerk Shannon G. Price, Township Supervisor 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2015 

ITEM: Zoning Ordinance No. 99 Text Amendment 012 

PRESENTER: Jana Radtke, Community Development Dir. / Planner 

OTHER INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  None anticipated. 

BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission recently took action upon a Special Land Use 
request for a business which offers an instructional type of therapy for special needs children. 
In this particular case, the Planning Commission determined that the use was appropriate for 
the proposed location in the Industrial District, but was not clearly addressed by the Zoning 
Ordinance. The purpose of Text Amendment 012 is to clarify that physical, occupational, 
speech, or similar outpatient therapy services may be permitted in the Industrial District, 
subject to Special Land Use Approval.   

PUBLIC HEARING HELD: On September 16, 2015, the Planning Commission held a public 
hearing for the proposed text amendment and recommended approval to the Board of Trustees.  

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approve Text Amendment 012 of Township Zoning Ordinance No. 
99 in accordance with proposed. 

BUDGET/ACCOUNT NUMBER:  N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the proposed Text Amendment 012, as recommended by 
the Planning Commission. 

MODEL RESOLUTION:  I move to approve Text Amendment 012 of Township Zoning 
Ordinance No. 99. 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Ordinance; Proposed Notice of Adoption; other supporting 
material. 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 

ORDINANCE NO. 99.020 
TEXT AMENDMENT 012 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 

ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 99 BY ADDING SECTION 19.2.14, PHYSICAL, OCCUPATIONAL, 

SPEECH, OR SIMILAR OUTPATIENT THERAPY SERVICES, TO ARTICLE XIX, IND 

INDUSTIRAL DISTRICT. 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH ORDAINS: 

Part I. The Charter Township of Plymouth Zoning Ordinance No. 99 is hereby amended as follows: 

ARTICLE XIX, IND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

A. Section 19.2 Special Land Uses.  Add Paragraph 14, Physical, Occupational, Speech, or 

Similar Outpatient Therapy Services. 

14. Physical, occupational, speech, or similar outpatient therapy services where such

services operate based upon appointments and not on a walk-in basis, provided

that the Planning Commission finds that the nature, function, and proposed

location of the use ensures that it will not conflict with permitted industrial uses.

B. Renumber existing Section 19.2 Special Land Uses, paragraph 14, to be Section 19.2 Special 

Land Uses, paragraph 15. 

Part II. VIOLATION AND PENALTY. Unless otherwise provided, any person, corporation, 

partnership or any other legal entity who violates the provisions of this Ordinance shall be 

guilty of a misdemeanor and may be fined not more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or 

imprisoned for not more than ninety (90) days, or both, at the discretion of the Court.  

Part III. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance 

is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portions shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion thereof.  

Part IV. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance 

full force and effect. 

Part V. SAVINGS CLAUSE.  The repeal or amendment provided for herein shall not abrogate or 

affect any offense or act committed or done, or any penalty or forfeiture incurred, or any 

pending litigation or prosecution of any right established, or occurring prior to the 

effective date of this Ordinance as amended.  
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Part VI. PUBLICATION. The Clerk of the Charter Township of Plymouth shall cause a Notice of 

Adoption of this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law. 

Part VII. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The provisions of this ordinance shall become effective seven days 

after publication. 

Part VIII. ADOPTION.  This Ordinance was adopted by the Charter Township of Plymouth Board of 

Trustees by authority of Act 110 of Public Acts of Michigan, 2006, as amended, at a meeting 

duly called and held on ___________, and ordered to be given publication in the manner 

prescribed by law.  This Ordinance may be purchased or inspected at the Plymouth Township 

Hall, Community Development Department, during regular business hours. 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees on: ___________ 

       Effective Date: ___________ 

Publish: ___________ 
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 

PLANNING COMMISSION

PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT 010 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH ZONING 

ORDINANCE NO. 99 BY ADDING SECTION 19.2.14, PHYSICAL, OCCUPATIONAL, SPEECH, OR 

SIMILAR OUTPATIENT THERAPY SERVICES, TO ARTICLE XIX, IND INDUSTIRAL DISTRICT. 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH ORDAINS: 

Part I. The Charter Township of Plymouth Zoning Ordinance No. 99 is hereby amended as follows: 

ARTICLE XIX, IND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

A. Section 19.2 Special Land Uses.  Add Paragraph 14, Physical, Occupational, Speech, or Similar 

Outpatient Therapy Services. 

14. Physical, occupational, speech, or similar outpatient therapy services where such

services operate based upon appointments and not on a walk-in basis, provided that the

Planning Commission finds that the nature, function, and proposed location of the use

ensures that it will not conflict with permitted industrial uses.

B. Renumber existing Section 19.2 Special Land Uses, paragraph 14, to be Section 19.2 Special Land 

Uses, paragraph 15. 

Part II. VIOLATION AND PENALTY. Unless otherwise provided, any person, corporation, partnership or 

any other legal entity who violates the provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and may be fined not more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or imprisoned for 

not more than ninety (90) days, or both, at the discretion of the Court.  

Part III. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for 

any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

portions shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portion thereof.  

Part IV. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full 

force and effect. 

Part V. SAVINGS CLAUSE.  The repeal or amendment provided for herein shall not abrogate or affect 

any offense or act committed or done, or any penalty or forfeiture incurred, or any pending 

litigation or prosecution of any right established, or occurring prior to the effective date of this 

Ordinance as amended.  

Part VI. PUBLICATION. The Clerk of the Charter Township of Plymouth shall cause a Notice of Adoption 

of this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law. 

Part VII. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The provisions of this ordinance shall become effective seven days after 

publication. 

PROPOSED 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 

ORDINANCE NO. 99.______ 

TEXT AMENDMENT 012 
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Part VIII. ADOPTION.  This Ordinance was adopted by the Charter Township of Plymouth Board of 

Trustees by authority of Act 110 of Public Acts of Michigan, 2006, as amended, at a meeting duly 

called and held on ___________, and ordered to be given publication in the manner prescribed by 

law.  This Ordinance may be purchased or inspected at the Plymouth Township Hall, Community 

Development Department, during regular business hours. 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees on: ___________ 

Effective Date: ___________ 

Publish: ___________ 
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M<;I<..trnn~ COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DESIGN 

Memorandum 

To: Charter Township of Plymouth Planning Commission 

From: Sara J. Hodges, AICP, Senior Vice President 

Date: July 23, 2015 

Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendment, Art. 19: IND, Sec. 19.2 Special Land Uses 

Attached to this memo, for your consideration, is a proposed revision to the text of Section 19.2 
of the Township's Zoning Ordinance, which adds a new Paragraph 14, and renumbers the 
former Paragraph 14 as Paragraph 15, in order to provide for certain therapy services in the IND 
District. This is as discussed by the Commission in connection with the recent Building Bridges 
Special Land Use application. The language proposed to be added is as follows: 

14. Physical, occupational, speech, or similar outpatient therapy services 
where such services operate based upon scheduled appointments and not 
on a walk-in basis, provided that the Planning Commission finds that 
nature, function, and proposed location of the use ensures it will not 
conflict with permitted industrial uses. 

The entire IND article, as proposed to be amended, is attached for context. 

As several Commissioners mentioned, one of the considerations in evaluating the 
appropriateness of therapy services for the IND District is the potential for conflicts between 
patients, passenger vehicles and industrial truck traffic. Like gymnastics centers, therapy 
facilities can often benefit from the high ceiling, open spaces within industrial-scale buildings, 
not every such setting will be appropriate. By limiting these uses to only those seeing 
scheduled appointments, traffic should be kept to a minimum. With the extra scrutiny afforded 
by special land use approval, the Commission will retain the ability to evaluate whether or not a 
given proposal is appropriate for its specific setting in the IND zone. 

We look forward to reviewing this item with you. 

WWW.MCKA.COM 
888.226.4326 

HEADQUARTERS 235 East Main Street, Suite 105 . Northville, Ml 48167 T : 248.596.0920 F: 248.596.0930 
WEST MICHIGA N 151 South Rose Street, Suite 920. Kalamazoo, Ml 49007 T : 269.382.4443 F: 248.596.0930 



Charter Township of Plymouth Zoning Ordinance No. 99          Page 190 
Article 19: IND Industrial District 

Amendments: 

 

ARTICLE XIX 

IND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

PURPOSE  

To provide districts for industrial or scientific research, wholesale and service uses and for the 

manufacturing, compounding, processing, assembling and/or treatment of finished or semi-

finished products from previously prepared materials.  It is the intent of this Article that 

industrial districts be located in areas located adjacent to, and served by, major thoroughfares 

and/or railroad tracks.  The regulations of this district are intended to protect nearby districts 

from hazards, noise and other radiated disturbances.  

SEC. 19.1 PRINCIPAL PERMITTED USES  

No building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for one or more of the 

following specified uses, unless otherwise provided in this Ordinance.  

1. Wholesale and warehousing businesses, storage buildings, resale shops, commercial 

laundries, cleaning establishments and frozen food lockers.  

2. The manufacture, assembly, compounding, processing, packaging, treatment or testing of 

products; such as bakery goods, candy, soap (cold mix only), cosmetics, pharmaceutical, 

toiletries, dairy and food products, hardware and cutlery.  The manufacturing, processing 

and assembling from basic raw materials shall be prohibited.  

3. Tool, die, gauge and machine shops.  

4. The manufacture, assembly, compounding, processing, packaging, treatment or testing of 

articles of merchandise from the following previously prepared materials which have 

been manufactured elsewhere: bone, cellophane, canvas, cloth, cork, feathers, felt, fiber, 

fur, glass, hair, horn, leather, paper, plastic, precious or semi-precious metals, or stones, 

sheet metal (excluding large stampings such as automobile body panels), ferrous and 

non-ferrous metals (excluding large castings and fabrications), shell, textiles, tobacco, 

wax, wire, yarn, wood (excluding saw and planing mills) and paint (not employing 

boiling process).  

5. Research, testing, laboratory and office uses related to permitted industrial operations.  

6. The manufacture of pottery and figurines or other similar ceramic products using only 

previously pulverized clay and kilns fired only by electricity or gas.  

7. Manufacture of musical instruments, toys, novelties and metal or rubber or other small 

molded rubber products (not including pneumatic tires).  

                                                

 PURPOSE    

 SEC. 19.1  PRINCIPAL PERMITTED USES  
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Charter Township of Plymouth Zoning Ordinance No. 99          Page 191 
Article 19: IND Industrial District 

Amendments: 

 

8. Manufacture or assembly of electrical appliances, electronic instruments and devices, 

radios and phonographs.  

9. Laboratories--experimental, film or testing.  

10. Public utility transformer stations, substations and gas regulator stations without service 

or storage yards shall comply with the requirements of Section 26.12, Areas Requiring 

Screening and/or Buffering, and shall provide a front yard setback of not less than fifty 

(50) feet, irrespective of the yard requirements of the district in which it is located, and 

two (2) side yards and a rear yard setback of not less than twenty-five  (25) feet in width 

each.  

11. Research and industrial parks, subject to the following:  

(a) The research and industrial park shall be platted as an industrial subdivision, or as 

a condominium or “site condominium” subdivision.  

(b)  The requirements of Article 20, Schedule of Regulations, for IND Industrial 

Districts shall be modified as follows: 

(c) Height Exceptions.  The height of a building may be increased one (1) foot for 

each one (1) foot by which its setback is in excess of the required yard setbacks, 

up to a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet.   

(d) Landscaping.  All setback areas shall be landscaped with lawns, trees, shrubs 

and/or other plantings, and may include reflecting pools, retaining walls and other 

landscape construction harmonious with the overall landscape scheme.  

(e) Parking and Loading.  Parking and loading areas may be located in side and rear 
setback areas, but shall be prohibited within the front yard setback.  Parking and 
loading areas shall be screened in compliance with Article 26 of this Ordinance.  

                                                

 SEC. 19.1  PRINCIPAL PERMITTED USES  

 AREA, LOT AND YARD REQUIREMENTS FOR INDUSTRIAL PARKS 

Minimum Lot Area  20,000 sq.ft. 

Minimum Lot Frontage  100 ft. 

Minimum Front Yard Depth  40 ft. 

Minimum Side Yard Width, Each Side  25 ft. 

Minimum Side Yard Adjacent to Residential  50 ft. 

Minimum Side Yard Adjacent to a Street  40 ft. 

Minimum Rear Yard  40 ft. 

Minimum Rear Yard Adjacent Residential  50 ft. 

Maximum Height  35 ft. 

Maximum Percent Lot Coverage  50% 

16



Charter Township of Plymouth Zoning Ordinance No. 99          Page 192 
Article 19: IND Industrial District 

Amendments: 

 

 Parking provided in a side yard setback adjacent to a street shall be provided with 
a ten (10) foot landscaped greenbelt, adjacent to that street.  On a corner lot, one 
of the front yards may be designated a side yard.  Parking and loading areas shall 
be screened in compliance with Article 26 of this Ordinance. 

12. Accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to the above permitted uses, 
excluding outdoor storage.  

SEC. 19.2 SPECIAL LAND USES  

The following uses shall be considered special land uses in this district and shall be permitted 
only after review and approval by the Planning Commission in accordance with the procedure 
and standards as found in Section 2.7 of this Ordinance and further subject to the requirements 
listed below:  

1. Wireless communication facilities as provided for in Section 28.11. 

2. Child care centers, subject to the standards of Section 28.64. 

3. Indoor and outdoor recreational and sports facilities, recreation centers and sports plazas 
including but not limited to, bowling alleys; pool and billiard halls; roller skating, hockey 
and ice skating rinks; squash, handball, paddleball, racquetball, tennis and basketball 
courts; indoor golf and skiing; and subject to the following; 

(a) Accessory recreational and sport equipment sales, rentals and services, restaurants 
and snack bars, and health clubs and spas, shall be permitted as accessory uses, 
provided that such accessory uses are necessary, ancillary and an integral part of 
the principal use.  

(b) Such uses shall abut a major thoroughfare.  

(c) Outdoor golf, outdoor golf driving ranges and outdoor skiing are prohibited. 

(d) Outdoor recreational, training and sports facilities shall be screened from adjacent 
properties and street rights-of-way in accordance with Section 26.11, Methods of 
Screening. 

4. Railroad running and lead tracks, but not including a classification or transfer yard. 

5. Commercial television, radio and microwave transmission towers, and public utility 
television transmitting towers and their attendant facilities, provided that the distance 
from the base of the tower to all property lines shall be not less than one and one-half 
(1½) times the tower height. 

6. Metal plating, buffing and polishing, subject to appropriate measures to prevent noxious 

or nuisance conditions. 

                                                

 SEC. 19.2  SPECIAL LAND USES 
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Charter Township of Plymouth Zoning Ordinance No. 99          Page 193 
Article 19: IND Industrial District 

Amendments: 

 

7. Outdoor storage of materials, not including salvage yards and storage of automobiles, 

subject to the following:  

(a) Outdoor storage of used rags, waste paper or other combustible materials shall be 

prohibited.  Storage of such materials shall be limited to an enclosed masonry 

building of four (4) hour fire construction located a minimum of one hundred 

(100) feet from all property lines.  

(b) Outdoor storage shall be located within an area enclosed within an six (6) to eight 

(8) foot high obscuring wall or berm set back a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet 

from the street setback line.  The wall or berm may be located on the property line 

where the side and/or rear yard does not abut a street.  In all of the 

aforementioned cases, the combined use of a wall and a berm shall be permitted.  

When the area abuts a street, an eight (8) foot wide planting strip shall be 

provided located on the street side of the wall or berm.  The planting strip shall 

consist of a minimum of one (1) deciduous shade tree for every forty (40) lineal 

feet of wall or berm and flowering trees and shrubs which will visually break up 

the area. 

(c) Stored materials shall not be piled to a height of more than eight (8) feet. 

(d) A roadway shall be paved, graded and maintained from the street to the rear of the 

property, to permit free access to fire trucks at all times.   

(e) Waste materials shall be kept in neatly stored containers screened from public 

view, and shall be removed and emptied periodically.  No wastes shall be piled on 

open ground.  

(f) Within the intent of this Section, the Planning Commission may approve 

alternatives as it deems necessary to accommodate peculiar circumstances or 

unforeseen problems and to carry out the spirit and intent of this Article.  

8. Salvage yards and the storage of new or used automobiles or automobiles as bonded 

under local county or state law or by order of judgment of any competent court of 

jurisdiction, subject to the following:  

(a) The yard area shall be so located in the interior of the district so that No property 

line of the salvage yard or storage area shall form the exterior boundary of the 

IND District.  

(b) The yard area shall be located next to a railroad right-of-way, and siding facilities 
shall be provided so all salvaged products can be shipped by rail.  

(c) The yard area shall be completely enclosed with an eight (8) foot masonry wall or 
obscuring fence, (driveway openings excepted), set back a minimum of twenty-
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five (25) feet from the street setback line.  The wall or fence may be located on 
the property line where the yard does not abut a street.  Such areas shall also be 
planted on the street side of the wall or obscuring fence.  The planting strip shall 
consist of a minimum of one (1) deciduous shade tree for every forty (40) lineal 
feet of fence or wall and flowering trees and shrubs which will visually break up 
the area.  Plastic and/or other stripping intertwined or otherwise attached to 
cyclone fencing shall be prohibited.  

(d) The burning of tires, oil wastes or other waste products shall not be permitted in 
conjunction with any salvage operations.  

(e) Customer and employee parking, loading and unloading shall be provided within 
the enclosure wall or obscuring fence.  Gates shall be designed in a manner which 
will obscure objectionable views. 

(f) Within the intent of this Section, the Planning Commission may approve 
alternatives as it deems necessary to accommodate peculiar circumstances or 
unforeseen problems while still achieving the spirit and intent of this subsection 
of the Ordinance.  

9. Storage of trucks, trailer coaches, campers, buses, mobile homes and recreation vehicles, 

subject to the following:   

(a) All stored vehicles shall be duly licensed pursuant to the applicable statute, and 
shall not be wrecked, disabled, abandoned, worn out, junked or incapable of 
movement.  

(b) Storage of parts, assemblies and other materials shall be prohibited in the area 
encompassed by this special land use, including those materials specified in sub-
paragraphs 7 and 8 above.  

(c) The yard area shall be enclosed by a six (6) foot to eight (8) foot high fence with 
gates to permit usual and normal access to the abutting street.   

(d) Where the storage area abuts a public street, the enclosure fence shall be set back 
in compliance with the required yard setback for the district and an eight (8) foot 
planting strip shall be established on the street side of the fence.  The planting 
strip shall consist of a minimum of one (1) deciduous shade tree for every forty 
(40) lineal feet of fence and flowering trees and shrubs which will visually break 
up the area.  

10. Large scale institutional uses, including large scale churches subject to the conditions and 

regulations of Section 28.63, and limited to the following uses and conditions: 

 (a) Churches, subject to the following conditions: 
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1) Buildings may exceed the maximum building height permitted in Article 

20, Schedule of Regulations, where permitted by Section 28.23, Height 

Exceptions.  

2) All vehicular access to the site shall be from a paved primary or collector 

road, as classified in the Township Master Plan.  The Planning 

Commission may permit secondary access from local streets. 

  3) Continuous screening shall be provided wherever such use is located 

adjacent to a single-family residential district or use, in accordance with 

Section 26.11, Methods of Screening. 

 (b) Municipal facilities 

11. Natural gas or oil processing facilities, including but not limited to “sweetening” plants, 

subject to all of the conditions and requirements of Section 28.12.  Oil or petroleum 

refineries as defined in this Ordinance are specifically prohibited. 

12 Outdoor training facilities accessory to a principal permitted use.  Outdoor activities shall 

be subject to the standards of the permitted use, particularly for the screening 

requirements of Article 26. 

13. Outdoor theaters, subject to the following: 

 (a) The lot or parcel shall be located so that at least one (1) property line abuts a    

paved primary road, as classified in the Township Master Plan.  All vehicular 

access to the facility shall be directly from the paved primary road(s). 

 (b) A minimum of two (2) ticket gates shall be provided.  Each ticket gate shall have 

a separate entrance lane, and sufficient internal vehicle stacking spaces shall be 

provided for vehicles waiting to enter the theater, to avoid back-up onto any 

public road right-of-way. 

 (c) No theater screen shall be closer than 500 feet to any residential zoning district.  

Any theater screen(s) shall be located, designed and constructed so that it will not 

be visible from any adjacent public road or residential zoning district. 

14. Physical, occupational, speech, or similar outpatient therapy services where such services 

operate based upon scheduled appointments and not on a walk-in basis, provided that the 

Planning Commission finds that nature, function, and proposed location of the use 

ensures it will not conflict with permitted industrial uses. 

15. Any other research, office, testing, manufacturing, wholesale service or commercial use 

that, in the determination of the Planning Commission, will: 

(a) Be consistent with the purpose of this Article, and 
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(b) Not impair the present or potential use of adjacent properties. When considering 

other uses the Planning Commission shall review the nature,  function and 

proposed location of the use to ensure it will not conflict with permitted industrial 

uses. 

SEC. 19.3 USES SPECIFICALLY PROHIBITED  

No building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected for one or more of the 

following specified uses:  

1. Manufacturing development activities which create unusual dangers from fire, explosion, 

toxic or noxious matter, radiation and other or similar hazards. 

2. Any use which causes noxious, offensive, unhealthful or harmful odors, fumes, dust, 

smoke, light, wastes, noises or vibrations.  

3. Machines or operations which cannot comply with Section 28.5, Environmental 

Performance Requirements.  

4. New dwellings or conversion of existing dwellings to additional dwelling units.  

5. Schools, hospitals, clinics and other institutions for human care, except where incidental 

to a permitted principal use or where expressly permitted herein.  

6. The use of trailers, as portable dwellings, either singly or in mobile home or trailer parks.  

7. Any of the following principal uses, or any principal use which is of like character:  

(a) Corrosive acid manufacturing, cement, lime, gypsum or plaster manufacturing.  

(b) Distillation of bone, coal, tar, petroleum refuse, grain or wood.  

(c) Explosive manufacture or storage.  

(d) Fertilizer manufacturing, compost or storage.   

(e) Garbage, offal, dead animals, refuse, rancid fats, incinerator, glue manufacturing, 

size or gelatin manufacturing where the processes include the refining or recovery 

of products from animal refuse or offal.  

(f) Livestock feeding yards.  

(g) Mobile home or trailer parks.  

(h) Motels.  
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(i) Petroleum or asphalt refining, mixing or manufacturing.  

(j) Slaughtering of animals, stock yards.  

(k) Smelting or refining of metals from ore.  

(l) Steam and board hammers and forging presses.  

(m) Storage, curing and tanning of raw, green or salted hides or skins.  

(n) Sulphurous, sulfuric, nitric picric, carbolic or hydrochloric or other corrosive-acid 

manufacturing. 

8. No building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected for any use which 

would be in violation of any State or Federal Law.  (Added 3/14/10) 

SEC. 19.4 DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

All principal permitted uses and special land uses shall comply with all applicable provisions of 

the Zoning Ordinance, including, but not limited to the following: 

1. Site plan and development approval for all uses as specified in Article 29 of this 

Ordinance.  

2. Off-street parking for all uses as specified in Article 24 of this Ordinance.  

3. Off-street loading and unloading for all uses as specified in Article 24 of this Ordinance.  

4. Landscaping, screening and land use buffers for all uses as specified in Article 26 of this 

Ordinance. 

5. Signs for all uses as specified in Article 25 of this Ordinance, except that pole signs shall 

not be permitted.  Ground signs shall be of a monument type with a base constructed 

predominately of masonry as approved by the Planning Commission. 

6. Special Provisions, as specified in Article 28 of this Ordinance. 

7. Height, area, lot coverage and yard regulations as specified in Article 20 of this 

Ordinance. 

8. The following specific requirements shall apply within an IND Industrial District:  

(a) Each use shall be conducted wholly within a completely enclosed building, unless 

otherwise permitted by this Article.  
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(b) Machines Permitted. All machines are permitted when installed and operated so 

as not to allow a noise, odor, fumes, dust, smoke, glare or radioactive material 

exceeding the limits set by Section 28.5, Environmental Performance Standards.  

In no case shall such impacts be detectable from districts in which residence 

occupancy is permitted within the Charter Township of Plymouth. 

(c) Environmental Performance Requirements. Compliance with Section 28.5, 

Environmental Performance Requirements, is required for all uses. 

(d) The use of flammable gas, enameling and paint spraying operations when 
incidental to the principal operation. Such operations shall be completely 
contained within a masonry building of four (4) hour fire construction.  

(e) Source of Power. Power for any manufacturing or heating process or activity shall 
be derived only from electrical energy, smokeless fuels, such as gas or oil, 
smokeless solid fuels containing less than twenty (20) percent of the volatile 
content on a dry basis, or bituminous coal fired by mechanical equipment.  

(f) Yard Grading and Drainage as specified in Section 28.15 of this Ordinance:  

(g) All buildings shall be readily accessible by fire and emergency vehicles, and shall 
comply with the Township Fire Prevention Ordinance.  

(h) Sidewalks shall be provided as specified in Section 28.16 of this Ordinance.  

(i) Exterior lighting shall comply with the standards as specified in Section 28.8, 
Exterior Lighting.   

(j) The method of trash removal shall be presented to the Planning Commission for 
approval. Dumpsters and similar waste receptacles are proposed, they shall be 
screened in a manner acceptable to the Planning Commission subject to the 
requirements of Section 28.9, Waste Receptacles.     

(k) Building Design Standards. 

1) All exterior building facades shall be of the same finish material as the 
front facade of the main building, and all materials used shall be 
recognized as finished materials (standard concrete or cinder block shall 
not be permitted).  The exterior finish and scale of the buildings shall be 
harmonious with the surrounding area and natural environment.   

2) Elevators, stairways, tanks, heating and air conditioning equipment, vents, 
ducts, pipes and other similar apparatus shall be screened from view from 
off-site by a penthouse or structure equal in height to the height of the 
equipment being screened.  The outside finish materials shall be the same 
as or complimentary to the building facade finish materials to which it is 
attached.  Buildings shall further comply with Section 28.14, Building 
Design Standards. The Planning Commission may modify this 
requirement at site plan review. 
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(l) Fencing.  All fencing and/or screening walls required and approved by the 
Planning Commission as part of site plan approval shall be permitted.  In an IND 
Industrial District fencing shall be considered a structure enclosing a piece of land 
or separating contiguous land either in whole or part, serving the purpose of 
preventing intrusion onto or across a lot of record or any parcel or tract of 
unplatted land from without or straying from within. The following shall govern 

the height, location and placement of protective or security fencing:  

1) Permit Required: In the IND Industrial District it shall be unlawful for any 

person to build, repair or relocate a protective or security fence without 

first having secured a Zoning Compliance and/or Building permit  from 

the Department of Building and Code Enforcement. 

2) Maximum Height: The maximum height of a protective or security fence 

shall be six (6) feet.  

3) Material: Fences shall not be constructed of old or used material unless 

such material shall be reasonable sound in the judgment of the Department 

of Building and Code Enforcement.  Fences shall not be made of, or 

contain barbed wire, electric current or charges of electricity or sharp or 

pointed projections of any kind; provided if such fence is constructed of 

pickets, the pickets shall be made of not less than one (1) inch by three (3) 

inch material and shall be an angle at the top of not less than ninety (90) 

degrees.  The fence shall comply with the requirements of applicable 

requirements of the State Construction Code enforced by the Township.  

Plastic or other type of strips intertwined in cyclones fencing shall be 

prohibited.  

4) Placement: No fence shall be built closer to the street than the front 

setback line applicable to the premises pursuant to the Article 20 Schedule 

of Regulations, provided no fence shall be built closer to the street than the 

established front building line along said street or in front of the building 

closest to the street on the fenced premises.  

5) The Planning Commission may, at its discretion, permit alternative fence 

placements, heights or materials in keeping with the spirit and intent of 

this Ordinance and deemed necessary to provide adequate protection for 

the abutting properties.  

 (m) Sites developed with frontage on a road right-of-way shared in common with an 

industrial park within 800 feet or on the same block developed under Section 

19.1.11 may provide front setbacks as allowed by Section 19.1.11(b). 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 
MEETING DATE: September 22, 2015 
 
 
ITEM:  Extension of Planned Unit Development Option Approval for Pomeroy Living 
 
 
 
PRESENTER: Jana Radtke, Community Development Director/Planner 
 
 
OTHER INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  None anticipated. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  P.C. Application 2131-1213 Tax ID R-78-060-99-0002-707 & R-78-060-99-
0002-708 Pomeroy Living Plymouth LLC, Applicant The Board had previously granted Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) Option Approval for Pomeroy Living on February 11, 2014. This 
approval gives the applicant 18 months to submit a PUD Contract and General Development Plan 
for recommendation by the Planning Commission and approval by the Board of Trustees. The 
applicant is requesting an extension of the PUD Option Approval in order to finalize the General 
Development Plan for the project. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Approve 
 
 
BUDGET/ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve 
 
 
 
MODEL RESOLUTION:  I move to approve an extension of the Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) Option Approval for Pomeroy Living for a period of 6 months, which 
would expire in March 2016. The extension is contingent upon the PUD Contract and 
General Development Plan being fully in compliance with the conditions of approval 
imposed by the Board of Trustees at the February 11, 2014 meeting, and also fully in 
compliance with Article XXIII of the Zoning Ordinance, specifically including but not 
limited to, Section 23.5.2. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

9955 N. Haggerty Road 

Plymouth, Ml 48170-4673 

~. 

' p~~rJ~Y 
,., cliHuw-l w~ {~ mt 

Pomerqy 

Stefan Stration President 

sstration@pomeroylivi ng .com 
248. 833.1322 
www.pomeroyliving.com August 13, 2015 

RE: Request for extension of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Option plan for the Pomeroy Living PUD - Pomeroy Living 

Plymouth LLC; Application #2131-1213 

Dear Plymouth Township, 

On behalf of the Pomeroy Living Plymouth LLC, we hereby request a six (6) month extension of the current PUD Option 

plan. 

We have been working in good faith with the Township toward this endeavor and have made much progress. 

The additional time will allow us meet the Township's requirement for a specifically followed final project site plan for all 

phases. This plan would then serve as the reference exhibit to the negotiated Final PUD Agreement. 

Sincerely, 

AUG 1 4 2015 

·:•·iili. 

5480 Corporate Drive, Suite 230 • Troy, Ml 48098 • Phone: 248-723-2100 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2_014 

PROPOSED MINUTES 

FOIA Report - January 2014 
Letter to Fire Department 

E.4 Approval of Township Bills: 

General Fund (101) 
Solid Waste Fund (226) 
Improvement Revolving (246) 
Fund (Capital Projects) 
Drug Forfeiture Fund (265) 
Golf Course Fund (510) 
Water and Sewer Fund (592) 
Trust and Agency Fund (701) 
Police Bond Fund (702) 
Tax Fund (703) 
Special Assessment Fund (805) 
Total: 

$1,207 ,362.57 
100,532.19 

1,501.19 

8,377.56 
9,723.61 

907,533.77 
12,007.90 
9,830.00 

24,974.04 
28,688.50 

$2,310,531.33 

Mr. Doroshewitz questioned the accuracy of the vote tally on Page 5 of the minutes of the 
regular meeting of December 10, 2013, Item J.6, Contract Award for DOA Streetscape 
Landscape Maintenance Service. 

Moved by Ms. Arnold and seconded by Mr. Kelly to approve the consent agenda for the Board 
of Trustees regular meeting of February 11, 2014 as presented. Ayes all. 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Mr. Mike Bailey, former Township Engineer, had questions regarding non-payment of bills from 
work done in 2008 after meeting in September with the Clerk, Treasurer and Township Attorney. 

Mr. Jason Maciejewski of the Senior Alliance, part of the Area Agency on Aging, addressed the 
Board regarding their services. 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 

H. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

1) Request for Board Action - Approve Application 2131 Pomeroy Living PUD 

Mrs. Radtke, Comm. Dev. Dir./Planner, gave background information on the PUD option as 
approved by the Planning Commission at their January meeting. 

Mr. Stefan Stration of Pomeroy Living answered questions regarding their plans for the property 
and gave locations of their other nearby facilities. 

2 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2014 

PROPOSED MINUTES 

Moved by Ms. Arnold and seconded by Ms. Conzelman, to approve Application 2131, Pomeroy 
Living, which would allow Parcels R-78-060-99-0002-707 & R-78-060-99-002-708 to be developed 
under a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Option, subject to the following conditions as 
recommended by the Planning Commission: 

I. Additional evergreen trees, deciduous trees, and understory plantings will be required to 
ensure that the perimeter landscape buffer provides an effective screen between the 
proposed PUD and the adjacent single-family residential subdivisions, as determined by the 
Planning Commission during site plan review. 

2. The exterior faiyade of the 7,000 square-foot commercial building must be designed to 
complement the existing buildings within the Plymouth Towne Center shopping center, as 
determined by the Planning Commission during site plan review. 

3. The applicant will be responsible for installing the Ann Arbor Road Corridor Streetscape 
Improvements along the portion of the PUD site with frontage along Ann Arbor Road, the 
details of which will be determined during site plan review. 

Ayes all on a roll call vote. 

2) Request for Board Action - Approve 2014 Community Development Block Grant 
Allocation 

Mr. Reaume and Mr. Fellrath explained that this is the first of two public hearings to be held to 
afford the public the opportunity to place before the Board any proposed use of the 2014 
Community Development Block Grant Funds. The estimated 2014 funding allocation is $97,102, 
based on the best estimate from the Wayne County Economic Development Growth Engine, Wayne 
County Community Development Block Grant Program. 

Mr. Reaume opened the public hearing at 7:52 p.m. There being no public comment, the hearing 
was closed at 7:53 p.m. 

No action was currently necessary on this item. 

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1) Approve Second Reading of Amendment 6 to Ordinance 1016 - Water and 
Sewer - Use Factor Schedule 

Moved by Mr. Edwards and supported by Ms. Arnold to approve the second reading of Amendment 
6 to Ordinance 1016, Chapter X Water and Sewer, Article 3 Water and Sewer System, Section I, X-
3.055 Use Factor Schedule. Ayes all on a roll call vote. 

A copy of the Ordinance is on file in the Clerk's office for public perusal. 
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Amendments:

1. A metes and bounds survey and legal description of the acreage comprising the proposed 
Planned Unit Development, including a disclosure of mineral rights ownership. 

2. Topographic survey, including natural and manmade features at a scale of one inch 
equals fifty feet (1”=50’), with a contour interval not to exceed two (2) feet. 

3. Site analysis, which identifies the character, structure and potential of the site as it relates 
to this Article, including areas adjacent to the subject property and sufficient information 
about the nearby properties, so that a determination can be made by the Planning 
Commission and Board as to the impact of the proposed Planned Unit Development on 
the general planning area in which the Planned Unit Development is located.  The 
analysis shall include as a minimum the following: 

(a) Contiguous Land Uses. Indicate type and impact on adjoining lands, direction and 
distance to community facilities, show public transportation routes related to site. 

(b) Topography.  Indicate basic topography, any unique ground forms and percent of 
slope.

(c) Drainage.  Natural watershed (direction), drainage swales and swamp areas. 

(d) Soils.  Depth of topsoil and type of soils. 

(e) Vegetation .  Locate and identify existing tree masses, locate and identify 
specimen plant material and indicate type of ground cover. 

(f) Existing conditions.  Structures, utilities and circulation. 

(g) Special Features. Lakes, streams, ponds, floodplains and wetlands, dramatic views 
and significant natural, archeological, historical or cultural features. 

4. A conceptual development plan, which illustrates a the general character of the proposed 
PUD.  The conceptual development plan shall identify the uses proposed and the general 
location of proposed site improvements such as landscaping, buildings, parking areas, 
vehicular and pedestrian circulation, open space and any other special features.

5. Other pertinent information necessary to enable the Planning Commission to make a 
determination concerning the desirability of applying the provisions of this Article.

SEC. 23.5 GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPLICATION INFORMATION

Following PUD option approval by the Township Board, a General Development Plan that 
contains sufficient information to determine the proposed development’s conformance to Section 
23.10, General Conditions, must be submitted for approval and shall contain the following 
information:  

                                               
SEC. 23.4 PUD OPTION APPLICATION INFORMATION
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1. A general development plan shall contain the same information required for tentative site 
plan approval as found in Section 29.8.2 of this Ordinance or tentative preliminary plat 
approval found as found in Chapter 93 of the Township Code of Ordinances.

2. The plan shall indicate the type of uses proposed, their location, the general building 
masses to include proposed height and relationship to abutting uses, circulation (vehicular 
and pedestrian), parking, open space, buffer areas (dimension and general treatment 
proposed as related to site analysis) and any special features.  The plan shall be of 
sufficient detail to define the proposed location of buildings, parking, interior circulation, 
landscape areas and method of handling storm water run-off, sanitary sewer and water 
facilities.  Additional section sketches, models and graphic information should be 
submitted to assist the Planning Commission and Board in this review. 

3. A written narrative statement describing the proposed PUD, including a  description of 
proposed uses, the architectural theme or style to be followed,  the relationship of the 
PUD to the surrounding area, all anticipated impacts associated with the proposed project 
and measures to be taken to mitigate or minimize such negative impacts (including any 
environmental impacts or impacts to off-site traffic conditions).  The Township may 
require a more detailed impacts analysis based on the initial narrative statement. 

4. A PUD contract in conformance with Section 23.9 

5. If the proposed PUD will be a condominium, the Master Deed and By-laws in 
conformance with Section 23.12 shall be submitted. 

6. The Planning Commission may require the submittal of typical building elevations that 
identify the general character of proposed buildings.

SEC. 23.6 FINAL  DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPLICATION INFORMATION

Information required for final development plan approval shall be the same as required for final 
site plan approval as found in Section 29.8.2 of this Ordinance or final preliminary plat approval 
as found in Chapter 93 of the Township Code of Ordinances.  The final development plan shall 
meet all conditions of Township Board approval, and any final requirements determined 
necessary by provisions of this Ordinance or other applicable Codes and Ordinances, or the 
criteria for final site plan approval set forth in Section 29.8.2.  Final development plan approval 
shall be further subject to the following: 

1. The final site plan or final preliminary plat for a single phase PUD development shall 
constitute the final development plan.  For a multi-phased PUD, where sufficient final 
detail has not been determined or which is expected to change slightly, the final 
development plan shall be reviewed and approved as a separate document, and be 
contingent on approval of the final site plans or final preliminary plats. 

                                               
SEC. 23.5 GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

APPOVAL INFORMATION 
SEC. 23.6 FINAL  DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

APPLICATION INFORMATION
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STORM WATER: SANITARY SEWER: UNIT COUNT 
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MANAGEMENT BASIN LOCATED AT THE SOUTH END OF THE 40VIUAS 
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SEWER SYSTEM LOCATED IN ANN ARBOR ROAD 
RIGHT-OF-WAY. 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 
MEETING DATE: September 22, 2015 
 
 
 
ITEM: 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
 
 
 
PRESENTER: Supervisor Shannon Price  

Treasurer Ron Edwards 
Plante Moran Audit Team 

    
 
OTHER INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE:  None anticipated. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Receive and file. 
 
 
BUDGET/ACCOUNT NUMBER:  n/a 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MODEL RESOLUTION:  I move to receive and file the 2014 Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 

32



Charter Township of Plymouth
Wayne County, Michigan

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2014

Prepared by the Charter Township of Plymouth
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To the Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Plymouth 
Wayne County, Michigan 

With this letter, we formally transmit the Charter Township of Plymouth, Michigan 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 2014 fiscal year. This report has been 
prepared pursuant to, and in compliance with State of Michigan statutes that require the 
Township to publish within six months of the close of the fiscal year a complete set of financial 
statements in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

The financial statements have been prepared by the treasurer’s department for the purpose of 
disclosing the Township’s financial condition to its citizens, elected officials, businesses, 
intergovernmental partners, and other interested parties. Management assumes full 
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, 
based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established. In maintaining 
and improving the Township’s accounting and financial reporting system, consideration is given 
to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition and (2) reliability of financial records for preparing financial 
statements and maintaining accountability of Township assets. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived and (2) the valuation of the costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management. Internal accounting controls will not provide absolute assurance. 

This letter is designed to introduce the financial report and provide information that would be 
useful in assessing the Township’s financial condition. In addition, the financial statements include 
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis in the form of a management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD & A) which should be read in conjunction with this letter. D
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The Charter Township of Plymouth 

The Charter Township of Plymouth, located in Western Wayne County in southeastern 
Michigan along the high technology corridor of I-275 and M-14, finds itself strategically situated 
approximately halfway between downtown Detroit and the city of Ann Arbor. It currently 
occupies approximately 16.8 square miles and serves a population of 27,301. Plymouth 
Township prides itself with having one of the lowest overall tax rates in southeastern Michigan 
while providing necessary quality of life services citizens and business desire and demand. 

The Charter Township of Plymouth operates under the township form of government. Policy 
making and legislative authority are vested with a board of trustees which consist of seven 
elected members: a full-time supervisor, treasurer, and clerk along with four part-time trustees. 
The Supervisor is the Chief Administrative and Executive Officer of the Township. They all serve 
four-year terms with elections coinciding with the United States presidential elections. 

Public Facilities 

The Township operates from a 53,000 square ft complex that houses its government, police, 
and fire operations. It also has a 26,000 square ft complex that houses its Department of Public 
Services equipment. 

Component Units and Joint Ventures 

The Charter Township of Plymouth includes in its financial statements two discretely presented 
component units. They are the Downtown Development Authority and the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority. The Downtown Development Authority captures incremental tax 
revenues that are used for improvement within the district along Ann Arbor Road.  The 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority captures incremental tax revenues that are used for 
environmental remediation at approved sites throughout the Township. Additional information 
regarding these component units can be found in the notes to the financial statements (See Note 
#1). 

The Township also participates in two joint ventures, 35th District Court and the Western 
Township Utilities Authority. The Townships participation in these joint ventures is recognized 
in the Township’s financial statements. Additional information regarding these component units 
can be found in the notes to the financial statements (See Note #1). 
 

Budgetary and Accounting Controls 

The Charter Township of Plymouth Board of Trustees adopts an annual budget in accordance 
with the State of Michigan Uniform Budgeting Act, P.A. 621 of 1978.  The Township’s fiscal year 
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is January through December.  The annual budget is adopted by December 31st for the 
subsequent year.  The Township Board of Trustees adopts appropriations at the activity level for 
the General Fund and at the fund level for all other budgeted funds. The budget is prepared by 
fund, department, and function basis. Michigan law requires expenditures to be within budget at 
this level. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end. The Township Board of Trustees must 
approve all budget amendments made throughout the year. 

Local Economy 

Major employers located within the community include automobile component suppliers, 
automobile dealers, food distributors, financial institutions, research, information technology and 
educational institutions. During 2014 the Township, with the assistance from the State of 
Michigan continues to attract new businesses to the Township to fill unoccupied facilities or 
expand current facilities of current Township businesses.  Demand for certain residential housing 
has continued through 2014 and has produced an increase in overall residential taxable value. 

Because of the location within the region and types of employers within the community, the 
Township has experienced unemployment rates well below the State of Michigan’s overall rate. 
Unemployment in the Township was at 2.8% for December 2014 compared to 5.7 % for the 
State of Michigan. This is primarily the result of citizens within the community being highly 
trained and educated. Employment levels are expected to increase over the next year due to 
increase occupancy of industrial and commercial properties. 

Long-term Financial Planning 

 The Township continues to look at a two year budget projection to project fund balance and 
changes in major revenue and expenditures. By looking at a two year projection the Township 
has been able to manage accordingly without raising taxes. This will allow the Township to 
maintain most services it currently delivers while maintaining adequate reserves and an AA bond 
rating. 

Cash Management Policies and Practices 

It is the policy of the Township to invest public dollars in a manner that will provide security of 
the funds while receiving the highest investment return, while conforming to Public Act 20 of 
1943(as amended). Idle cash is invested in money market and pooled accounts. 

Due to the dollar amounts of deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure 
all bank deposits. However, in the State of Michigan, municipalities are not required to 
collateralize or insure bank deposits.  Thus, the Township evaluates each financial institution 
with which Township funds are deposited and assesses the level of risk associated with each 
institution. Only those institutions with acceptable risk levels are used as depositories. 
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Risk Management 

The Charter Township of Plymouth is a member of the Michigan Municipal Risk Management 
Authority (MMRMA).  The MMRMA is a self-insured association with a membership of 
approximately 315 State of Michigan local governmental units.  It provides risk management, 
claims administration, legal defense, and reinsurance services for its members.  As a member of 
MMRMA, the Township has liability coverage of up to $15,000,000 per occurrence.  Our self-
insured retention for liability is $100,000 per occurrence.  We are actively involved in risk 
control through supervisory and employee training, facilities inspections, and utilization of the 
MMRMA risk control staff. 

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits 

The Charter Township of Plymouth participates in both defined contribution and defined benefit 
pension plans that covers substantially all full-time employees. It is required for most employees 
to contribute to the retirement plan in which they participate. Contributions are based on 
contractual agreements or policies adopted by the Township. The defined contribution plan is 
through John Hancock Life Insurance. The defined benefit pension plan, which covers members 
of the Command Officers of Michigan, Police Officers of Michigan, International Association of 
Fire Fighters, and three full-time employees of the Township, is with the Michigan Municipal 
Employees’ Retirement System (MMERS).  Required contributions are determined as a part of 
an annual actuarial valuation.  As of December 31, 2014, the ratio of present assets to actuarial 
accrued liabilities are presented in Note 10 of the notes to the financial statements.  The Charter 
Township of Plymouth also provides postretirement health care benefits for certain retirees and 
their dependents.  As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were 39 retired employees 
receiving these benefits. Additional information pertaining to the Township’s pension and post 
employment benefits can be found in Notes 9, 10, and 11 of the notes to the financial 
statements. 

Independent Audit 

The Township’s financial statements have been audited by Plante & Moran, PLLC. The purpose 
of an independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
of material misrepresentation.  The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the 
accounting principles used and estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. The audit concluded that there was a reasonable basis for 
rendering an “unmodified opinion” on the Charter Township of Plymouth’s financial statements 
for the 2014 calendar year.  

This is the best opinion an auditor can give on financial statements they have audited. 
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The Independent Auditors Report is located at the front of the Financial Section of The Charter 
Township of Plymouth Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Plymouth

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the  Charter Township of Plymouth (the "Township"), as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Charter Township of Plymouth's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Charter Township of Plymouth as of  December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in its financial
position , and, where applicable, cash flows, for the year then ended, in  accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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To the Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion & analysis and the major fund budgetary comparison schedules on pages xx-yy be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Charter Township of Plymouth's basic financial statements.  The other supplementary
information, as identified in the table of
contents and introductory section and statistical section schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The other supplementary information, as identified in the table of contents and  is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America.  In our opinion, the other supplementary information, as identified in the table of
contents and  is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section schedules has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Month XX,
YEAR on our consideration of the Charter Township of Plymouth's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Charter
Township of Plymouth's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 22, 2015  

2

TBD

43



Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

3 

As management of the Charter Township of Plymouth (the “Township”), we offer readers of 
the Charter Township of Plymouth’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of 
the financial activities of the Charter Township of Plymouth for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2014. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information we have furnished in our letter of transmittal which can 
be found on pages i-v and the Township’s financial statements following the management’s 
discussion and analysis (MD&A).  All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in 
dollars. 

The MD&A is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently 
known facts. The discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on 
significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Township’s financial activity, (3) identify 
changes in the Township’s financial position, (4) identify any material deviations from the 
approved budget, and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

Financial Highlights 

As discussed in further detail in this discussion and analysis, the following represents the most 
significant financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2014: 

 At the end of the 2014 fiscal year, the assets of the Charter Township of Plymouth exceeded 
its liabilities by $58.2 million. Net investment in capital assets account for $41.7 million or 72 
percent of the total. The remaining net position of nearly $16.5 million include $0.2 
restricted for drug enforcement and $16.3 million may be used to meet the Township’s 
ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.  

 The Township maintained its financial rating of AA with Standard and Poor’s. 

 The Township’s actual General Fund expenditures were $1.2 million less than the amended 
budget.  

 Water and Sewer Fund income for 2014 was approximately $0.4 million.  This is the fourth 
consecutive year with positive results.  The increase is due to controlling water rates from 
the City of Detroit and the increase in Water/Sewer benefit fees. 
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

4 

Using this Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements.  The statement of net position and 
the statement of activities provide information about the activities of the Township as a whole 
and present a longer-term view of the Township’s finances.  This longer-term view uses the 
accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure the cost of providing services during the 
current year and whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of providing government 
services. 

The fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell us how the taxpayers’ 
resources were spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending.  
Fund financial statements also report the Township’s operations in more detail than the 
government-wide financial statements by providing information about the Township’s most 
significant funds.  The fiduciary fund statements provide financial information about activities for 
which the Township acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the 
government. 

Governmental Activities  

Many of the Township’s basic services provided to the community are included here.  They are 
fire/paramedic service, police/dispatch service, parks, building, community development, and 
general administration.  Most of the funding is provided by property taxes, state-shared revenue, 
charges for service, and agreements. 

The following tables show, in a condensed format, the current year’s net position and changes in 
net position, compared to the prior two years (rounded to the nearest thousand): 
 

2012 2013 2014 Change

Percent 

Change

Assets
Current assets 13,477,000$   17,528,000$       18,110,000$       582,000$         3%
Capital assets 17,927,000     17,521,000         17,314,000         (207,000)          -1%

Total assets 31,404,000     35,049,000         35,424,000         375,000           1%

Liabilities
Current liabilities 3,157,000       5,940,000            5,716,000            (224,000)          -4%
Long-term liabilities 15,244,000     16,769,000         16,505,000         (264,000)          -2%

Total liabilities 18,401,000     22,709,000         22,221,000         (488,000)          -2%

Deferred Inflows 6,332,000       6,720,000            6,840,000            120,000           2%
Net Position

Net investment
 in capital assets 10,508,000     10,661,000         10,891,000         230,000           2%

Restricted 1,202,000       621,000               175,000               (446,000)          -72%
Unrestricted (5,039,000)      (5,662,000)          (4,703,000)          959,000           -17%

Total net position 6,671,000$   5,620,000$      6,363,000$      743,000$      13%  
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

5 

The Township’s governmental activities net position total approximately $6.4 million.  This is an 
increase over 2013 of approximately $0.7 million.  The most significant change in assets and 
liabilities was due to the increase in other postemployment benefits liability of $0.5 million. 

2012 2013 2014 in Dollars Percent

Revenue

Program revenue:
Charges for services 1,749,000        1,975,000        2,041,000        66,000$           3%
Operating grants 1,896,000        128,000           636,000           508,000           397%

General revenue:
Property taxes 6,848,000        6,684,000        6,770,000        86,000              1%
State-shared revenue 2,017,000        2,057,000        2,145,000        88,000              4%
Investment earnings 32,000             35,000             38,000             3,000                9%
Cable franchise agreement 593,000           593,000           635,000           42,000              7%
Other miscellaneous -                    -                    158,000           158,000           100%
Gain on sale of assets and other -                    6,000                1,508,000        1,502,000        25033%

Total revenue 13,135,000     11,478,000     13,931,000     2,453,000        21%

Program Expenses
General government 2,560,000        2,355,000        2,449,000        94,000              4%
Public safety 9,461,000        8,797,000        8,906,000        109,000           1%
Building inspections 398,000           421,000           433,000           12,000              3%
Public works 174,000           124,000           257,000           133,000           107%
Community services 103,000           35,000             169,000           134,000           383%
Planning and zoning 107,000           192,000           215,000           23,000              12%
Parks 455,000           385,000           545,000           160,000           42%
Interest on long-term debt 709,000           220,000           214,000           (6,000)               -3%

Total expenses 13,967,000     12,529,000     13,188,000     659,000           5%

Change in Net Position (832,000)$     (1,051,000)$  743,000$      1,794,000$   -171%

Change from Prior Year

Governmental Activities

 
The Township’s total governmental revenue was $13.9 million, which increased from 2013 by 
approximately $2.5 million. This was due to increases in grant revenue $0.5 million and Gain on 
sale of assets $1.5 million. 

Expenses increased during the year by $0.7. The increase in expenditures were due to various 
program expenditures. 
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

6 

Business-type Activities 

The Township’s business-type activities consist of the Water and Sewer Fund, Solid Waste 
Disposal Fund, Golf Fund, and Special Assessment Fund.  The Township provides water to 
residents from the Detroit water system.  We provide sewage treatment through the Western 
Townships Utilities Authority, which collects sewage, equalizes it, and sends it to both the 
Detroit sewage treatment plant and the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority sewage 
treatment plant.  

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund was created to account for revenue and expenses for trash 
collection and recycling programs requiring separate accounting and financing. 

The Golf Fund was created to account for revenues and expenses for golf course operations. 
The course is operated by a management company, Billy Casper Golf, which is responsible for 
day-to-day operations. 

The Special Assessment Fund was created to account for revenue and expenses for certain 
special assessments (road paving and sidewalk repairs) requiring separate accounting and 
financing. 

The following tables show the current year’s net position and changes in net position, compared 
to the prior two years (rounded to the nearest thousand): 

2012 2013 2014 Change

Percent 

Change

Assets
Current assets 7,932,000$     8,139,000$         8,039,000$         (100,000)$        -1%
Investment in joint venture 12,666,000     13,918,000         15,349,000         1,431,000        10%
Capital assets 35,406,000     34,508,000         33,244,000         (1,264,000)       -4%

Total assets 56,004,000     56,565,000         56,632,000         67,000              0%

Liabilities
Current liabilities 1,469,000       1,236,000            1,192,000            (44,000)            -4%
Long-term liabilities 3,221,000       3,888,000            3,588,000            (300,000)          -8%

Total liabilities 4,690,000       5,124,000            4,780,000            (344,000)          -7%

Net Position
Net investment

 in capital assets 32,776,000     31,919,000         30,802,000         (1,117,000)       -3%
Unrestricted 18,538,000     19,522,000         21,050,000         1,528,000        8%

Total net position 51,314,000$ 51,441,000$    51,852,000$    411,000$      1%  
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

7 

The net position of the Township’s business-type activities total $51.8 million. This is an increase 
over 2013 of $0.4 million. The increase is attributable to water and sewer operations. 

2012 2013 2014 in Dollars Percent
Program Revenue

Charges for services:
Water and sewer 13,989,000$  12,600,000$  12,139,000$  (461,000)$       -4%
Rubbish 1,141,000       1,374,000       1,374,000       -                        0%
Golf 570,000          624,000          666,000          42,000             7%
Special assessments 126,000          1,252,000       1,423,000       171,000          14%

Capital contributions - 
Water and sewer 214,000          162,000          754,000          592,000          365%

General revenue:
Interest income 30,000             23,000             86,000             63,000             274%
Gain on sale of assets -                        -                        -                        -                        0%

Total revenue 16,070,000     16,035,000     16,442,000     407,000          3%

Program Expenses
Water and sewer 12,352,000     12,564,000     12,524,000     40,000             0%
Rubbish 1,247,000       1,268,000       1,325,000       (57,000)           -4%
Golf 666,000          744,000          722,000          22,000             3%
Special assessments 53,000             1,332,000       1,460,000       (128,000)         -10%

Total program

expenses 14,318,000     15,908,000     16,031,000     (123,000)         -1%

Change in Net Position 1,752,000$   127,000$     411,000$     284,000$     224%

Change from Prior Year

Business-type Activities

 
 
In 2014, business-type activities revenue totaled $16.4 million, an increase from 2013 of 
approximately $0.4 million (primarily due to capital contributions).  Expenses for business-type 
activities totaled $16.0 million, an increase from 2013 of approximately $0.1 million (primarily 
due to special assessments).   

The Township’s Funds 

Our analysis of the Township’s major funds follows the government-wide financial statements.  
The fund financial statements provide detail information about the most significant funds, not the 
Township as a whole.  The Township board creates funds to help manage money for specific 
purposes as well as to show accountability for certain activities, such as specific property tax 
millages.  The Township’s major funds for 2014 include the General Fund, the Improvement 
Revolving Fund, the Water and Sewer Fund, the Solid Waste Disposal Fund, and the Golf Fund. 
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

8 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights  

Over the course of the year, the Township amended the budget to take into account events 
during the year.  The most significant budget changes during the year were in public safety costs.  
Township departments overall stayed below the final amended budget by $1.2 million, resulting 
in total expenditures of $12.3 million. This was an increase of $1.3 million compared to 2013.  
Public Safety expenditures increased $0.7 million due to restoring 6 Firefighter positions. 

Improvement Revolving Highlights 

The Township amended the budget during the year due to capital outlays. The increase in net 
position $0.9 million is due to the sale of the former Township Hall site. 

Business-type Funds 

Water and Sewer Fund 

The Water and Sewer Fund experienced a $0.4 million increase in net position. The increase is 
due to controlling water rates with the City of Detroit and an increase in  Water/Sewer benefit 
fees . 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

As of the year end, the Township had $50.6 million invested in a variety of capital assets, 
including buildings, fire and police equipment, and water and sewer lines. This represents a 
decrease from 2013 of approximately $1.4 million due to depreciation. Roads within the 
Township are accounted for and maintained by the County of Wayne. A summary of capital 
assets is presented in Note 5 of the notes to the financial statements. 

Debt Outstanding 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Charter Township of Plymouth had total bonded debt 
outstanding of approximately $10 million. This is a decrease of $1.1 million compared to 2013. 

A summary of long-term debt is presented in Note 7 of the notes to financial statements. 
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Charter Township of Plymouth 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

9 

Economic Factors 

The State of Michigan relies on various taxes and fees to provide governmental activities to its 
citizens. Local governments rely primarily on property taxes and state-shared revenue to 
provide governmental activities to their citizens. For business-type activities (water and sewer, 
solid waste disposal, special assessments) and certain governmental activities (permitting, 
development), the user pays a related fee or charge associated with the service.  During 2014, 
the Township continued seeing positive change. Home sale prices continued to rise, state-
shared revenue continued to increase, building permits continued to increase, and 
unemployment in Plymouth Township ended the year at 2.8 percent. Even with the economic 
outlook improving, the Township board continues to look for improvements in services while 
reducing legacy costs that the Township will be able to sustain into the future. 

Contacting the Township’s Management 

The Charter Township of Plymouth’s financial statements are designed to provide our citizens, 
elected officials, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general overview of the Township’s 
finances and to show the Township’s accountability. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Office of the Treasurer, Charter Township of Plymouth, 9955 Haggerty Road, 
Plymouth, MI 48170. 
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Primary Government
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Total
Component

Units
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 6,917,361 $ 2,807,908 $ 9,725,269 $ 1,670,120
Receivables: 

Property taxes receivable 4,059,576 159,417 4,218,993 248,516
Receivables from sales to customers

on account - 2,709,004 2,709,004 -
Other receivables 635 89,103 89,738 -
Due from other governmental units 5,378,615 - 5,378,615 -
Special assessments receivable - 2,108,178 2,108,178 -

Advances to component units (Note 6) 175,000 - 175,000 -
Internal balances 501,185 (501,185) - -
Inventory - 18,049 18,049 -
Prepaid expenses 128,028 79,859 207,887 -
Restricted cash - unspent bond

proceeds 950,032 568,312 1,518,344 -
Investment in joint ventures (Note 1) - 15,348,724 15,348,724 -
Capital assets: (Note 5)

Assets not subject to depreciation 3,740,188 1,636,134 5,376,322 -
Assets subject to depreciation 13,573,348 31,608,305 45,181,653 -

Total assets 35,423,968 56,631,808 92,055,776 1,918,636

Liabilities
Accounts payable 125,299 800,783 926,082 5,880
Advances from primary government

(Note 6) - - - 175,000
Accrued liabilities and other 378,052 47,408 425,460 -
Unearned revenue 4,060,807 - 4,060,807 -
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year: (Note 7)
Compensated absences 510,246 78,521 588,767 -
Current portion of long-term debt 640,585 264,850 905,435 -

Due in more than one year: 
Compensated absences (Note 7) 639,392 100,063 739,455 -
Net OPEB obligation (Note 12) 9,134,465 741,928 9,876,393 -
Long-term debt (Note 7) 6,731,701 2,746,423 9,478,124 -

Total liabilities 22,220,547 4,779,976 27,000,523 180,880

Deferred inflows of resources  (Note 4)
Property taxes levied for the following

year 6,840,452 - 6,840,452 256,168

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 10,891,282 30,801,478 41,692,760 -
Restricted for -  

Drug enforcement 175,132 - 175,132 -
Unrestricted (4,703,445) 21,050,354 16,346,909 1,481,588

Total net position $ 6,362,969 $ 51,851,832 $ 58,214,801 $ 1,481,588

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1051



CCharter Township of Plymouth

Program Revenue

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating Grants
and

Contributions

Capital Grants
and

Contributions
Functions/Programs

Primary government - 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 2,449,174 $ 334,122 $ - $ -
Public safety:

Police 4,671,813 257,495 34,063 -
Fire 3,064,395 108,918 423,386 -
Building inspections 433,182 795,033 - -
Dispatching 1,170,226 473,013 - -

Public works 257,453 - - -
Community services 169,462 - 179,042 -
Planning and zoning 214,568 72,349 - -
Parks 544,905 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 214,240 - - -

Total governmental activities 13,189,418 2,040,930 636,491 -

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 12,524,084 12,138,160 - 754,071
Rubbish disposal 1,324,570 1,374,298 - -
Golf course 722,264 665,634 - -
Special assessment projects 1,459,828 1,422,826 - -

Total business-type activities: 16,030,746 15,600,918 - 754,071

Total primary government $ 29,220,164 $ 17,641,848 $ 636,491 $ 754,071

Component units:
Downtown Development Authority $ 94,479 $ - $ - $ -
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 5,969 - - -

Total component units $ 100,448 $ - $ - $ -

General revenue:
Property taxes
State-shared revenue
Interest and rents
Cable franchise fees
Other miscellaneous income
Gain on sale of fixed assets

Total general revenue

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of year

Net Position - End of year

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1152



Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Component
Units

$ (2,115,052) $ - $ (2,115,052) $ -

(4,380,255) - (4,380,255) -
(2,532,091) - (2,532,091) -

361,851 - 361,851 -
(697,213) - (697,213) -
(257,453) - (257,453) -

9,580 - 9,580 -
(142,219) - (142,219) -
(544,905) - (544,905) -
(214,240) - (214,240) -

(10,511,997) - (10,511,997) -

- 368,147 368,147 -
- 49,728 49,728 -
- (56,630) (56,630) -
- (37,002) (37,002) -

- 324,243 324,243 -

(10,511,997) 324,243 (10,187,754) -

- - - (94,479)
- - - (5,969)

- - - (100,448)

6,770,260 - 6,770,260 273,236
2,144,620 - 2,144,620 -

38,400 86,488 124,888 4,778
635,253 - 635,253 -
158,090 - 158,090 325

1,508,230 - 1,508,230 -

11,254,853 86,488 11,341,341 278,339

742,856 410,731 1,153,587 177,891

5,620,113 51,441,101 57,061,214 1,303,697

$ 6,362,969 $ 51,851,832 $ 58,214,801 $ 1,481,588
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2014

General Fund

Improvement
Revolving

Fund
Non-Major

Funds Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 5,481,035 $ 1,249,292 $ 187,034 $ 6,917,361
Receivables: 

2014 property taxes 4,059,576 - - 4,059,576
Other receivables - - 635 635
Due from other governmental units 5,378,615 - - 5,378,615

Advances to component units (Note 6) 175,000 - - 175,000
Due from other funds (Note 6) 18,587 3,714 14,487 36,788
Advances to other funds (Note 6) 500,000 - - 500,000
Prepaid expenses 126,726 - 1,302 128,028
Restricted cash - Unspent bond proceeds - 950,032 - 950,032

Total assets $15,739,539 $ 2,203,038 $ 203,458 $18,146,035

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 99,136 $ 2,368 $ 23,795 $ 125,299
Due to other funds (Note 6) 17,174 18,429 - 35,603
Accrued liabilities and other 299,286 - 3,896 303,182
Unearned revenue 4,060,172 - 635 4,060,807

Total liabilities 4,475,768 20,797 28,326 4,524,891

Deferred Inflows of Resources (Note 4) 7,453,471 - - 7,453,471

Fund Balances
Nonspendable: 

Prepaids 126,726 - 1,302 128,028
Long-term advances 675,000 - - 675,000

Restricted: 
Capital projects (unspent bond proceeds) - 950,032 - 950,032
Drug enforcement - - 173,830 173,830

Assigned - Capital improvements - 1,232,209 - 1,232,209
Unassigned 3,008,574 - - 3,008,574

Total fund balances 3,810,300 2,182,241 175,132 6,167,673

Total liabilities,deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $15,739,539 $ 2,203,038 $ 203,458 $18,146,035

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1354



Charter Township of Plymouth

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the

Statement of Net Position
 December 31, 2014

Fund Balance Reported in Governmental Funds $ 6,167,673

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are not reported in the funds 17,313,536

Grants and other receivables that are collected after year end, such
that they are not available to pay bills outstanding as of year end,
are not recognized in the funds 613,019

Bonds payable obligations are not due and payable in the current
period and are not reported in the funds (7,372,286)

Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and is
not reported in the funds (332)

Net OPEB obligation is not reported as a fund liability (9,134,465)

Accrued longevity pay for employees is not reported as a fund liability
until it is due and payable (5,038)

Employee compensated absences are payable over a long period of
years and do not represent a claim on current financial resources;
therefore, they are not reported as fund liabilities (1,149,638)

Accrued insurance claims are not reported as a fund liability until the
payment is due and payable (69,500)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 6,362,969

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1455



Charter Township of Plymouth

Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended December 31, 2014

General Fund

Improvement
Revolving

Fund
Non-Major

Funds Total
Revenue

Property taxes $ 6,709,837 $ - $ - $ 6,709,837
Licenses and permits 863,192 - - 863,192
Federal grants 591,904 - 9,299 601,203
State-shared revenue and grants 2,106,621 - 8,232 2,114,853
Charges for services: 

Intragovernmental service charge 717,128 - - 717,128
City of Plymouth  318,672 - - 318,672

District court fines 196,410 - - 196,410
Interest and rents 24,243 11,153 3,004 38,400
Other revenue: 

Cable franchise fees 635,253 - - 635,253
Other charges for services 81,137 - - 81,137
Other miscellaneous income 684,647 - - 684,647

Total revenue 12,929,044 11,153 20,535 12,960,732

Expenditures
Current:

General government 2,999,749 - - 2,999,749
Public safety 8,052,839 - 208,900 8,261,739
Building inspections 455,129 - - 455,129
Community social services 169,462 - - 169,462
Planning and zoning 147,687 - - 147,687
Parks 430,804 - - 430,804

Capital outlay - 252,902 257,991 510,893
Debt service - 837,460 - 837,460

Total expenditures 12,255,670 1,090,362 466,891 13,812,923

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures 673,374 (1,079,209) (446,356) (852,191)

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 1,497,350 - 1,497,350
Transfers in (Note 6) - 523,951 - 523,951
Transfers out (Note 6) (523,951) - - (523,951)

Total other financing (uses) sources (523,951) 2,021,301 - 1,497,350

Net Change in Fund Balances 149,423 942,092 (446,356) 645,159

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 3,660,877 1,240,149 621,488 5,522,514

Fund Balances - End of year $ 3,810,300 $ 2,182,241 $ 175,132 $ 6,167,673

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1556



Charter Township of Plymouth

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 645,159

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however,
in the statement of activities, these costs are allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation:

Capital outlay 921,998
Depreciation expense (952,072)
Net book value of assets disposed of (177,092)

Revenue reported in the statement of activities does not provide
current financial resources and is not reported as revenue in the
governmental funds (GASB Statement No. 33) 186,215

Repayment of bond principal and premium is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but not in the statement of activities (where it
reduces long-term debt) 622,220

Accrued interest, recorded in the statement of activities, decreased in
the current year 1,001

Increase in net OPEB obligation expenses reported in the statement
of activities does not require the use of current resources and,
therefore, is not reported in the fund statements until they come
due for payment (458,481)

Accrued longevity pay and employee compensated absences are
recorded when earned in the statement of activities and these
amounts defeased in the current year (38,092)

Self-insurance liability, recorded in the statement of activities,
increased in the current year (8,000)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 742,856

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1657



Charter Township of Plymouth

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014

Water and
Sewer Fund

Solid Waste
Disposal Fund Golf Fund

Special
Assessment Fund Total

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 2,232,606 $ 417,264 $ 43,670 $ 114,368 $ 2,807,908
Receivables 2,730,811 221,347 2,589 2,110,955 5,065,702
Due from other funds (Note 6) 27,749 113,927 2,687 - 144,363
Inventory - - 18,049 - 18,049
Prepaid expenses 76,360 481 3,018 - 79,859

Total current assets 5,067,526 753,019 70,013 2,225,323 8,115,881

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets - Unspent bond

proceeds 229,526 - 338,786 - 568,312
Advances to other funds 1,831,055 - - - 1,831,055
Investment in WTUA (Note 1) 15,348,724 - - - 15,348,724
Capital assets: 

Assets not subject to
depreciation (Note 5) 909,058 - 727,076 - 1,636,134

Assets subject to depreciation
(Note 5) 31,104,045 6,521 497,739 - 31,608,305

Total noncurrent
assets 49,422,408 6,521 1,563,601 - 50,992,530

Total assets 54,489,934 759,540 1,633,614 2,225,323 59,108,411

Liabilities
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 556,880 100,128 4,490 139,285 800,783
Due to other funds (Note 6) 132,514 - 13,034 - 145,548
Accrued liabilities and other 33,473 2,002 11,933 - 47,408
Compensated absences - Due

within one year (Note 7) 72,907 5,614 - - 78,521
Current portion of long-term debt

(Note 7) 167,637 - 97,213 - 264,850

Total current liabilities 963,411 107,744 126,670 139,285 1,337,110

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds

(Note 6) - - 500,000 1,831,055 2,331,055
Compensated absences - Net of

current portion (Note 7) 93,897 6,166 - - 100,063
Net OPEB obligation (Note 12) 680,457 61,471 - - 741,928
Long-term debt (Note 7) 2,281,056 - 465,367 - 2,746,423

Total noncurrent
liabilities 3,055,410 67,637 965,367 1,831,055 5,919,469

Total liabilities 4,018,821 175,381 1,092,037 1,970,340 7,256,579

 

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 29,793,936 6,521 1,001,021 - 30,801,478
Unrestricted 20,677,177 577,638 (459,444) 254,983 21,050,354

Total net position $ 50,471,113 $ 584,159 $ 541,577 $ 254,983 $ 51,851,832

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1758



Charter Township of Plymouth

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Water and
Sewer Fund

Solid Waste
Disposal Fund Golf Fund

Special
Assessment Fund Total

Operating Revenue
Sale of water $ 4,040,827 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,040,827
Sewage disposal charges 6,450,894 - - - 6,450,894
Meter charges 1,303,353 - - - 1,303,353
Solid waste charges - 1,374,298 - - 1,374,298
Special assessment charges - - - 1,422,826 1,422,826
Installation fees 15,324 - - - 15,324
Golf course fees and sales - - 665,634 - 665,634
Other miscellaneous revenue 201,556 - - - 201,556
Charges to other funds 126,206 - - - 126,206

Total operating
revenue 12,138,160 1,374,298 665,634 1,422,826 15,600,918

Operating Expenses
Cost of water 3,587,379 - - - 3,587,379
Cost of sewage treatment 3,117,523 - - - 3,117,523
Solid waste disposal - 1,224,366 - - 1,224,366
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,009,185 84,899 290,645 - 1,384,729
Special assessment project costs - - - 1,459,828 1,459,828
Intragovernmental service charges 717,128 - - - 717,128
Miscellaneous 183,149 10,154 93,927 - 287,230
Change in investment in WTUA 1,909,886 - - - 1,909,886
Professional service 5,079 4,090 - - 9,169
Repair and maintenance 246,427 - 71,323 - 317,750
Administrative expense 283,714 - 152,489 - 436,203
Depreciation 1,362,554 1,061 98,884 - 1,462,499

Total operating
expenses 12,422,024 1,324,570 707,268 1,459,828 15,913,690

Operating (Loss) Income (283,864) 49,728 (41,634) (37,002) (312,772)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Investment income 20,405 - 2,088 63,995 86,488
Interest expense (102,060) - (14,996) - (117,056)

Total nonoperating
expenses (81,655) - (12,908) 63,995 (30,568)

(Loss) Income - Before contributions (365,519) 49,728 (54,542) 26,993 (343,340)

Capital Contributions - Benefit fees 754,071 - - - 754,071

Change in Net Position 388,552 49,728 (54,542) 26,993 410,731

Net Position - Beginning of year 50,082,561 534,431 596,119 227,990 51,441,101

Net Position - End of year $ 50,471,113 $ 584,159 $ 541,577 $ 254,983 $ 51,851,832

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1859



Charter Township of Plymouth

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Water and
Sewer Fund

Solid Waste
Disposal Fund Golf Fund

Special
Assessment

Fund Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 12,082,670 $ 1,489,725 $ 665,634 $ 616,759 $ 14,854,788
Receipts from interfund services and

reimbursements 677,244 - (2,687) - 674,557
Payments to suppliers (11,724,684) (1,232,808) (345,378) (1,326,834) (14,629,704)
Payments to employees (991,300) (80,950) (287,247) - (1,359,497)
Internal activity - (Payments to) receipts from

other funds (386,878) (115,662) (4,085) (69,995) (576,620)
Other receipts - - 1,886 39,342 41,228

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities (342,948) 60,305 28,123 (740,728) (995,248)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
- Advances from other funds (622,125) - - 622,125 -

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Activities

Benefit fees 754,071 - - - 754,071
Purchase of capital assets (192,663) (6,545) - - (199,208)
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (223,775) - (109,384) - (333,159)

Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing
activities 337,633 (6,545) (109,384) - 221,704

Cash Flows from Investing Activities -
Interest received on investments 20,405 - 2,088 63,995 86,488

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents (607,035) 53,760 (79,173) (54,608) (687,056)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 3,069,167 363,504 461,629 168,976 4,063,276

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 2,462,132 $ 417,264 $ 382,456 $ 114,368 $ 3,376,220

Balance Sheet Classification of Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and investments $ 2,232,606 $ 417,264 $ 43,670 $ 114,368 $ 2,807,908
Restricted assets - Unspent bond proceeds 229,526 - 338,786 - 568,312

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 2,462,132 $ 417,264 $ 382,456 $ 114,368 $ 3,376,220

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) $ (283,864) $ 49,728 $ (41,634) $ (37,002) $ (312,772)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 1,362,554 1,061 98,884 - 1,462,499
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables 70,716 115,427 1,886 (766,725) (578,696)
Due from others 677,244 - (2,687) - 674,557
Inventories - - (7,093) - (7,093)
Change in investment in WTUA (1,430,902) - - - (1,430,902)
Prepaid and other assets (7,429) (365) 415 34,807 27,428
Accounts payable (236,068) 4,967 (20,961) 98,187 (153,875)
Due (to) from other funds (513,084) (115,662) (4,085) (69,995) (702,826)
Accrued and other liabilities 17,885 5,149 3,398 - 26,432

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities $ (342,948) $ 60,305 $ 28,123 $ (740,728) $ (995,248)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 1960



Charter Township of Plymouth

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

December 31, 2014

Agency Funds

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,313,263

Liabilities
Due to other governmental units $ 1,943,858
Refundable deposits and bonds 369,405

Total liabilities $ 2,313,263

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 2061



Charter Township of Plymouth

Component Units
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014

Downtown
Development

Authority

Brownfield
Redevelopment

Authority Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 78,013 $ 1,592,107 $ 1,670,120
Receivables - Property taxes 248,516 - 248,516

Total assets 326,529 1,592,107 1,918,636

Liabilities
Accounts payable 826 5,054 5,880
Advances from primary government (Note 6) 175,000 - 175,000

Total liabilities 175,826 5,054 180,880

Deferred Inflows of Resources -
Property taxes levied for the following year 248,516 7,652 256,168

Net (Deficit) Position - Unrestricted $ (97,813) $ 1,579,401 $ 1,481,588

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 2162



Charter Township of Plymouth

Component Units
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Expenses

Downtown
Development

Authority

Brownfield
Redevelopment

Authority Total

Downtown Development Authority - Public
works $ 94,479 $ (94,479) $ - $ (94,479)

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 5,969 - (5,969) (5,969)

Total component units $ 100,448 (94,479) (5,969) (100,448)

General revenue:
Property taxes 254,749 18,487 273,236
Interest and rents 246 4,532 4,778
Other miscellaneous

income - 325 325

Total general
revenue 254,995 23,344 278,339

Change in Net
Position 160,516 17,375 177,891

Net Position -
Beginning of year (258,329) 1,562,026 1,303,697

Net Position
(Deficit) - End of
year $ (97,813) $ 1,579,401 $ 1,481,588

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 2263



Charter Township of Plymouth

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

The accounting policies of the Charter Township of Plymouth (the "Township") conform
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant
accounting policies used by the Charter Township of Plymouth:

Reporting Entity 

The Charter Township of Plymouth is governed by an elected seven-member board of
trustees. The accompanying financial statements present the Township and its
component units, entities for which the Township is considered to be financially
accountable. Although blended component units are legal separate entities, in substance,
they are part of the Township's operations.  Each discretely presented component unit
is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the Township (see discussion below for
description).

Discretely Presented Component Units - The Downtown Development Authority
was created to correct and prevent deterioration in the downtown district, to eliminate
blighting influences and Brownfield impacts, and to promote the overall image of the
downtown district. The Township board of trustees appoints the Downtown
Development Authority's governing body and has the ability to impose its will. It is
reported within the component unit column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the Township.  The Downtown
Development Authority does not publish a separately issued financial statement. The
Downtown Development Authority can be contacted at its administrative offices as
follows:

Downtown Development Authority
9955 N. Haggerty Rd.
Plymouth, MI 48170

The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority was created to finance environmental
cleanup within the boundaries of the Township. The Township board of trustees
appoints the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority's governing body and has the ability
to impose its will. It is reported within the component unit column in the government-
wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the Township. The
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority does not publish a separately issued financial
statement. The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority can be contacted at its
administrative offices as follows:

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
9955 N. Haggerty Rd.
Plymouth, MI 48170
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued)

Joint Venture - The Township is a member of the Western Townships Utilities
Authority, which provides sewage disposal services to the townships of Canton,
Northville, and Plymouth. The participating communities provide annual funding for its
operations through payment of monthly sewer use invoices and semiannual debt
payments.  During the current year, the Township paid the Western Townships Utilities
Authority approximately $3,341,000 for its operations, $3,519,000 for its debt, and
$139,000 for capital project costs. The Western Townships Utilities Authority has
currently been funded with $279,000 of working capital and is current in its debt
payments. The investment in the Western Townships Utilities Authority is reported in
the financial statements net of the Township's portion of assets and debt. The Township
is unaware of any circumstances that would cause an additional benefit or burden to the
participating governments. Complete financial statements for the Western Townships
Utilities Authority can be obtained from the administrative offices at 40905 Joy Road,
Canton, MI 48187.

Accounting and Reporting Principles

The Township follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting
pronouncements are promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

Report Presentation

Governmental accounting principles require that financial reports include two different
perspectives - the government-wide perspective and the fund-based perspective. The
government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. The government-wide financial
statements are presented on the economic resources measurement focus and the full
accrual basis of accounting. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. The statements also
present a schedule reconciling these amounts to the modified accrual-based
presentation found in the fund-based statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenue. 

2465



Charter Township of Plymouth

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued)

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Township's water
and sewer function and various other functions of the Township. Eliminations of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Fund Accounting 

The Township accounts for its various activities in several different funds, in order to
demonstrate accountability for how we have spent certain resources - separate funds
allow us to show the particular expenditures for which specific revenues were used.
The various funds are aggregated into three broad fund types:

Governmental Funds include all activities that provide general governmental services
that are not business-type activities. This includes the General Fund, special revenue
funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, and permanent funds. The Township
reports the following funds as “major” governmental funds:

The General Fund, which is the primary operating fund because it accounts for all
financial resources used to provide general government services, other than those
specifically assigned to another fund.

The Improvement Revolving Fund, which was established to account for revenue
and expenditures for certain capital improvements requiring separate accounting
and financing.

Proprietary Funds include enterprise funds (which provide goods or services to users
in exchange for charges or fees) and internal service funds (which provide goods or
services to other funds of the Township). The Township reports the following funds as
“major” enterprise funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund provides water to customers and disposes of sanitary
sewage in exchange for quarterly user charges.

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund is used to account for the results of operations for
providing solid waste services (trash pickup and household hazardous waste
disposal) to citizens of the Township. The revenue is generated through a user
charge to citizens requesting solid waste services.
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The Golf Fund is used to account for the results of operations of the Township-
owned Hilltop Golf Course.

The Special Assessment Fund is used to account for the results of operations of the
special assessments captured by the Township.

Fiduciary Funds include the collection of taxes on behalf of the county, school district,
and other taxing entities, as well as building bonds and developer deposits that are to be
returned upon successful completion of the development or building projects. Agency
funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the
measurement of results of operations.

Interfund Activity

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various
purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to
other funds and advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated
so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities
column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e.,
the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal
balances in the business-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between
funds. In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as
transfers in/out. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers
between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances
between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

Basis of Accounting 

The governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is intended to better
demonstrate accountability for how the government has spent its resources. 
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Expenditures are reported when the goods are received or the services are rendered.
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures (rather than as capital assets) because they
reduce the ability to spend resources in the future; conversely, employee benefit costs
that will be funded in the future (such as pension and retiree healthcare-related costs, or
sick and vacation pay) are not counted until they come due for payment. In addition,
debt service expenditures, claims, and judgments are recorded only when payment is
due.

Revenues are not recognized until they are collected, or collected soon enough after the
end of the year that they are available to pay for obligations outstanding at the end of the
year. For this purpose, the Township considers amounts collected within 60 days of year
end to be available for recognition. The following major revenue sources meet the
availability criterion: state-shared revenue, state gas and weight tax revenue, district
court fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal period. Conversely, special
assessments and federal grant reimbursements will be collected after the period of
availability; receivables have been recorded for these, along with a "deferred inflow."

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds use the economic resources measurement focus
and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Specific Balances and Transactions

Bank Deposits and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less
when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value.

Inventories and Prepaid Items - Inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out
basis. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to
future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Township as
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. 
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Capital assets have been depreciated using the straight-line method for real property
and the 150 percent declining balance for personal property through the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011. Effective for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, the
Township going forward is using the straight-line method for both real and personal
property depreciation over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset Class Lives

Water and sewer transportation lines 50 years
Buildings and improvements 30 to 40 years
Meters and supplies 15 years
Furnishings, vehicles, and equipment 2 to 15 years
Road improvements 40 years
Sidewalks 25 years

Long-term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements and the
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method.

Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. In the fund
financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs are reported as
debt service expenditures.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position/balance sheet will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The
Township had no deferred outflows of resources.
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position/balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
Unavailable revenue qualifies for reporting in this category and arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, it is reported only in the governmental
funds balance sheet. The governmental funds and government-wide statements report
unavailable revenues from property taxes and other sources. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net
position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered
to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have
been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance.
Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same
purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the
nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The
government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a
commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).
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The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for
the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority. The Township Board of Trustees is the highest level of
decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance
prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of
another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as
committed. The Township Board of Trustees has by resolution authorized the
Treasurer to assign fund balance. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for
the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is
essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

Property Tax Revenue 

Property taxes are levied on each December 1 on the taxable valuation of property as of
the preceding December 31. Taxes are considered delinquent on March 1 of the
following year, at which time penalties and interest are assessed. 

The Township's 2013 tax is levied and collectible on December 1, 2013 and is
recognized as revenue in the year ended December 31, 2014, when the proceeds of the
levy are budgeted and available for the financing of operations.

The 2013 taxable valuation of the Township totaled $1,741,000 (a portion of which is
abated and a portion of which is captured by the DDA and BRDA), on which taxes
levied consisted of .8173 mills for operating purposes and 3.1827 mills for police and fire
services. This resulted in $1,375,000 for operating purposes and $5,335,000 for police
and fire services. These amounts are recognized in the respective General Fund financial
statements as tax revenue (net of reductions for delinquent amounts and prior year tax
tribunal changes).

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Costs - The Township offers both
pension and retiree healthcare benefits to retirees. The Township receives an actuarial
valuation to compute the annual required contribution (ARC) necessary to fund the
obligation over the remaining amortization period. In the governmental funds, pension
and OPEB costs are recognized as contributions are made. For the government-wide
statements and proprietary funds, the Township reports the full accrual cost equal to
the current year required contribution, adjusted for interest and “adjustment to the
ARC” on the  beginning of year underpaid amount, if any.
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Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave) - It is the Township's policy to
permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and vacation pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the Township does not have
a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the Township.
All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only for employee terminations as of year end. Typically, the
General Fund or the Water and Sewer Fund, based on whichever an employee is
assigned (and to which the employee's salary and wages are charged), will also be the
fund to liquidate any compensated absences.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability   

Fund Deficits - The Township has fund deficits in the Golf Fund and Downtown
Development Authority, which had unrestricted deficits of $459,444 and $97,813,
respectively, as of December 31, 2014.  The Township's governmental activities have a
deficit in unrestricted net position at the government-wide level, but a positive
unreserved fund balance at the fund level.  This net position deficit is caused primarily by
the net OPEB obligation in the governmental activities.

Construction Code Fees - The Township oversees building construction, in
accordance with the State's Construction Code Act, including inspection of building
construction and renovation to ensure compliance with the building codes. The
Township charges fees for these services.  The law requires that collection of these fees
be used only for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead
costs. A summary of the current year activity and the cumulative surplus or shortfall
generated since January 1, 2000 is as follows

Shortfall at January 1, 2014 $ (1,013,692)
Current year permit revenue 863,192
Related expenses:

Direct costs $ 455,129
Estimated indirect costs 190,281 645,410

Cumulative shortfall at December 31, 2014 $ (795,910)
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Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes
local governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured
banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan.  The
local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the
United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase
agreements; bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated
within the two highest classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the
date of purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which
are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that
are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 

The Township has designated four banks for the deposit of its funds.  The investment
policy adopted by the board in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized
investment in bonds and securities of the United States government and bank accounts
and CDs, but not the remainder of state statutory authority as listed above. The
Township's deposits and investment policies are in accordance with statutory authority.

The Township's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are
examined in more detail below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the Township's deposits may not be returned to it. The
Township does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the
Township had $13,129,008 of bank deposits (certificates of deposit, checking and
savings accounts) that were uninsured and uncollateralized.  The Township believes that
due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is
impractical to insure all deposits. As a result, the Township evaluates each financial
institution with which it deposits funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution;
only those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories.
The component units had a bank balance of $1,073,827.  The federal depository
insurance coverage pertains to all of the deposits of the Township; hence, the specific
coverage pertaining to the component units, if any, is not determinable.

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The Township has no
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. As of year end, the
Township had no investments in commercial paper.

Interest Rate Risk - The Township owns no investment securities with fixed maturity
dates. The Township's investment policy has no restrictions on maturity lengths (other
than that found in state law, described above).
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred inflows of
resources are as follows:

Governmental
Funds

Governmental
Activities

Property taxes levied for the next fiscal year $ 6,852,862 $ 6,852,862
Refunds and other payments (amounts not collected

within 60 days) 613,019 -

Total deferred inflows $ 7,465,881 $ 6,852,862

Note 5 - Capital Assets  

Capital asset activity of the Township's governmental and business-type activities was as
follows:

Governmental Activities

Balance 
January 1, 2014 Additions Disposals

Balance 
December 31, 2014

Capital assets not being depreciated - Land $ 3,732,029 $ - $ (156,018) $ 3,576,011
Construction in progress - 164,177 - 164,177

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 14,547,288 - (750) 14,546,538
Sidewalks 1,205,525 - - 1,205,525
Road improvements 815,902 - - 815,902
Furnishings, vehicles, and equipment 7,502,829 757,821 (416,014) 7,844,636

Subtotal 24,071,544 757,821 (416,764) 24,412,601

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 4,072,943 398,335 - 4,471,278
Sidewalks 432,552 48,221 - 480,773
Road improvements 101,985 20,397 - 122,382
Furnishings, vehicles, and equipment 5,675,391 485,119 (395,690) 5,764,820

Subtotal 10,282,871 952,072 (395,690) 10,839,253

Net capital assets being depreciated 13,788,673 (194,251) (21,074) 13,573,348

Net capital assets $ 17,520,702 $ (30,074) $ (177,092) $ 17,313,536
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Business-type Activities

Balance 
January 1, 2014 Additions Disposals

Balance 
December 31, 2014

Capital assets not being depreciated - Land $ 1,636,134 $ - $ - $ 1,636,134

Capital assets being depreciated:
Water and sewer transportation lines 53,499,918 45,127 - 53,545,045
Buildings and improvements 4,815,482 - - 4,815,482
Meters and supplies 1,868,658 - - 1,868,658

Equipment and other 2,436,851 154,081 - 2,590,932

Subtotal 62,620,909 199,208 - 62,820,117

Accumulated depreciation:
Water and sewer transportation lines 25,366,390 1,058,629 - 26,425,019
Buildings and improvements 2,116,124 107,205 - 2,223,329
Meters and supplies 1,090,734 86,052 - 1,176,786

Equipment and other 1,176,065 210,613 - 1,386,678

Subtotal 29,749,313 1,462,499 - 31,211,812

Net capital assets being depreciated 32,871,596 (1,263,291) - 31,608,305

Net capital assets $ 34,507,730 $ (1,263,291) $ - $ 33,244,439

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 254,914
Police 249,720
Fire 168,056
Dispatching 74,439
Building inspections 15,893
Planning and zoning 2,284
Public works 68,618
Parks 118,148

Total governmental activities $ 952,072

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer $ 1,362,554
Solid waste disposal 1,061
Golf 98,884

Total business-type activities $ 1,462,499
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The composition of interfund balances is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Due to/from Other Funds

General Fund Water and Sewer Fund $ 18,587

Improvement Revolving Fund Golf Fund 3,714

Drug Forfeiture Fund General Fund 14,487

Water and Sewer Fund Improvement Revolving Fund 18,429
Golf Fund 9,320

Total Water and Sewer
Fund 27,749

Solid Waste Disposal Fund Water and Sewer Fund 113,927

Golf Fund General Fund 2,687

Total $ 181,151

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Advances to Other Funds
General Fund Golf Fund $ 500,000

Water and Sewer Fund Special Assessment Fund $ 1,831,055

These balances result from the time lag between the dates that goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and payments between funds are made.

The transfer from the General Fund to the Improvement Revolving Fund represents the
annual amount set aside to fund debt payments. 

Advances - The long-term advance from the General Fund to the Golf Fund is to cover
operations and debt payments. Repayment of the loan will began in 2015 with an
interest rate of 4 percent being charged to the Golf Fund. The long term advance from
the Water and Sewer Fund to the Special Assessment Fund is to cover the cost of
special assessment projects and will be repaid with an interest rate of 4%
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The long-term advance from the General Fund to the Downtown Development
Authority is to cover capital improvements. Repayment of the loan began in 2014 with
an interest rate of 4 percent being charged to the Downtown Development Authority.

Note 7 - Long-term Debt    

The Township issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds and installment purchase agreements are
direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the Township.

Description Amount

Governmental Activities:
General obligations:

2003 installment purchase agreement originally issued for $1,173,773, used for
Lake Pointe Soccer Park, bearing interest at 3.60%, with principal maturity
of $59,640 due in 2015 $ 59,640

2006 general obligation bond originally issued for $995,000, used to construct
the underpass at Sheldon Road, bearing interest from 4% to 4.4%, with
principal maturity ranges from $50,000 to $100,000, maturing in 2026 800,000

2009 limited tax general obligation capital improvement bonds originally issued
for $350,000, used to pay the costs of acquiring, constructing, and equipping
a new parks and recreation building, bearing interest from 3.0% to 5.0%, 
with principal maturity ranges from $14,000 to $28,000, maturing in 2030,
shown net of bond discount and issue costs 315,000

2011 installment purchase agreement originally issued for $606,150, used to pay
the costs of acquiring the property at Five Mile Road, bearing interest at
3.10%, with principal maturity ranges from $58,091 to $67,790, maturing in
2021 429,275

2012 general obligation limited tax refunding bonds, used to advance refund
$4,400,000 of outstanding 2004 general obligation bonds, bearing interest at
2.0% to 4.0%, with principal maturity ranges from $30,000 to $435,000,
maturing in 2025 4,710,634

2013 general obligation limited tax capital improvement bonds, used for various
Township park improvements, bearing interest at 2.16%, with principal
maturity ranges from $103,342 to $133,736, maturing in 2024 1,057,737

Total governmental activities $ 7,372,286
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Business-type Activities:
General obligations:

2009 limited tax general obligation capital improvement bonds originally issued
for $2,150,000, used to pay the costs of acquiring, constructing, and
installing water supply and sewage disposal system capital improvements,
bearing interest from 3.0% to 5.0%, with principal maturity ranges from
$86,000 to $172,000, maturing in 2030, shown net of bond discount and
issue costs $ 1,935,000

2011 installment purchase agreement originally issued for $321,221, used to pay
the costs of acquiring a Vactor sewer cleaning machine, bearing interest at
2.65%, with principal maturity ranges from $12,524 to $49,277, maturing in
2018 156,534

2011 installment purchase agreement originally issued for $452,417, used to pay
the costs of acquiring golf carts and golf course lawn maintenance
equipment, bearing interest at 2.85%, with principal maturity ranges from
$35,382 to $69,275, maturing in 2018 237,477

2013 general obligation limited tax bonds, used for various water and sewer
system improvements, bearing interest at 2.16%, with principal maturity
ranges from $34,895 to $45,158, maturing in 2024 357,158

2013 general obligation limited tax capital improvement bonds, used for various
golf course improvements, bearing interest at 2.16%, with principal maturity
ranges from $31,763 to $41,105, maturing in 2024 325,104

Total business-type activities $ 3,011,273

Long-term debt activity can be summarized as follows:
Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
General obligations $ 7,688,360 $ - $ 596,708 $ 7,091,652 $ 615,073
Unamortized bond premium 306,146 - 25,512 280,634 25,512

Total bonds payable 7,994,506 - 622,220 7,372,286 640,585

Compensated absences 1,113,323 525,834 489,519 1,149,638 510,246

Total governmental activities $ 9,107,829 $ 525,834 $ 1,111,739 $ 8,521,924 $ 1,150,831

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due Within
One Year

Business-type Activities
General obligations $ 3,226,373 $ - $ 215,100 $ 3,011,273 $ 264,850
Compensated absences 159,267 88,729 69,412 178,584 78,521

Total business-type activities $ 3,385,640 $ 88,729 $ 284,512 $ 3,189,857 $ 343,371
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations
are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Years Ending
December 31 Principal* Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 615,073 $ 217,967 $ 833,040 $ 264,850 $ 111,721 $ 376,571
2016 555,294 200,809 756,103 269,946 104,242 374,188
2017 610,213 186,420 796,633 275,131 96,393 371,524
2018 605,190 172,153 777,343 206,470 88,206 294,676
2019 655,228 156,413 811,641 160,500 82,512 243,012

2020-2024 3,233,654 469,922 3,703,576 931,377 313,234 1,244,611
2025-2029 789,000 41,085 830,085 731,000 140,180 871,180
2029-2030 28,000 700 28,700 171,999 4,300 176,299

Total $ 7,091,652 $ 1,445,469 $ 8,537,121 $ 3,011,273 $ 940,788 $ 3,952,061

  * Excludes the $280,634 of unamortized premiums.

Note 8 - Risk Management    

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors
and omissions, and employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical
benefits provided to employees. The Township participates in the Michigan Municipal
League risk pool for claims relating to workers' compensation and employee medical
benefit claims, and participates in the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority for
claims relating to general liability claims.

The Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (the "Authority") risk pool program
operates as a claims servicing pool for amounts up to member retention limits, and
operates as a common risk-sharing management program for losses in excess of
member retention amounts. Premiums are paid annually to the Authority and are used
to pay claims up to the retention limits; the ultimate liability for those claims remains
with the Township.
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 8 - Risk Management (Continued)

The Township estimates the liability for general liability claims that have been incurred
through the end of the fiscal year, including claims that have been reported as well as
those that have not yet been reported, and reports them in the statement of net
position (included in accrued liabilities and other). Changes in the estimated liability for
the past two fiscal years were as follows:

2014 2013

Unpaid claims - Beginning of year $ 61,500 $ 16,050

Incurred claims (including claims incurred but not
reported and adjustments of prior years' estimates) 105,523 99,549

Claim payments and expenses paid (97,523) (54,099)

Unpaid claims - End of year $ 69,500 $ 61,500

Note 9 - Defined Contribution Pension Plan     

The Township provides pension benefits to all of its full-time general office and DPW
employees through a defined contribution plan (police and fire personnel are provided a
defined benefit plan, as discussed in the following note) administered by John Hancock.
In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the
plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate from the date of
employment. As established by the Township board resolution, the Township
contributes 15 percent of employees' base earnings and certain employees contribute
5 percent of base earnings, with an additional 5 percent allowed.

The current year contribution was calculated based on covered payroll of $2,197,463,
resulting in an employer contribution of $329,620 and employee contributions of
$79,534.

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan    

Plan Description - The Township participates in the Municipal Employees' Retirement
System of Michigan, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
all police and fire union employees plus certain command officers. The system provides
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplemental information for the
system. That report may be obtained by writing to the system at 1134 Municipal Way,
Lansing, MI 48917.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Funding Policy - The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these
employees was established by negotiation with the Township's collective bargaining
units.  The police agreement require the first 2 percent contribution to be made by the
employee, the next 13.5 percent by the employer, the next 5 percent by the employee,
and any remaining to be paid by the employer. The fire and dispatch agreements require
the first 10 percent contribution to be paid by the employee, and any excess by the
employer.

Annual Pension Cost - For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Township's annual
pension cost of $583,883 for the plan was equal to the Township's required and actual
contribution. The annual required contribution was determined by the actuarial
valuation dated December 31, 2012.

The valuations used the entry age normal cost method.  Significant actuarial assumptions
used include (a) an 8 percent investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of
4.5 percent per year, (c) additional projected salary increases of 0 percent to 13.0
percent per year, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) no cost of living adjustments.
Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 4.5 percent. The actuarial value of
assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility
over a four-year period. The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of payroll on an average of a 20-year closed basis (the amortization period is
re-established with each valuation).

Three-year Trend Information - The plan's three most recent actuarial valuations are
summarized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended December 31
2012 2013 2014

Annual pension cost (APC) $ 554,612 $ 489,480 $ 583,883
Percentage of APC contributed %100 %100 %100

2012 2013 2014

Police and fire unions combined:
   Actuarial value of assets $ 18,328,028 $ 19,341,273 $ 20,197,256
   Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 24,236,207 $ 25,975,895 $ 26,382,843
   Unfunded AAL (UAAL) $ 5,908,179 $ 6,634,622 $ 6,185,587
   Funded ratio 75.6% 74.5% 76.6
   Covered payroll $ 3,778,240 $ 3,814,924 $ 3,887,319
   UAAL as a percentage of covered

payroll 156.4% 173.9% 159.1%
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 11 - Defined Contribution Retiree Health care   

The Township provides a health savings account to all of its full-time employees hired
after certain dates (which vary by employee group). For eligible employees hired after
those dates, the Township provides a defined benefit retiree health care plan, as
discussed in the following note. This is a defined contribution plan administered by the
Township. The benefits are provided under collective bargaining agreements. The
Township is required to contribute $50 per pay period for each participating employee;
the participants are not required to contribute. Plan members are fully vested after 10
years. 

During the year ended December 31, 2014 the Township made contributions of
$17,700 to the plan. 

Note 12 - Defined Benefit Retiree Health Care     

Plan Description - The Township provides retiree healthcare benefits to eligible
employees hired prior to certain dates (which vary from 2009 to 2012, dependent on
employee group), and their beneficiaries. This is a single-employer defined benefit plan
administered by the Township. The benefits are provided under collective bargaining
agreements. 

Funding Policy - The collective bargaining agreements do not require a contribution
from employees. The Township has no obligation to make contributions in advance of
when the insurance premiums are due for payment (in other words, this may be
financed on a “pay-as-you-go” basis).

Funding Progress - For the year beginning December 31, 2014, the Township has
estimated the cost of providing retiree healthcare benefits through an actuarial valuation
as of December 31, 2014. The valuation computes an annual required contribution
which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not
to exceed 30 years. This valuation’s computed contribution and actual funding are
summarized as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 12 - Defined Benefit Retiree Health Care  (Continued)

Annual required contribution (recommended) $ 1,339,551
Interest on the prior year's net OPEB obligation 375,984
Less adjustment to the annual required contribution (613,268)

Annual OPEB cost 1,102,267

Amounts contributed - Payments of current premiums (625,445)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 476,822

OPEB obligation - Beginning of year 9,399,571

OPEB obligation - End of year $ 9,876,393

The schedule of employer contributions and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal years
ended December 31 is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Actuarial Valuation Date
Annual OPEB

Cost
Percentage
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obligation

12/31/12 12/31/12 $ 1,576,591 %39.0 $ 8,452,166
12/31/13 12/31/13 1,553,101 39.0 9,399,571
12/31/14 12/31/14 1,102,267 57.0 9,876,393

The funding progress of the plan as of the most recent valuation date is as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
(b)

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

(b-a)

Funded Ratio
(Percent)

(a/b)

Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

12/31/12 $ - $ 21,475,601 $ 21,475,601 %- $ 6,838,000 %314.1
12/31/13 - 20,942,686 20,942,686 - 6,062,927 345.4
12/31/14 - 15,695,066 15,695,066 - 5,844,899 268.5

The decline in AAL is attributable primarily to two factors: integration of retiree health
care benefits with Medicare after age 65; and general premium reductions.  

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future.
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December 31, 2014

Note 12 - Defined Benefit Retiree Health Care  (Continued)

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation, the level dollar actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term investment return on
Township (employer) assets, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5 percent
initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent after three years.
Both rates included a 3.0 percent inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized as
a level dollar on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2014 was 24 years.

Note 13 - Commitments - Brownfield Redevelopment Authority     

Brownfield redevelopment costs of approximately $66,000 have been incurred by
property owners in the Brownfield district. These costs will be paid through future
property tax collections. The Township is not responsible for costs incurred in excess of
property taxes captured.

Note 14 - Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements   

In June 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions.  Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined
benefit pensions to recognize their unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability for
the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs
of pension benefits. This net pension liability that will be recorded on the government-
wide, proprietary and discretely presented component units statements will be
computed differently than the current unfunded actuarial accrued liability, using specific
parameters set forth by the GASB. The Statement also enhances accountability and
transparency through revised note disclosures and required supplementary information
(RSI).  The Township is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the
financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Note 14 - Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements  (Continued)

In February 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The requirements of this
Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by
requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and
more detailed definition of fair value and acceptable valuation techniques. This
Statement also will enhance fair value application guidance and related disclosures in
order to provide information to financial statement users about the impact of fair value
measurements on a government’s financial position.  GASB Statement No. 72 is
required to be adopted for years beginning after June 15, 2015. The Township is
currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when
adopted, during the Township's 2016 fiscal year. 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses reporting by
governments that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) to
their employees and for governments that finance OPEB for employees of other
governments.  This OPEB standard will require the Township to recognize on the face
of the financial statements its net OPEB liability. The Statement also enhances
accountability and transparency through revised note disclosures and required
supplementary information (RSI).   The Township is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this
statement are effective for the Township’s financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2018.
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Required Supplemental Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Budget
Amended

Budget Actual

Variance with
Amended

Budget
Revenue

Property taxes $ 6,700,000 $ 6,700,000 $ 6,709,837 $ 9,837
Licenses and permits 702,000 767,000 863,192 96,192
Federal grants 223,000 849,025 591,904 (257,121)
State-shared revenue and grants 2,188,000 2,188,000 2,106,621 (81,379)
Charges for services: 

Intragovernmental service charge 670,000 693,450 717,128 23,678
City of Plymouth 305,000 325,000 318,672 (6,328)

District court fines 200,000 200,000 196,410 (3,590)
Interest and rents 45,000 85,000 24,243 (60,757)
Other revenue: 

Cable franchise fees 650,000 650,000 635,253 (14,747)
Other charges for services 125,000 100,000 81,137 (18,863)
Other miscellaneous income 765,000 915,000 684,647 (230,353)

Total revenue 12,573,000 13,472,475 12,929,044 (543,431)

Expenditures - Current
General government 3,083,873 3,263,961 2,999,749 264,212
Public safety 7,930,906 8,792,927 8,052,839 740,088
Public works 410,197 469,784 455,129 14,655
Community services 95,000 175,000 169,462 5,538
Planning and zoning 165,172 169,722 147,687 22,035
Parks 506,773 558,938 430,804 128,134

Total expenditures 12,191,921 13,430,332 12,255,670 1,174,662

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 381,079 42,143 673,374 631,231

Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 
Transfers out (723,951) (523,951) (523,951) -

Net Change in Fund Balance (342,872) (481,808) 149,423 631,231

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 3,660,877 3,660,877 3,660,877 -

Fund Balance - End of year $ 3,318,005 $ 3,179,069 $ 3,810,300 $ 631,231
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Required Supplemental Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Major Special Revenue Fund  -

Improvement Revolving Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Budget
Amended

Budget Actual

Variance with
Amended

Budget
Revenue

Grants and other $ 524,059 $ 224,059 $ - $ (224,059)
Interest and rents 6,000 12,000 11,153 (847)

Total revenue 530,059 236,059 11,153 (224,906)

Expenditures - Current
Capital outlay 1,765,000 765,000 252,902 512,098
Debt service 790,000 799,000 837,460 (38,460)

Total expenditures 2,555,000 1,564,000 1,090,362 473,638

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (2,024,941) (1,327,941) (1,079,209) 248,732

Other Financing Sources 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,497,350 (2,650)
Transfers in 523,951 523,951 523,951 -

Total other financing
sources 2,023,951 2,023,951 2,021,301 (2,650)

Net Change in Fund Balance (990) 696,010 942,092 246,082

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 1,240,149 1,240,149 1,240,149 -

Fund Balance - End of year $ 1,239,159 $ 1,936,159 $ 2,182,241 $ 246,082
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Note to Required Supplemental Information
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Note - Budgetary Information

The Township adopts a formal budget for the General Fund and all special revenue
funds. The budget is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. By August 1 of each year, all department heads submit spending requests to
the Township supervisor so that a budget may be prepared.  Before September 1, the
proposed budget is submitted to the Township board for review.  Public hearings are
held, and a final budget is adopted no later than December 31. The Township board
must approve any budget amendments.

Appropriations are adopted by the Township board on an activity basis for the General
Fund, as reported on the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule.
Appropriations for all other budgeted funds are adopted at the fund level. Michigan law
requires expenditures to be within budget at this level.  All expenditures were within
the amounts budgeted.

During the current year, the budget was amended in a legally permissible manner.
Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts (or purchase
orders) for goods or services. The amount of encumbrances outstanding at
December 31, 2014 has not been calculated.  Unexpended appropriations lapse at year
end; encumbrances are not included as expenditures.
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Required Supplemental Information
OPEB System Schedule

Year Ended December 31, 2014

The schedule of funding progress is as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
(b)

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

(b-a)

Funded Ratio
(Percent)

(a/b)

Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

12/31/12 $ - $ 21,475,601 $ 21,475,601 - $ 6,838,000 314.1
12/31/13 - 20,942,686 20,942,686 - 6,062,927 345.4
12/31/14 - 15,695,066 15,695,066 - 5,844,899 268.5
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Required Supplemental Information
Pension System Schedule - Police Officers and Firefighters

Retirement System
Year Ended June 30, 2014

The schedule of funding progress is as follows:

Actuarial Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
(b)

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

(b-a)

Funded Ratio
(Percent)

(a/b)

Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

12/31/09 $ 13,109,811 $ 19,305,672 $ 6,195,861 %67.9 $ 4,781,800 %129.6
12/31/10 14,448,776 19,048,692 4,599,916 75.9 4,757,684 96.7
12/31/11 15,864,293 20,469,237 4,604,944 77.5 4,142,812 111.2
12/31/12 18,328,028 24,236,207 5,908,179 75.6 3,778,240 156.4
12/31/13 19,341,273 25,975,895 6,634,622 74.5 3,814,924 173.9
12/31/14 20,197,256 26,382,843 6,185,587 76.6 3,887,319 159.1

The schedule of employer contributions is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage
Contributed

12/31/09 $ 637,764 %100.0
12/31/10 663,468 100.0
12/31/11 577,569 100.0
12/31/12 554,612 100.0
12/31/13 489,480 100.0
12/31/14 583,883 100.0

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of
December 31, 2014.  Additional information on assumptions used in the study is as follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percent, closed
Amortization period (perpetual) 20
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions

Investment rate of return* 8.0%
Projected salary increases* 4.5%
*Includes inflation at 4.5%
Additional salary increases attributable to seniority/merit 0% to 13.0%
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Funds

Federal Drug
Forfeiture

Fund

State Drug
Forfeiture

Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 161,355 $ 25,679 $ 187,034
Receivables - Other 635 - 635
Due from other funds 14,487 - 14,487
Prepaid expenses 1,302 - 1,302

Total assets 177,779 25,679 203,458

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 23,795 $ - $ 23,795
Accrued liabilities and other 3,896 - 3,896
Unearned revenue 635 - 635

Total liabilities 28,326 - 28,326

Fund Balances
Nonspendable - Prepaids 1,302 - 1,302
Restricted - Drug enforcement 148,151 25,679 173,830

Total fund balances 149,453 25,679 175,132

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 177,779 $ 25,679 $ 203,458
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Funds

Federal Drug
Forfeiture

Fund

State Drug
Forfeiture

Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Revenue
Federal grants $ 9,299 $ - $ 9,299
State-shared revenue and grants - 8,232 8,232
Interest and rents 2,633 371 3,004

Total revenue 11,932 8,603 20,535

Expenditures

Current:
Public safety 208,900 - 208,900

Capital outlay 257,991 - 257,991

Total expenditures 466,891 - 466,891

Net Change in Fund Balances (454,959) 8,603 (446,356)

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 604,412 17,076 621,488

Fund Balances - End of year $ 149,453 $ 25,679 $ 175,132
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Downtown Development Authority

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Modified
Accrual

Full Accrual
Adjustments Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,013 $ - $ 78,013
Receivables - Property taxes receivable 248,516 - 248,516

Total assets $ 326,529 $ - $ 326,529

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 826 $ - $ 826
Advance from primary government - 175,000 175,000

Total liabilities 826 175,000 175,826

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes levied for the following year 248,516 - 248,516

Equity
Fund balance - Unassigned 77,187 (77,187) -
Net position (Deficit) - Unrestricted - (97,813) (97,813)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and equity $ 326,529 $ - $ 326,529
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Downtown Development Authority

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances/Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Modified
Accrual

Full Accrual
Adjustments Total

Revenue
Property taxes $ 254,749 $ - $ 254,749
Interest and rents 246 - 246

Total revenue 254,995 - 254,995

Expenditures - Current - Other contract
services 219,479 (125,000) 94,479

Surplus (shortfall) 35,516 125,000 160,516

Change in Fund Balance/Net Position 35,516 125,000 160,516

Fund Balance/Net Position (Deficit) -
Beginning of year 41,671 (300,000) (258,329)

Fund Balance/Net Position (Deficit) - End of
year $ 77,187 $ (175,000) $ (97,813)

5596



Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Modified Accrual
Full accrual
adjustments Total

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,592,107 $ - $ 1,592,107

Liabilities - Accounts payable $ 5,054 $ - $ 5,054

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Property taxes levied for the following
year 7,652 - 7,652

Equity
Fund Balance - Unassigned 1,579,401 (1,579,401)
Net Position - Unrestricted - 1,579,401 1,579,401

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balance $ 1,592,107 $ - $ 1,592,107
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

 Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in
 Fund Balance/Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Modified
Accrual

Full Accrual
Adjustments Total

Revenue - General revenue
Property taxes $ 18,487 $ - $ 18,487
Interest earnings 4,532 - 4,532
Other revenue 325 - 325

Total revenue 23,344 - 23,344

Expenditures - Current - Environmental
remediation 5,969 - 5,969

Change in Fund Balance/Net Position 17,375 - 17,375

Fund Balance/Net Position - Beginning of year 1,562,026 - 1,562,026

Fund Balance/Net Position - End of year $ 1,579,401 $ - $ 1,579,401
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2014

Agency Funds

General Agency
Tax Collection

Fund
Total Agency

Funds

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents $ 369,405 $ 1,943,858 $ 2,313,263

Liabilities
Due to other governmental units $ - $ 1,943,858 $ 1,943,858
Refundable deposits - Bonds 369,405 - 369,405

Total liabilities $ 369,405 $ 1,943,858 $ 2,313,263
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Charter Township of Plymouth

Other Supplemental Information
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Balance at
January 1, 2014 Additions Reductions

Balance at
December 31,

2014
Agency Funds

Assets - Cash and investments $ 220,246 $ 555,691 $ (406,532) $ 369,405

Liabilities
Due to other governmental units $ 1,317 $ 126,454 $ (126,824) $ 947
Refundable deposits and bonds 218,929 480,355 (330,826) 368,458

Total liabilities $ 220,246 $ 606,809 $ (457,650) $ 369,405

Tax Collection Fund

Assets - Cash and investments $ 4,478,168 $ 59,452,116 $ (61,986,426) $ 1,943,858

Liabilities - Due to other governmental
units $ 4,478,168 $ 59,452,116 $ (61,986,426) $ 1,943,858

Total - All Trust and Agency Funds

Assets - Cash and investments $ 4,698,414 $ 60,008,807 $ (62,392,958) $ 2,314,263

Liabilities
Due to other governmental units $ 4,478,168 $ 59,453,116 $ (61,986,426) $ 1,944,858
Refundable deposits, bonds, etc. 220,246 606,809 (457,650) 369,405

Total liabilities $ 4,698,414 $ 60,059,925 $ (62,444,076) $ 2,314,263
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Statistical Section 
 

This part of the Charter Township of Plymouth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplemental information says about the Township's 
overall financial health. 

The statistical section is organized into the following main categories: 

 Financial trends 

 Revenue capacity 

 Debt capacity 

 Demographic and economic information 

 Operating information 
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Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Township's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
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Financial Trends 
Net Position by Component 

(Unaudited) 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Governmental Activities
 Net investment in capital assets 13,623,525$   12,960,487$   12,633,385$   12,198,479$   11,260,220$   10,508,264$   10,661,482$   10,891,282$   
 Restricted             82,492 56,980            76,590            22,214            146,670          1,201,897       621,488          175,132          
Unrestricted        1,996,377 (666,990)         (2,625,443)      (3,104,484)      (3,903,498)      (5,038,669)      (5,662,857)      (4,703,445)      

 Total net position 15,702,394$ 12,350,477$ 10,084,532$ 9,116,209$   7,503,392$   6,671,492$   5,620,113$   6,362,969$   

Business-type Activities
 Net investment in capital assets  $   35,854,625  $   34,827,878  $   34,581,799  $   32,838,075  $   33,329,976  $   32,775,744  $   31,918,653  $   30,801,478 
Unrestricted       17,020,233 15,622,880     13,321,819     15,259,984     16,231,665     18,537,561     19,522,448     21,050,354     

 Total net position 52,874,858$ 50,450,758$ 47,903,618$ 48,098,059$ 49,561,641$ 51,313,305$ 51,441,101$ 51,851,832$ 

Primary Government in Total
 Net investment in capital assets  $   49,478,150  $   47,788,365  $   47,215,184  $   45,036,554  $   44,590,196  $   43,284,008  $   42,580,135  $   41,692,760 
 Restricted             82,492 56,980            76,590            22,214            146,670          1,201,897       621,488          175,132          
Unrestricted       19,016,610 14,955,890     10,696,376     12,155,500     12,328,167     13,498,892     13,859,591     16,346,909     

 Total net position 68,577,252$ 62,801,235$ 57,988,150$ 57,214,268$ 57,065,033$ 57,984,797$ 57,061,214$ 58,214,801$ 

As of December 31
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Financial Trends 
Changes in Governmental Net Position 

(Unaudited) 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Expenses
General government 2,897,089$    3,109,494$    3,271,591$    2,488,528$    2,330,524$    2,560,466$    2,354,981$    2,449,174$    
Fire services 4,106,463      4,892,427      4,742,587      4,848,334      3,867,588      3,689,812      3,232,956      3,064,395      
Dispatch services 1,060,695      1,250,727      1,215,837      1,101,460      1,101,180      1,070,985      922,855         1,170,226      
Police services 4,322,320      5,648,558      4,550,648      4,322,490      3,958,634      4,699,495      4,640,547      4,671,813      
Building inspections and related 493,407         472,205         441,429         384,457         394,286         397,577         420,566         433,182         
Planning and zoning 333,075         375,523         153,106         183,481         208,964         106,656         192,496         214,568         
Public works 223,464         273,368         302,614         172,363         459,226         173,534         124,294         257,453         
Community services 163,010         109,324         141,392         33,420           29,621           102,913         35,104           169,462         
Parks 412,821         461,683         410,883         458,276         404,407         455,480         385,328         544,905         
Interest on long-term debt 344,458         317,623         315,101         318,701         317,894         709,341         220,173         214,240         

Total governmental activities 14,356,802    16,910,932    15,545,188    14,311,510    13,072,324    13,966,259    12,529,300    13,189,418    

Program revenue:
Charges for services:

General government 214,051         197,916         250,423         514,819         187,286         202,382         478,036         334,122         
Fire services 1,054,601      1,180,589      1,032,730      1,027,083      1,164,927      138,127         71,687           108,918         
Dispatch services 488,848         401,081         433,951         417,675         493,083         553,018         435,517         473,013         
Police services 226,477         292,152         377,869         238,256         142,756         201,878         241,364         257,495         
Building inspections and related service 438,934         394,110         416,970         455,486         402,561         601,824         639,687         795,033         
Other activities 199,580         47,807           47,623           308,431         172,387         51,550           108,907         72,349           

Total charges for services 2,622,491      2,513,655      2,559,566      2,961,750      2,563,000      1,748,779      1,975,198      2,040,930      

Operating grants and contributions 312,080         190,303         364,110         440,986         428,078         1,896,115      127,974         636,491         
Capital grants and contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total program revenues 2,934,571      2,703,958      2,923,676      3,402,736      2,991,078      3,644,894      2,103,172      2,677,421      

Net expense (11,422,231)   (14,206,974)   (12,621,512)   (10,908,774)   (10,081,246)   (10,321,365)   (10,426,128)   (10,511,997)   

General Revenue
Property taxes 7,946,654      8,113,054      8,052,290      7,631,094      6,884,658      6,847,947      6,684,251      6,770,260      
State-shared revenue 2,017,997      2,070,429      1,785,365      1,749,463      1,951,837      2,017,173      2,056,963      2,144,620      
Golf course -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Investment earnings 567,348         318,608         70,031           68,302           50,811           31,742           34,817           38,400           
Franchise fees 368,834         373,532         451,074         486,251         524,616         592,603         592,527         635,253         
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 4,671             (20,566)         (3,193)           5,341             5,260             -                    6,191             1,508,230      

158,090         
Investment in joint venture - District court 24,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total general revenue 10,929,504    10,855,057    10,355,567    9,940,451      9,417,182      9,489,465      9,374,749      11,254,853    

Transfers -                    -                    -                    -                    (948,753)        -                    -                    -                    

Change in net position (492,727)$   ###### ###### (968,323)$   ###### (831,900)$   ###### 742,856$     

Fiscal Year Ended December 31
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Financial Trends 
Changes in Business-type Net Position 

(Unaudited) 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Operating Revenue
Sale of water 4,061,196$   3,809,188$    3,379,074$    3,773,169$   4,724,703$   4,998,104$   4,249,817$   4,040,827$   
Sewage disposal charges 5,161,768     4,876,822      5,016,391      6,296,491     6,749,204     7,301,188     6,668,099     6,450,894     
Meter charges 1,301,909     1,298,078      1,300,332      1,302,685     1,307,436     1,307,914     1,312,810     1,303,353     
Solid waste charges 1,323,239     1,348,643      1,353,840      1,360,603     1,364,872     1,140,738     1,373,822     1,374,298     
Installation fees 9,823           15,292           6,628             15,378         6,006            9,064            14,444          15,324          
Golf course fees and sales -                   -                    -                    -                   398,984        570,241        623,862        665,634        
Other charges for services 274,382        245,607         320,510         360,609        483,281        499,204        1,609,033     1,750,588     

Total operating revenue 12,132,317   11,593,630    11,376,775    13,108,935   15,034,486   15,826,453   15,851,887   15,600,918   

Operating Expenses
Cost of water produced/purchased 2,663,073     3,407,406      2,839,245      3,082,089     3,494,226     3,778,017     3,467,927     3,589,379     
Cost of sewage treatment 3,386,084     4,444,202      6,234,801      5,284,129     5,719,358     3,297,624     2,862,230     3,117,523     
Solid waste disposal 1,119,463     1,169,261      1,241,751      1,189,001     1,167,045     1,150,373     1,176,808     1,224,366     
Operation costs 2,603,456     2,749,078      2,458,978      2,138,166     2,697,492     4,535,486     6,824,179     6,519,923     
Depreciation 1,182,862     1,221,139      1,247,090      1,297,510     1,436,228     1,378,046     1,452,874     1,462,499     

Total operating expenses 10,954,938   12,991,086    14,021,865    12,990,895   14,514,349   14,139,546   15,784,018   15,913,690   

Operating Income (Loss) 1,177,379     (1,397,456)     (2,645,090)     118,040        520,137        1,686,907     67,869          (312,772)       

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Investment income 515,948        316,030         68,211           64,677         43,185          29,703          22,933          86,488          
Interest expense (1,683,138)   (1,597,559)     (12,941)          (105,683)      (117,488)       (178,911)       (124,896)       (117,056)       
Gain on sale of assets -                   -                    18,575           -                   5,280            -                   -                   -                   

(Loss) Income - Before contributions 10,189         (2,678,985)     (2,571,245)     77,034         451,114        1,537,699     (34,094)         (343,340)       

Capital Contributions
Benefit fees 348,352        254,885         24,105           117,407        63,715          213,965        161,890        754,071        
Lines constructed by developers 93,309         -                    -                    -                   948,753        -                   -                   -                   

Total capital contributions 441,661        254,885         24,105           117,407        1,012,468     213,965        161,890        754,071        

Change in net position 451,850$    (2,424,100)$ (2,547,140)$ 194,441$    1,463,582$ 1,751,664$ 127,796$    410,731$    

Fiscal Year Ended December 31

 
 

 
Note: Prior to 2009, the Township reported its allocation of the debt issued by WTUA as a liability, separately from its reporting of its share 

of WTUA’s total assets. During 2009, it began reporting the net investment in the joint venture. As a result, the amounts reported in 
prior years as interest expense are now reported as part of the change in investment in WTUA, which is a component of the cost of 
sewage disposal. 
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General Fund
Nonspendable -   $               -   $              -   $              -   $              -   $              
Unassigned -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   
Reserved 759,178         997,706        761,996        538,752        291,446        
Unreserved 2,377,019      996,713        1,605,861     1,887,757     2,060,432     

Total General Fund 3,136,197      1,994,419     2,367,857     2,426,509     2,351,878     

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   
Restricted - Drug forfeitures -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   
Restricted - Capital improvements
Assigned - Capital improvements -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   
Reserved 1,489,607      975,297        1,700,232     52,852          76,590          
Unreserved, reported in special

revenue funds 1,545,558      1,037,627     128,197        754,851        431,792        

Total all other governmental
funds 3,035,165      2,012,924     1,828,429     807,703        508,382        

Total fund balance, all
governmental funds 6,171,362$  4,007,343$ 4,196,286$ 3,234,212$ 2,860,260$ 

* Fund balance classifications were changed as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 54  
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Financial Trends 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - Last Ten Years 

 (Unaudited)   

2010 2011* 2012* 2013* 2014*

-   $              115,746$      590,940$      910,037$      801,726$      
-                   3,350,696     2,705,260     2,750,840     3,008,574     

95,708          -                   -                   -                   -                   
3,007,056     -                   -                   -                   -                   

3,102,764     3,466,442     3,296,200     3,660,877     3,810,300     

-                   116               122               67                1,302            
-                   146,554        1,201,775     621,421        173,830        

1,135,286     950,032        
-                   188,027        229,762        104,863        1,232,209     

22,214          -                   -                   -                   
-                   

335,859        -                   -                   -                   -                   

358,073        334,697        1,431,659     1,861,637     2,357,373     

3,460,837$ 3,801,139$ 4,727,859$ 5,522,514$ 6,167,673$  
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 2005  2006  2007  2008 

Revenue
Property taxes 6,027,556$    7,644,192$     7,946,654$   8,113,054$   
Licenses and permits 1,123,472      953,336          502,153        471,250        
Federal grants 403,257         51,763            143,962        90,949          
State-shared revenue and grants 2,029,620      2,008,623       2,017,997     2,070,429     
City of Plymouth contribution 1,155,681      1,139,588       1,268,226     1,301,050     
Intergovernmental charges for services 502,196         534,369          108,127        167,700        
Fines and forfeitures 143,516         124,379          609,730        378,570        
Interest and rentals 760,860         659,548          518,495        497,794        
Other 2,927,894      1,172,264       1,200,980     999,476        

Total revenue 15,074,052    14,288,062     14,316,324   14,090,272   

Expenditures
Current:

General government 2,995,556      2,992,189       3,106,860     3,561,006     
Public safety 8,341,650      8,615,415       8,989,323     8,892,444     
Planning and building 899,607         895,970          780,490        680,880        
Public works -                    -                     -                   -                   
Community social services 162,366         65,669            84,635         83,199          
Parks 353,065         271,395          286,625        306,713        
Capital outlay 6,084,903      6,043,256       244,125        961,910        

Debt service principal 174,105         257,175          290,893        248,571        
Debt service interest 315,704         306,012          344,458        317,623        

Total expenditures 19,326,956    19,447,081     14,127,409   15,052,346   

Excess of Revenue (Under) Over Expenditures (4,252,904)     (5,159,019)      188,915        (962,074)       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of debt -                    995,000          -                   -                   
Sale of fixed assets -                    2,000,000       28                -                   
Transfers in 1,159,946      2,342,680       473,745        473,651        
Transfers out (1,159,946)     (2,342,680)      (473,745)      (473,651)       
Payment to bond refunding escrow agent -                    -                     -                   -                   

Total other financing sources -                    2,995,000       28                -                   

Net Change in Fund Balances (4,252,904)     (2,164,019)      188,943        (962,074)       

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 10,424,266    6,171,362       4,007,343     4,196,286     

Fund Balances - End of year 6,171,362$  4,007,343$   4,196,286$ 3,234,212$ 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 2.4% 2.5% 2.9% 4.5%

Year Ended December 31
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Financial Trends 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

(Unaudited) 

 2009  2010  2011  2012  2013  2014 

7,989,775$   7,568,643$   6,822,298$   6,785,512$    6,621,720$   6,709,837$   
448,178        473,989        459,854        642,541         730,384        1,008,192     
20,652          393,087        96,833          1,865,571      88,321          601,203        

1,785,365     1,749,463     1,951,837     2,017,173      2,056,963     2,114,853     
1,260,721     1,225,909     1,275,653     673,296         636,089        717,128        

510,007        451,973        467,783        311,799         152,504        318,672        
75,715          149,998        91,778          96,576           189,509        196,410        

558,501        583,434        681,967        31,742           34,817          38,400          
850,995        1,100,468     1,180,629     1,320,780      1,602,262     1,401,037     

13,499,909   13,696,964   13,028,632   13,744,990    12,112,569   13,105,732   

3,405,503     2,812,725     2,653,991     2,855,866      2,859,697     2,999,749     
8,644,016     8,717,146     8,050,395     7,925,466      7,571,673     8,261,739     

581,198        530,214        516,493        522,177         551,758        455,129        
-                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                   

141,392        33,420          29,621          102,913         35,104          317,149        
291,675        319,751        279,790        337,071         265,347        430,804        
557,429        58,091          1,097,184     422,546         416,732        510,893        
277,361        317,772        353,721        448,048         553,639        
326,287        312,743        317,440        303,479         255,814        837,460        

14,224,861   13,101,862   13,298,635   12,917,566    12,509,764   13,812,923   

(724,952)       595,102        (270,003)       827,424         (397,195)       (707,191)       

350,000        -                   606,150        4,881,658      1,155,000     -                   
1,000            5,475            4,155            2,389             36,850          1,497,350     

473,951        583,991        823,991        723,951         723,951        523,951        
(473,951)       (583,991)       (823,991)       (723,951)        (723,951)       (523,951)       

-                   -                   -                   (4,784,751)     -                   -                   

351,000        5,475            610,305        99,296           1,191,850     1,497,350     

(373,952)       600,577        340,302        926,720         794,655        790,159        

3,234,212     2,860,260     3,460,837     3,801,139      4,727,859     5,522,514     

2,860,260$ 3,460,837$ 3,801,139$ 4,727,859$  5,522,514$ 6,312,673$ 

3.8% 4.8% 5.0% 5.8% 6.5% 6.1%

Year Ended December 31

 

D
R
A
FT

109



 

  65 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revenue Capacity 
 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Township's most significant 
local revenue source, the property tax. 
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Taxable Value by Property Type

Real Property

Tax 

Year  Residential  Commercial  Industrial  Tax Abated 

2004 2005 1,164,579,849       125,033,365    284,295,261    103,778,700  230,142,858    1,907,830,033    
2005 2006 1,213,596,955       134,280,330    298,255,476    107,306,010  243,988,510    1,997,427,281    
2006 2007 1,264,079,620       145,375,770    319,265,268    110,838,210  210,243,035    2,049,801,903    
2007 2008 1,309,575,980       152,280,150    340,353,880    139,612,750  220,805,600    2,162,628,360    
2008 2009 1,287,158,260       157,509,086    357,190,990    130,010,050  208,869,880    2,140,738,266    
2009 2010 1,223,966,176       160,251,020    355,403,830    120,875,390  215,255,900    2,075,752,316    
2010 2011 1,104,733,062       155,433,510    309,233,033    121,617,510  187,422,560    1,878,439,675    
2011 2012 1,095,272,255       149,434,344    266,075,155    94,560,250    179,463,970    1,784,805,974    
2012 2013 1,099,994,810       140,765,888    232,486,674    86,036,740    181,643,610    1,740,927,722    
2013 2014 1,112,367,546       151,181,420    221,347,831    87,542,270    211,970,290    1,784,409,357    

Note: Under Michigan law, the revenue base is referred to as "taxable value."  This amount represents assessed value
  (50 percent of true cash value), limited for each property by the lower of 5 percent or inflation. 

Taxes levied in a particular "tax year" become revenue of the subsequent fiscal year.

Fiscal Year 

Ended 

December 31

 Personal

Property  Total Value 
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Revenue Capacity 
Taxable Value of Township Property 

 (Unaudited) 

3.2694 4,499,231,672    42.4               
4.0000 4,638,732,472    43.1               
4.0000 4,837,250,710    42.4               
4.0000 5,007,754,260    43.2               
4.0000 4,803,164,940    44.6               
4.0000 4,435,687,794    46.8               
4.0000 3,942,010,290    47.7               
4.0000 3,679,143,388    48.5               
4.0000 3,589,222,534    48.5               
4.0000 3,800,063,340    48.5               

Tax Rate 

(Mills)

 Estimated Actual 

Value 

 Taxable Value 

as a 

Percentage of 

Actual 
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 Direct Tax Rates 

 Tax Year  Operating  Debt 

 Total 

Direct 

Taxes  County 

Plymouth 

District 

Library 

 Huron 

Clinton 

Metro Parks 

 Wayne 

County Zoo 

Authority 

 DIA 

Authority 

 

Communit

y College 

2005 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7549 0.2146 0.0000 0.0000 1.7967

2006 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.5156 0.2146 0.0000 0.0000 1.7967

2007 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.9696 0.2146 0.0000 0.0000 1.7967

2008 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7218 0.2146 0.1000 0.0000 1.7967

2009 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7178 0.2146 0.1000 0.0000 1.7967

2010 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7283 0.2146 0.1000 0.0000 1.7967

2011 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7258 0.2146 0.1000 0.0000 1.7967

2012 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7258 0.2146 0.1000 0.2000 1.7967

2013 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7098 0.2146 0.1000 0.2000 1.7967

2014 4.0000 0.0000 4.0000 7.8220 1.7098 0.2146 0.1000 0.2000 1.7967

Note: Michigan law restricts the maximum millage that may be levied by the Charter Township of Plymouth

  without a vote of our residents, as follows:

 Operating  Debt 

2014 4.0100 0.0000

 Overlapping Tax Rates 
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Revenue Capacity 
Tax Rate History of Direct and Overlapping Governments 

 (Unaudited) 

Total Tax Rate

 Intermediate 

School 

District 

 School 

Debt 

 School - 

Homestead 

 School -

Non-

homestead  Homestead 

 Non-

homestead 

3.4643 3.4300 6.0000 18.0000 28.4825 46.4825

3.4643 3.1500 6.0000 18.0000 27.9632 45.9632

3.4643 3.1500 6.0000 18.0000 28.4172 46.4172

3.4643 3.1500 6.0000 18.0000 28.2694 46.2694

3.4643 3.2600 6.0000 18.0000 28.3754 46.3754

3.4643 3.7600 6.0000 18.0000 28.8859 46.8859

3.4643 3.9600 6.0000 18.0000 29.0834 47.0834

3.4643 4.1000 6.0000 18.0000 29.4234 47.4234

3.4643 4.1000 6.0000 18.0000 29.4074 47.4074

3.4643 4.1000 6.0000 18.0000 29.4074 47.4074

Overlapping Tax Rates
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Revenue Capacity 
Principal Taxpayers 

 (Unaudited) 

2014 Taxable 

Value

2014 

Rank

 Percentage 

of Total 

2005 Taxable 

Value

2005 

Rank

 Percentage 

of Total 

Johnson Controls 29,815,300       1 1.71%       34,916,535$    3 2.28%       
Robert Bosch Corporation 17,036,660       2 0.98%       -                      
Detroit Edison 16,365,960       3 0.94%       13,938,550      5 0.86%       
DeMattia Group 11,801,930$     4 0.68%       31,469,730      4 1.34%       
Alidade Capital LLC 11,290,550       5 0.65%       
Absopure Water 11,201,430       6 0.64%       
Consumers Power 9,237,630        7 0.53%       
Catholic Archdiocese of Detroit 8,848,600        8 0.51%       
Tower Automotive 8,765,755        9 0.50%       47,876,420      1 1.48%       
Comcast 8,316,220        10 0.48%       
Dembs Roth -                       11,935,706      6 0.97%       
Federal Mogul -                       -                 7,141,590        10 1.08%       
AFL-CIO -                       -                 9,396,980        7 0.68%       
Compuware Sport -                       -                 9,281,820        8 0.67%       
Unisys -                       -                 8,243,480        9 0.63%       
Visteon -                       -                 39,160,890      2 2.97%       

Total 132,680,035$ 8% ####### 12.96%  
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Revenue Capacity 
General Fund Governmental Revenue by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 Collected Within the Fiscal 

Year of the Levy  Total Collections to Date 

 Fiscal Year 

Ended

December 31 

 Total Tax Levy 

for Fiscal Year 

 Currrent 

Collections (1) 

 Percent 

Collected 

 Collections in 

Subsequent 

Years (2)  Amount  Percent of Levy 

2005 7,774,815        7,558,601       97.22           186,766         7,745,367       99.62               
2006 7,977,289        7,702,891       96.56           245,869         7,948,760       99.64               
2007 8,371,040        8,065,911       96.35           292,334         8,358,245       99.85               
2008 8,302,541        7,895,779       95.10           394,679         8,290,458       99.90               
2009 8,062,240        7,736,666       95.96           282,927         8,019,593       99.47               
2010 7,270,289        6,955,670       95.67           274,768         7,230,438       99.45               
2011 6,949,869        6,725,621       96.77           220,151         6,945,772       99.94               
2012 6,791,348        6,614,441       97.40           161,664         6,776,105       99.78               
2013 6,792,926        6,617,748       97.42           150,916         6,768,664       99.64               
2014 6,962,328        6,808,007       97.78           -                    6,962,328       97.78               

(1) Represents collections through the final distribution of taxes, including delinquent real taxes purchased
  by the County

(2) Represents all collections after the final distribution date through the current date  
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Debt Capacity 
 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Township's 
current levels of outstanding debt and the Township's ability to issue additional debt in the 
future. 
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2005 2006 2007 2008

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds 6,190,000$        7,015,000$        6,820,000$        6,670,000$        
Installment purchase agreements 969,028             881,853             807,401             708,829             

Total 7,159,028          7,896,853          7,627,401          7,378,829          

Business-type Activities 
General obligation bonds 33,917,924        32,445,511        30,973,098        29,193,188        
Installment purchase agreements -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total 33,917,924        32,445,511        30,973,098        29,193,188        

Total debt of the government 41,076,952$     40,342,364$     38,600,499$     36,572,017$     

Taxable value 1,997,427,281$  2,049,801,903$  2,162,628,360$  2,140,702,506$  

Ratio of total debt to taxable value 2.06%               1.97%               1.78%               1.71%               

Total population 28,170               27,107               26,980               26,979               

Total debt per capita 1,458$               1,488$               1,431$               1,356$                
 
Note: Prior to 2009, the Township reported its allocation of the debt issued by WTUA as a liability, separately from its 

reporting of its share of WTUA’s total assets. During 2009, it began reporting the net investment in the joint 
venture. As a result, the amounts reported in prior years as business-type activities’ general obligation bonds 
include the Township’s allocation of the WTUA-issued debt. This amount is not included in the 2009 amounts. 
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Debt Capacity  
Ratios of Outstanding Debt 

 (Unaudited) 

 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

6,845,000$        6,622,351$        6,385,897$        6,259,000$        7,026,995$        6,602,737$        
606,468             500,163             989,046             827,998             661,365             488,915             

7,451,468          7,122,514          7,374,943          7,086,998          7,688,360          7,091,652          

-                        
2,150,000          2,041,584          2,001,939          2,021,000          2,723,000          2,617,262          

-                        -                        712,573             609,295             503,373             394,011             

2,150,000          2,041,584          2,714,512          2,630,295          3,226,373          3,011,273          

9,601,468$       9,164,098$       10,089,455$     9,717,293$       10,914,733$     10,102,925$     

2,076,056,296$  1,878,439,675$  1,784,805,974$  1,740,913,722$  1,740,927,722$  1,784,409,357$  

0.46%               0.49%               0.57%               0.56%               0.63%               0.57%               

26,800               27,532               27,479               27,234               27,195               27,301               

358$                  333$                  367$                  357$                  401$                  370$                  
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Debt Capacity 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

 (Unaudited) 

 Fiscal Year 

 Tax-limited 

General 

Obligation 

Bonds (LTGO) 

 Other 

General 

Obligation 

Debt 

 Net General 

Bonded Debt  Taxable Value 

Debt as a 

Percentage of 

Taxable Value  Population 

 Debt per 

Capita 

2005 6,190,000        969,028        7,159,028        1,997,427,281      0.36                   28,170                      254.14        

2006 7,015,000        881,853        7,896,853        2,049,801,903      0.39                   27,107                      291.32        

2007 6,820,000        807,401        7,627,401        2,162,628,360      0.35                   26,980                      282.71        

2008 6,670,000        708,829        7,378,829        2,140,702,506      0.34                   26,979                      273.50        

2009 6,845,000        606,468        7,451,468        2,076,056,296      0.36                   26,800                      278.04        

2010 6,622,351        500,163        7,122,514        1,878,439,675      0.36                   27,532                      258.70        

2011 6,385,897        989,046        7,374,943        1,784,805,974      0.41                   27,479                      268.38        

2012 6,259,000        827,997        7,086,997        1,740,913,722      0.43                   27,234                      260.23        

2013 7,026,995        661,365        7,688,360        1,740,590,734      0.44                   27,195                      282.71        

2014 6,602,737        488,915        7,091,652        1,784,409,357      0.40                   27,301                      259.76         
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Debt Capacity 
Direct and Overlapping Debt 

 (Unaudited) 

 Governmental Unit 
 Debt 

Outstanding 

 Estimated 
Percent 

Applicable  

 Estimated Share 
of Overlapping 

Debt 

Plymouth-Canton Schools 216,049,000$     32.18        69,524,568$        
Wayne County 321,261,926       4.35          13,974,894          
Western Township Utilities Authority 17,226,090         100.00      17,226,090          
Plymouth District Library 950,000              78.51        745,845              
35th District Court 333,750              100.00      333,750              
Schoolcraft Community College 17,030,000         13.34        2,271,802            

Total overlapping debt 104,076,949        

Direct Charter Township of Plymouth debt 10,102,925          

Total direct and overlapping debt 114,179,874$    

 
 

D
R
A
FT

121



Charter Township of Plymouth 

  77 

 
 
 

2005 2006 2007 2008

Calculation of Debt Limit
State equalized valuation 2,319,366,236$  2,418,625,355$  2,503,877,130$  2,402,608,260$  
10 percent of taxable value 231,936,624       241,862,536       250,387,713       240,260,826       

Calculation of Debt Subject to Limit
Total debt 41,076,952        40,342,364        38,600,499        36,572,017        
Less debt not subject to limit:

Installment purchase 969,028             881,853             807,401             708,829             
Water and sewer, Golf contractual
     obligations 33,917,924        32,445,511        30,973,098        29,193,188        

Net debt subject to limit 6,190,000          7,015,000          6,820,000          6,670,000          

Legal Debt Margin 225,746,624$  234,847,536$  243,567,713$  233,590,826$  

Net Debt Subject to Limit as 
Percent of Debt Limit 2.74%               2.99%               2.80%               2.86%                

 
Note: Prior to 2009, the Township reported its allocation of the debt issued by WTUA as a liability, separately from its 

reporting of its share of WTUA’s total assets. During 2009, it began reporting the net investment in the joint 
venture. As a result, the amounts reported in prior years as water and sewer contractual obligations include the 
Township’s allocation of the WTUA-issued debt. This amount is not included in the 2009 amounts. 

 

D
R
A
FT

122



 

  78 

Debt Capacity 
Legal Debt Margin 

 (Unaudited) 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2,218,351,237$  1,971,005,145$  1,839,571,694$  1,784,805,974$  1,798,339,471$  1,900,031,670$ 
221,835,124       197,100,515       183,957,169       178,480,597       179,833,947       190,003,167      

9,601,468          9,164,098          10,089,455        9,717,293          10,914,733        10,102,925        

600,775             500,163             1,701,619          1,437,293          1,164,738          882,926             

2,150,000          2,041,584          2,001,939          2,021,000          2,723,000          2,617,262          

6,850,693          6,622,351          6,385,897          6,259,000          7,026,995          6,602,737          

214,984,431$  190,478,164$  177,571,272$  172,221,597$  172,806,952$  183,400,430$  

3.19%               3.48%               3.60%               3.63%               4.07%               3.60%                
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Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the Township's financial activities take place. 
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Demographic and Economic Information 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

 (Unaudited) 

 Fiscal Year  Population 
 Personal Income

(in Thousands) 
 Per Capita 

Personal Income 
 Unemployment 

Rate 

2005 28,170               (1)                      (1)                     2.90                 
2006 27,107               (1)                      (1)                     2.10                 
2007 26,980               (1)                      (1)                     2.30                 
2008 26,979               (1)                      (1)                     2.60                 
2009 26,800               (1)                      (1)                     4.30                 
2010 27,532               (1)                      (1)                     3.90                 
2011 27,479               (1)                      (1)                     2.80                 
2012 27,234               (1)                      (1)                     3.00                 
2013 27,195               (1)                      (1)                     2.30                 
2014 27,301               (1)                      (1)                     2.80                 

(1) Not available  
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Principal Employers 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

 (Unaudited) 

 Employer 
2014 

Employees
 Percentage 

of Total 
2005 

Employees
 Percentage 

of Total 

1   Johnson Controls 2,000       39.60        (1)             (1)              
2   Plymouth Canton Community Schools 700          13.86        (1)             (1)              
3   AVL North America Inc 550          10.89        (1)             (1)              
4   Tower Automotive 350          6.93          (1)             (1)              
5   Master Automatic 300          5.94          (1)             (1)              
6   Durr Industries 275          5.45          (1)             (1)              
7   Frudenberg NOK 250          4.95          (1)             (1)              
8   Plastipak 225          4.46          (1)             (1)              
9   Burroughs Payment Services 200          3.96          (1)             (1)              

10 Absopure 200          3.96          (1)             (1)              

Total 5,050      100.00     

(1) Not available  
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Function/Program 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General government:
Supervisor's office 3.0              3.0              3.0              3.0              2.0              
Human resources 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              
Information services 3.0              3.0              2.0              2.5              1.5              
Assessing 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              
Clerk's office 5.5              5.5              6.5              6.5              5.0              
Treasurer's office 3.5              3.5              3.5              3.5              3.5              

Total general government 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.5 14.0

Public safety:
Police 45.5            45.0            45.0            45.0            45.0            
Fire and EMS 30.0            28.0            26.0            28.0            27.0            

Building department 6.0              6.0              4.0              3.5              4.0              

Public works:
Waste management 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              
Water and sewer 10.5            10.5            10.5            10.5            9.5              
Public services 2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              

Community and economic development 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                 

Parks and recreation 2.7              2.7              3.0              3.5              3.5              

Total 115.7         113.2         109.5         112.0         106.0          
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Demographic and Economic Information 
Full-time Equivalent Government Employees 

 (Unaudited) 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

2.0              2.0              2.5              2.5              2.5              
1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              
1.5              1.5              1.5              1.5              1.5              
1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              
5.0              5.0              5.0              5.0              5.0              
3.5              3.5              3.5              3.5              3.5              

14.0 14.0 14.5 14.5 14.5

44.0            43.0            44.0            43.0            44.0            
24.0            24.0            19.0            19.0            21.0            

4.0              4.0              4.5              4.5              4.5              

1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              
9.5              9.0              10.5            11.5            11.5            
2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              

1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

2.5              2.5              2.5              2.5              2.5              

102.0         100.5         99.0           99.0           102.0          D
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Operating Information 
 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the Township's financial report relates to the services the Township provides and 
the activities it performs. 
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Function/Program 2005 2006 2007 2008

Election data - Registered voters (1) 20,399 20,332 20,609

District court: 
     Number of court cases 4,944 4,993 5,802 5,913
     Police incidents 10,393 10,652 10,222 11,088

Fire:
Fire runs 771 762 944 912
Emergency medical runs 2,301 2,248 2,440 2,424

Water:
Number of customers billed 9,602 9,648 9,679 9,720
Water consumed in gallons 1,610,929,000 1,512,705,000 1,549,699,000 1,443,051,287
Water and sewer rate (per 1,000 gallons) 4.86$               5.42$                6.34$               6.34$                

Building, other permits, and licenses issued 2,390 1,932 1,845 1,716

(1) Not available  
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Operating Information 
Operating Indicators 

 (Unaudited) 

 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

21,564 22,079 21,793               22,384              20,946        

4,836 5,032 5,784                 5,254                5,203          
10,570 10,532 11,018               10,516              10,650        

956 988 762                    768                   700            
2,316 2,625 1,805                 1,781                1,837          

9,762 9,770 9,780                 9,797                9,527          
1,380,784,000 1,345,804,000 1,474,687,061    1,192,139,000   ########

8.35$                 9.05$                 8.60$                 9.05$                9.30$               

905 1,300 1,598                 1,884                3,062          
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Function/Program 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Police:
Stations 1                1                1                1             1             
Patrol units 20              18              18              18            18            

Fire:
Stations 3                3                3                3             3             
Fire response vehicles 5                5                5                5             5             
Emergency response vehicles 4                4                4                4             4             

Public works:
Streets (miles): 143.5         143.5         143.5         143.5       143.5       

Paved 139.5         140.0         140.0         140.5       140.5       
Unpaved 4.0             3.0             3.0             3.0           3.0           

Sidewalks (1)               (1)               (1)               (1)            (1)            

Parks and recreation:
Acreage 112.5         112.5         112.5         112.5       112.5       
Developed parks/playgrounds 5                5                5                5             5             
Developed fields (soccer, baseball, etc.) 6                6                6                6             6             
Golf course 1                1                1                1             1             

Water - Mains (miles) 175            176            176            176          176          

Sewer - Miles of sanitary sewers 140            141            141            141          141          

(1) Not available
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Operating Information 
Capital Asset Statistics 

 (Unaudited) 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

1             1             1              1             1            
18            18            18            18           18          

3             3             2              2             2            
5             5             4              4             4            
4             4             4              4             4            

143.5       143.5       143.5          143.5          143.5          
140.5       140.5       140.5          140.5          140.5          

3.0           3.0           3.0              3.0              3.0              
(1)            (1)            (1)                (1)                (1)                

112.5       435.5       435.5          435.5          435.5          
5             5             5                 5                 5                 
6             6             6                 6                 6                 
1             1             1                 1                 1                 

176          176          176             176             176             

141          141          141             141             141             
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PLYMOUTH 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2015 

ITEM: Approve and submit the 2015 Tax Rate Request to the Wayne County Board of 
Commissioners 

PRESENTER:Ron Edwards , Treasurer 

OTHER INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: None anticipated. 

BACKGROUND: The Board of Trustees must establish the tax rate each year for our 
local unit of government. The individual township millages and total millage levy must be 
approved, documented on form L-4029 and submitted to the Wayne County Board of 
Commissioners on or September 30, 2015. The millage rate will be reflected on the 
December 1, 2015 tax bills. The requested 4.000 mils has remained unchanged for 11 
years. 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

BUDGET/ACCOUNT NUMBER: General Fund 2016 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve 

MODEL RESOLUTION: I move to approve the 2015 Tax Rate Request form as submitted 
and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to sign the Michigan Department of Treasury form 
L- 4029 certifying the millage levy at 4.000 mils. 

ATTACHMENTS: 2015 Tax Rate Request Form L-4029 
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Michigan Department of Treasury 
614 (Rev. 03-15) 

2015 Tax Rate Request (This form must be completed and submitted on or before September 30, 2015) 
MILLAGE REQUEST REPORT TO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

This form is issued under authority of MCL Sections 211 .24e, 211 .34 and 211.34d. Filing is mandatory; Penalty applies. 

County(ies) Where the Local Government Unit Levies Taxes 2015 Taxable Value of ALL Properties in the Unit as of 5-26-15 

Wayne $1,736,230,350. 

ORIGINAL TO: County Clerk(s} 
COPY TO: Equalization Department(s) 
COPY TO: Each township or city clerk 

L-4029 

Carefully read the instructions on page 2. 

Local Government Unit Requesting Millage Levy For LOCAL School Districts: 2015 Taxable Value excluding Principal Residence, Qualified Agricutlural, Qualified Forest, Industrial 

Plymouth Charter Township 
Personal and Commercial Personal Properties. 

This form must be completed for each unit of government for which a property tax is levied. Penalty for non-filing is provided under MCL Sec 211.119. The following tax rates have been 
authorized for levy on the 2015 tax roll. 

(4} (5) ** (7} (8} 
Original 2014 Millage (6) 2015 Millage Sec. 211.34 Truth (12} 
Millage Rate Permanently 2015 Current Rate Permanently in Assessing or (9} (10} (11} Expiration 

(2} (3) Authorized by Reduced by MCL Year "Headlee" Reduced by MCL Equalization Maximum Millage Millage Date of 
(1) Purpose of Date of Election 211 .34d Millage Reduction 211.34d Millage Rollback Allowable Requested to Requested to be Millage 

Source Millage Election Charter, etc. "Headlee" Fraction "Headlee" Fraction Millage Levy* be Levied July 1 Levied Dec. 1 Authorized 

Charter General NIA 

Fire Fire 5/2001 

Policefire Policefire 2/2015 

Policefire Policefire 2/2015 

Prepared by 

Ron Edwards 

1.0000 0.8173 1.0000 

1.0000 0.9948 1.0000 

1.6348 1.6348 1.0000 

0.5631 0.5631 1.0000 

Telephone Number 

734-354-3214 

0.8173 

0.9948 

1.6348 

0.5631 

Title of Preparer 

Treasurer 

1.0000 0.8173 

1.0000 0.9948 

1.0000 1.6348 

1.0000 0.5631 

Total 4.0100 

CERTIFICATION: As the representatives for the local government unit named above, we certify that these requested tax levy rates have been 
reduced, if necessary to comply with thestate constitution (Article 9, Section 31), and that the requested levy rates have also been reduced, if 
necessary, to comply with MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 and, for LOCAL school districts which levy a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage, 
380.1211 (3). 

IX] Clerk Signature Print Name Date 

D Secretary Nancy Conzelman 9/22/2015 

[XJ Chairperson Signature 

D President 

Print Name 

Shannon Price 
Date 

9/22/2015 

*Under Truth in Taxation, MCL Section 211 .24e, the governing body may decide to levy a rate which will not exceed the maximum authorized 
rate allowed in column 9. The requirements of MCL 211 .24e must be met prior to levying an operating levy which is larger than the base tax rate 
but not larger than the rate in column 9. 

** IMPORT ANT: See instructions on page 2 regarding where to find the millage rate used in column (5) . 

0.8173 N/A 

0.9848 12/2021 

1.6348 12/2025 

0.5631 12/2025 

4.0000 

Date 

9/22/2015 

Locar School District Use-Only. Complete If requesting 
millage to be levied; See STC Bulletin lof 2015 tor · 
instructions on completing this section. · 

Total School District Operating 

Rates to be Levied (HH/Supp 
Rate 

and NH Oper ONLY) 

For Principal Residence, Qualified 
Ag, Qualified Forest and Industrial 
Personal 

For Commercial Personal 

For all Other 
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Instructions For Completing 
Form 614 (L-4029) 2015 Tax Rate Request, 

Millage Request Report To County Board Of Commissioners 

These instructions are provided under MCL Sections 211.24e 
(truth in taxation), 211.34 (truth in county equalization and 
truth in assessing), 211.34d (Headlee), and 211.36 and 
211.37 (apportionment). 
Column 1: Source. Enter the source of each millage. 
For example, allocated millage, separate millage limitations 
voted, charter, approved extra-voted millage, public act 
number, etc. Do not include taxes levied on the Industrial 
Facilities Tax Roll. 
Column 2: Purpose of millage. Examples are: operating, 
debt service, special assessments, school enhancement 
millage, sinking fund millage, etc. A local school district 
must separately list operating millages by whether they are 
levied against ALL PROPERTIES in the school district or 
against the NON-HOME group of properties. (See State 
Tax Commission Bulletin 3 of 2015 for more explanation.) 
A local school district may use the following abbreviations 
when completing Column 2: "Operating ALL" and "Operating 
NON-HOME". "Operating ALL" is short for "Operating millage 
to be levied on ALL PROPERTIES in the local school 
district" such as Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millages 
and Building and Site Sinking Fund Millages. "Operating 
NON-HOME" is short for "Operating millage to be levied on 
ALL PROPERTIES EXCLUDING PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE, 
QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL, QUALIFIED FOREST AND 
INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERTIES in the local school 
district" such as the 18 mills in a district which does not levy 
a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage. 

Column 3: Date of Election. Enter the month and year 
of the election for each millage authorized by direct voter 
approval. 
Column 4: Millage Authorized. List the allocated rate, 
charter aggregate rate, extra-voted authorized before 1979, 
each separate rate authorized by voters after 1978, debt 
service rate, etc. (This rate is the rate before any reductions.) 

Column 5: 2014 Millage Rate Permanently Reduced by 
MCL 211.34d ("Headlee") Rollback. Starting with taxes 
levied in 1994, the "Headlee" rollback permanently reduces 
the maximum rate or rates authorized by law or charter. The 
~permanently reduced rate can be found in column 7 of 
the 2014 Form L-4029. For operating millage approved by 
the voters after April 30, 2014, enter the millage approved 
by the voters. For debt service or special assessments not 
subject to a millage reduction fraction , enter "NA" signifying 
"not applicable." 
Column 6: Current Year Millage Reduction Fraction. 
List the millage reduction fraction certified by the county 
treasurer for the current year as calculated on Form 2166 
(L-4034), 2015 Millage Reduction Fraction Calculations 
Worksheet. The millage reduction fraction shall be rounded 
to four ( 4) decimal places. The current year millage reduction 
fraction shall not exceed 1.0000 for 2015 and future years. 
This prevents any increase or "roll up" of millage rates. Use 

1.0000 for new millage approved by the voters after April 30, 
2015. For debt service or special assessments not subject 
to a millage reduction fraction, enter 1.0000. 
Column 7: 2015 Millage Rate Permanently Reduced 
by MCL 211.34d ("Headlee") Rollback. The number in 
column 7 is found by multiplying column 5 by column 6 on 
this 2015 Form L-4029. This rate must be rounded DOWN 
to 4 decimal places. (See STC Bulletin No. 11 of 1999, 
Supplemented by Letter of 6/7/2000.) For debt service or 
special assessments not subject to a millage reduction 
fraction, enter "NA" signifying "not applicable." 
Column 8: Section 211.34 Millage Rollback Fraction 
(Truth in Assessing or Truth in Equalization). List the 
millage rollback fraction for 2015 for each millage which 
is an operating rate. Round this millage rollback fraction 
to 4 decimal places. Use 1.0000 for school districts, for 
special assessments and for bonded debt retirement levies. 
For counties, villages and authorities, enter the Truth in 
Equalization Rollback Fraction calulated on STC Form 
L-4034 as TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE BASED ON CEV FOR 
ALL CLASSES/TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE BASED ON SEV 
FOR ALL CLASSES. Use 1.0000 for an authority located in 
more than one county. For further information, see State Tax 
Commission Bulletin 3 of 2015. For townships and cities, 
enter the Truth in Assessing Rollback Fraction calculated on 
STC Form L-4034 as TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE BASED ON 
ASSESSED VALUE FOR ALL CLASSES/TOTAL TAXABLE 
VALUE BASED ON SEV FOR ALL CLASSES. The Section 
211.34 Millage Rollback Fraction shall not exceed 1.0000. 

Column 9: Maximum Allowable Millage Levy. Multiply 
column 7 (2015 Millage Rate Permanently Reduced by 
MCL 211.34d) by column 8 (Section 211.34 millage rollback 
fraction). Round the rate DOWN to 4 decimal places. (See 
STC Bulletin No. 11 of 1999, Supplemented by Letter of 
6/7/2000.) For debt service or special assessments not 
subject to a millage reduction fraction, enter millage from 
Column 4. 
Column 10/Column 11: Millage Requested to be 
Levied. Enter the tax rate approved by the unit of local 
government provided that the rate does not exceed the 
maximum allowable millage levy (column 9). A millage rate 
that exceeds the base tax rate (Truth in Taxation) cannot be 
requested unless the requirements of MCL 211.24e have 
been met. For further information, see State Tax Commission 
Bulletin 3 of 2015. A LOCAL School District which levies 
a Supplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage shall not levy a 
Supplemental Millage in excess of that allowed by MCL 
380.1211 (3). Please see the memo to assessors dated 
October 26, 2004 regarding the change in the collection 
date of certain county taxes. 

Column 12: Expiration Date of Millage. Enter the month 
and year on which the millage will expire. 
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9/22/2015 

Batch ID 

Check Date 

GENERAL FUND(101) 

SWD(226) 

IMPROV. REV.(246) 

DRUG FORFEITURE(265) 

GOLF COURSE FUND - (510) 

WATER/SEWER(592) 

TRUST& AGENCY(701) 

POLICE BOND FUND (702) 

TAX POOL(703) 

SPECIAL ASSESS CAPITAL (805) 

TOTAL 

BOAROMEETINGDOC.xls 
092215 

TOTAL 

1,114,127.84 

9,794.14 

1,048.21 

2,114.01 

498,078.27 

2,787.68 

155,651.08 

6,974.96 

1, 790,576.19 

Charter Townsnip of Plymouth 
September 22, 2015 
Board Meeting Date 
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9/16/15 15.16.38 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

11706 9/15/2015 APOLLO FIRE EQUIPMENT 
ACCOUNT 

101 -336 -978. 000 

20050 9/15/2015 B & R JANITORIAL SUPPLY 
ACCOUNT 

101·265 - 776.000 
101-265 - 858.000 
101·305 . 776. 000 
101-325 - 727.000 
101·336·776.000 
592·172-776.000 

30795 9/15/2015 CHLORIDE SOLUTIONS LLC 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 446-818.000 

31409 9/15/2015 CODE SAVVY CONSULTANTS LLC 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 371 -818.000 

31409 9/15/2015 CODE SAVVY CONSULTANTS LLC 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 371·818. 000 

51437 9/15/2015 EMERGENT HEALTH PARTNERS 
ACCOUNT 

101-336-960.000 

51900 9/15/2015 ERADICO PEST SERVICES 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 336-776.000 

70550 9/15/2015 GENPOWER PRODUCTS INC. 
ACCOUNT 

101-336· 851. 000 

7165 0 9/15/2015 GRAINGER. W.W .. INC. 

72200 9/15/2015 GUARDIAN ALARM CO 

ACCOUNT 
592·443 - 937.000 

ACCOUNT 
592 · 443 - 937.000 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0515 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

90398 
AMOUNT 
171.15 

168183 
AMOUNT 

1 . 026.59 
68.44 

570.33 
228.13 

45.63 
342.20 

74328 
AMOUNT 

2,551.08 

1065 

1069 

AMOUNT 
385.00 

AMOUNT 
715.00 

INV04123 
AMOUNT 
690.00 

MAR, AUG - SEP15 
AMOUNT 
113 . 43 

84362 
AMOUNT 
56 7 .65 

9821453660 
AMOUNT 
159. 75 

17101708 
AMOUNT 
241.89 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

9/10/2015 001 171.15 
DESCRIPTION 

GUIDEBAR. CAP SCREW.KEY 

8/28 /2 015 001 2 , 281.32 
DESCRIPTION 

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANI TORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
J ANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

8/28/2015 001 2,551.08 
DE SCRIPT ION 

25% MINERAL WELL BRINE 

8/17/2015 001 385.00 
DESCRIPTION 

MAGNA SEC FLOOR SPRINKLER SYSTEM 

8/23 /2015 001 715.00 
DESCRIPTION 

HYUNDIA/MOBIS SPRINKLER SYSTEM 

8/31 /2015 001 690.00 
DESCRIPTION 

TRAINING 8 /24, 8/25/ 8/26 

9/03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

MAR.AUG , SEPT STA#l 

113. 43 

8/31/2015 001 557.65 
DESCRIPT ION 

STA#2 GENERATOR REPAIR 

8 /19/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

SUMP PUMP · PRV 

159.75 

9/01/2015 001 241.89 
DESCRIPTION 

ALARM 9 / 1 / 15 · 11/30/15 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 1 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

171.15 9 /23/2015 

2,281.32 9 /2 3 / 20 15 

2,551.08 9 /23/2015 

385.00 9/23/2015 

715.00 9/23/2015 

690.00 9 / 23/2015 

113. 43 9/23 /20 15 

56 7 .65 9 / 23/2015 

159.75 9 / 23 /20 15 

241.89 9/23 / 2015 
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9/16/15 15.16.38 INVOICE EDI T LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0515 Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

INVOIC E 
NUMBER 

80140 9/15/2015 HALT FIRE INC 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 336·863.000 

83900 9/15/2015 HYDRO CORP 
ACCOUNT 

592·291·804.000 

93000 9/15/2015 IRON MOUNTAIN 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 215· 727.000 

111400 9/15/2015 KOCIAN EXCAVATING CO 

111485 

130142 

130142 

130142 

ACCOUNT 
592·291·932.000 
592·291·932.000 

9/15/2015 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 
ACCOUNT 

101·371·727.000 
101·215·727.000 

9/15/2015 MAPLES ENVIRONMENTAL PEST CONTROL 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 265·776.000 

9/15/2015 MAPLES ENVIRONMENTAL PEST CONTROL 
ACCOUNT 

101·305 · 776.000 

9/15/2015 MAPLES ENVIRONMENTAL PEST CONTROL 
ACCOUNT 

101· 336-776.000 

130957 9/15 / 2015 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 
ACCOUNT 

101·290·958.000 

131003 9/15/2015 MICHIGAN, STATE OF 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 336·851.000 

131040 9/15/2015 MIDWEST AIR COMPRESSOR 
ACCOUNT 

S0068286 
AMOUNT 

2,260.95 

0036497 - IN 
AMOUNT 

1.649.00 

LUN3244 
AMOUNT 
157.00 

12085 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 
360.00 

9001706319 
AMOUNT 

70.93 
45.78 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 
185.00 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 
185.00 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 
150.00 

2099 · 915 
AMOUNT 
175 . 00 

15·004366 
AMOUNT 

33.33 

130 . 2A 
AMOUNT 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

8/31 / 2015 001 2.260.95 
DESCRIPTIO N 

E3 FUEL TANK.PUMP TEST 

8/31 / 2015 001 1,649 .00 
DESCRIPTION 

CROSS CONNECT CTRL PROG 

8/31 /2 015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

SEPT 2015 STORAGE 

157.00 

8/03/2015 001 1.360 . 00 
DE SCRIPT ION 

INV 12085 -BACKHDE 8 HRS 
LABORER 8 HRS 

8/31/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

COPIES 
COPIES 

9/09/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 
9/9/2015 

9/09/ 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

9 / 9/2015 

9/09 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 
9/9/2015 

116 . 71 

185.00 

185.00 

150.00 

9 /01/2015 001 175 . 00 
DESCRIPTION 

DUES 7/ 1/15 · 6/ 30 / 16 

9/02 / 2015 001 33.33 
DESCRIPTION 

RADIO SUB FEE 8/1·9/30 

9 / 09 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

168 . 50 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 2 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK . DATE 

2,260.95 9/23/2015 

1.649.00 9 / 23/2 015 

157.00 9/23/2015 

1,360.00 9 /23/2 015 

116.71 9 /23/2015 

185.00 9 /23/201 5 

185.00 9/23/2015 

150.00 9/23/2015 

1 75.00 9 /23/2015 

33.33 9 /23 / 2015 

168.50 9 / 23/2015 
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9/16/15 15.16.38 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

150250 9/15/2015 ODEN TRAINING 

150600 9/15/2015 OFFICE DEPOT 

150600 9/15/2015 OFFICE DEPOT 

150600 9/15/2015 OFFICE DEPOT 

101 · 336·851.000 

ACCOUNT 
592-172-727.000 

ACCOUNT 
592 · 172·727.000 
592-172·727.000 
592 - 172·727.000 
592·172·727.000 
592 · 172·727.000 

ACCOUNT 
592·172 · 727.000 

ACCOUNT 
592 -172-727.000 

160167 9/15/2015 PARAGON LABORATORI ES 
ACCOUNT 

592·172 · 818.000 

161930 9/15/2015 AIRGAS USA , LLC 
ACCOUNT 

101·336·B36.000 

191213 9/15/2015 SMITH, CHRISTOPHER 
ACCOUNT 

101-336 -873.000 

192113 9/15/2015 SUPERIOR MEDICAL WASTE 

200057 

ACCOUNT 
101 · 336 -836.000 

9/15/2015 TARGET SOLUTIONS LEARNING, LLC 
ACCOUNT 

101·336·960.000 

220B75 9/15/2015 VIGILANTE SECURITY 
ACCOUNT 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH .. SEP0515 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

168.50 

5 11090-159 
AMOUNT 
B00.00 

78B839413001 
AMOUNT 

44.79 
123.60 

8.24 
39.99 
63.99 

7B8839630001 
AMOUNT 

27.99 

788839631001 
AMOUNT 

12.99 

50148 - 87532 
AMOUNT 
157.50 

993015081B 
AMOUNT 
314.03 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

74.35 

9-1 · 15 
AMOUNT 
120.00 

INV00000010166 
AMOUNT 

2,445.00 

502220 
AMOUNT 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

COMPRESSOR MAINT STA#3 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

9/02/201S 001 800.00 
DESCRIPTION 

WATER DISTRIBUTION O&M 

8/24/2015 001 280 . 61 
DESCRIPTION 

FOAM BOARDS 30X40 
HP SSA BLACK TONER 
POST·IT POPUP DISPENSER 
CAD BOND PAPER 24Xl50 
CAD BOND PAPER 36Xl50 

8/24 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

FOAM BOARDS 20X30 

8/24/ 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

MAGNIFIER GLASS 

27 . 99 

12.99 

8/20/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

157.50 

DEQ WATER TEST ING 

8/31/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

OXYGEN TANKS 

314.03 

9/11/2015 001 74.3S 
DESCRIPTION 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR EXPENSE 

9 / 01/2015 001 120.00 
DESCRIPTION 

MEDICAL WASTE DISPOSAL 

9/01/2015 001 2.445.00 
DESCRIPTION 

ANNUAL ONLINE LEARNING 

8/10/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

lOS.00 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 3 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

800.00 9/23/2015 

280.61 9/23/2015 

27 . 99 9/23 / 2015 

12.99 9/23/2015 

157.50 9/23/2015 

314.03 9/23/2015 

74.35 9/23/2015 

120.00 9 / 23/2015 

2.445.00 9/23/2015 

105.00 9/23/2015 
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9/16/15 15.16.38 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

220895 9/15/2015 VILLET, GUY 

592 - 172-818.000 

ACCOUNT 
101·336-873.000 

227000 9/15/2015 W.J.O'NEIL COMPANY 
ACCOUNT 

101-265 - 776 . 000 

20025 9/16/2015 B & F AUTO SUPPLY INC 

30726 9/16/2015 CHESTON, STEVE 

ACCOUNT 
101-305-863 . 000 
101 -305-863.000 
101 -305-863 . 000 

ACCOUNT 
101 ·305 - 960 . 000 

39070 9/16/2015 DELL MARKETING L.P . 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 305-851.000 

60845 9/16/2015 FINGERPRINT AMERICA 

80072 9/16/2015 HP 

ACCOUNT 
101 - 305-885.000 
101-305-885.000 

ACCOUNT 
101·325 · 727.000 

130960 9/16/2015 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK HGT AUTH 
ACCOUNT 

101 -305-960.000 

141398 9/16/2015 NORTHVILLE CAR WASH, INC. 

150250 9/16/2015 ODEN TRAINING 

ACCOUNT 
101-305-863 . 000 

ACCOUNT 
592-172-727.000 

INVOICE EDI T LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH • SEP0515 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

105.00 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

90.94 

3156 
AMOUNT 

2,760.00 

476174 
AMOUNT 

34.99 
201. 90 

5.04 

SEP 201 5 
AMOUNT 
500.00 

XJRFX1K33 
AMOUNT 
410.98 

154 · 39012 
AMOUNT 

1.275.00 
32.00 

6685784 
AMOUNT 
252.80 

2272 
AMOUNT 
170.00 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

60.00 

519090·158 
AMOUNT 
200.00 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

8 / 15 / 15 -11/14/15 PRN MONITORING 

9/11/2015 001 90.94 
DESCRIPTION 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR MEALS 

8/07 /2 015 001 2,760.00 
DESCRIPTION 

CONTRACT #I315033-01 

9/03/2015 001 241.93 
DESCRIPTION 

M METER FOR 2013 TAURUS 
WIPER BLADES 
RAIN X 

9 /0 8 /2 015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR 

500.00 

8/25/2015 001 410.9B 
DESCRIPTION 

DELL 24 I NCH MONI TOR 

8/19/2015 001 1,307.00 
DESCRIPTION 

CUSTOM I MPRINTED CHILD 
SHIPPING/HANDLING 

9/03 /20 15 001 252.80 
DE SCRIPT ION 

WINDOWS PROFESSIONAL 

3/31/2015 001 170.00 
DESCRIPTION 

TACTICAL ENCOUNTERS TRG 

9/01/2015 001 
DE SC RI PTI ON 

AUGUST CAR WASHES 

60.00 

9/09/2015 001 200.00 
DESCRIPTION 

WATER DISTRIBUT ION O&H 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 4 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

90.94 9/23/2015 

2,760.00 9/23/20 15 

241.93 9 /23/2015 

500.00 9/23/2015 

410.98 9 /23/2015 

1,307.00 9/23 / 2 015 

252.80 9 /23/2015 

170.00 9 /23/2015 

60.00 9 /23/2015 

200.00 9/23 /20 15 
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9 / 16 / 15 15.16.38 INVOICE EDI T LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH • SEP0515 Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO . DATE NAME 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

150600 9/16 / 2015 OFFICE DEPOT 
ACCOUNT 

101·325·727.000 

150600 9/16 / 2015 OFFICE DEPOT 
ACCOUNT 

101·325·727.000 
101·325-727 . 000 
101 · 325 · 727 . 000 
101 · 325 · 727.000 

190300 9/16/2015 SCHOOLCRAFT COLLEGE 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 305·960.000 

200080 9/16/2015 TASER INTERNATIONAL 
ACCOUNT 

101·305 · 960.000 
101-305·960 . 000 

200085 9/16/2015 TASER TRAINING ACADEMY 
ACCOUNT 

101·305 - 960.000 

200085 9/16/2015 TASER TRAINING ACADEMY 
ACCOUNT 

101-305-960.000 

111485 9/16/2015 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 100 · 185 . 000 
101-400 - 978 . 000 

111485 9/16/2015 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 
ACCOUNT 

592 - 100-185.000 
101 -400-978 . 000 

2002 5 9/16/2015 B & F AUTO SUPP LY INC 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 172-781 . 000 

20050 9/16/2015 B & R JANITORIAL SUPPLY 
ACCOUNT 

779 7652410 01 
AMOUNT 

15.46 

789876822001 
AMOUNT 

19.86 
18 . 99 

103 .25 
9 . 74 

00572 
AMOUNT 

1,000.00 

511409783 
AMOUNT 

1 , 475.00 
20.65 

TASE33206 
AMOUNT 
390.00 

TASE33113 
AMOUNT 
200 . 00 

235684614 
AMOUNT 

5 , 227.50 
5,227.50 

235688799 
AMOUNT 
142 . 00 
142 . 00 

474009 
AMOUNT 

8.48 

168182 
AMOUNT 

INVO ICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

7/ 13 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

SHIPPING TAPE 

8 / 27 / 2015 00 1 
DESCRIPTION 

DYMO BLAC K TAPE 
BROTHER TAPES 
TONER 
FI LE FOLDE RS 

GROSS 
AMOU NT 

15.46 

151 . 84 

8 / 29 / 2015 00 1 1.000.00 
DESCRI PTION 

PPCT INSTRUCTOR SCHOOL 

8 / 2 1/2015 001 1 , 4 95 . 65 
DESCRIPTION 

SMART TASER TRAINING 
+SHIPPING 

8 / 26 / 2015 001 390.00 
DES CRIPTION 

NEW CERTIFI CATION TASER 

8/25 / 20 15 001 200 . 00 
DESCRIPTION 

RE CERTIFICAT I ON TASER 

8/28 / 2015 001 
DESC RI PTION 

BIZHU8 C454E 
BIZHUB C454E 

8 / 31 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

PK-520 PUNCH KI T 
PK-520 PUNCH KIT 

8 / 14/ 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

SHOP SUPPLIES 

8 / 26/2 0 15 001 
DESCRIPTION 

10, 4 55.00 

284 . 00 

8.48 

2 69.BO 

SE P . 
CHE CK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD01 3 0 
PAGE 5 

NET DUE DAT E/ 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

15 . 46 9 /23/201 5 

151.84 9 / 23 / 2 015 

1 . 000 . 00 9 / 23 / 201 5 

1.4 95.65 9 / 23 / 2015 

390 . 00 9 / 23/2015 

200.0 0 9 /23 / 2015 

10 . 455 . 00 9 / 23 / 2 0 15 

284.00 9 / 23 / 2015 

8 . 48 9 / 23 / 201 5 

269.80 9 /2 3/2015 
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9/16/15 15 .16.38 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

592·172-776.000 

30520 9/16/2015 JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES #61 
ACCOUNT 

592-172 - 776.000 

31506 9/16/2015 CORRIGAN OIL COMPANY 
ACCOUNT 

592·291-863.000 
592-291-863.000 

31506 9/16/2015 CORRIGAN OIL COMPANY 
ACCOUNT 

592·291-863.000 
592-291 - 863.000 

70050 9/16/2015 G A INDUSTRIES INC 
ACCOUNT 

592-443 -937.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101-305-863.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101 -305 -863.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101-305-863.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101-305-863.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101 -305-863.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101-305-863.000 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH m SEP0515 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

269.80 

72783741 
AMOUNT 

96.75 

6111465-IN 
AMOUNT 
744.40 

1,686.17 

6119221· IN 
AMOUNT 
499.52 
911.54 

439013454 
AMOUNT 
367.31 

C26575 
AMOUNT 

33.95 

C26606 
AMOUNT 
268.48 

C27084 
AMOUNT 
130 . 95 

C27913 
AMOUNT 
942.43 

C28443 
AMOUNT 
48.95 

C28672 
AMOUNT 
604.80 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

JANTIORIAL SUPPLIES 

7/30/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

FITTINGS 

8/14/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

DIESEL FUEL 
NO LEAD 

8/28/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

DI ESE L FUEL 
NO LEAD 

8 / 04/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

PRV PARTS 

8/04/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

OIL CHANGE/108072 

8 / 05/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

VEH REPAIR/143167 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

96.75 

2.430.57 

1 . 411. 06 

367.31 

33.95 

268.48 

8/10/2015 001 130.95 
DE SC RI PTI ON 

REPLACE BATTERY/108072 

8 / 18/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

VEH REPAIR/A39477 

8/24 /2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

OI L CHG/TIRES/145836 

8/27/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

VEH REPAIR/124315 

942.43 

48.95 

604.80 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 6 

NET DUE DATE/ 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

96.75 9 / 23/2015 

2,430.57 9/23/2015 

1 , 411.06 9/23/2015 

367.31 9/23/2015 

33.95 9/23 /20 15 

268.48 9/23/2015 

130 .95 9 /23/20 15 

942.43 9/23/20 15 

48.95 9/23/20 15 

604.80 9/23/2015 
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9/16/15 15 . 16.38 INVOICE EDIT LI STING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0515 Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO . DATE NAME 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

101 -305·863.000 

80750 9/16/2015 HINES PARK LINCOLN MERCURY 
ACCOUNT 

592·291 · 863 . 000 

130112 9/16/2015 THE MACOMB GROUP, INC . 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 443 · 937.000 

130172 9/16/2015 MARSH POWER TOOLS 

131013 

131013 

131013 

131013 

ACCOUNT 
592·172-978.000 

9/16/2015 MICHIGAN METER TECHNOLOGY GRP INC 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 172-780.000 

9/16/2015 MICHIGAN METER TECHNOLOGY GRP INC 
ACCOUNT 

592·172 · 816.000 
592·172 · 816.000 

9/16/2015 MICHIGAN HETER TECHNOLOGY GRP INC 
ACCOUNT 

592·172 · 818.000 
592·172·780.000 

9 / 16/2015 MICHIGAN METER TECHNOLOGY GRP INC 
ACCOUNT 

592·172 · 782.000 
592·172 · 780.000 
592·172-780.000 
592-172 · 780.000 
592 · 172 · 780.000 
592·172-780.000 
592·172-780.000 
592·172 · 780 . 000 
592-172 - 780.000 
592 · 172 · 780.000 
592 · 172-780.000 
592-172-782.000 

C28982 
AMOUNT 
244.80 

C29508 
AMOUNT 
40.44 

4461359 
AMOUNT 
147.28 

369240 
AMOUNT 
749.99 

82425 
AMOUNT 

1,891.65· 

95181 
AMOUNT 

2.469.00 
10.16 

95248 
AMOUNT 
400.00 
103.00 

95293 
AMOUNT 

1.500.00 
60 . 00 
81. 00 

112 .40 
17.86 
32.00 

185.38 
25 . 42 
34.31 
60.00 
24.00 

3,900.00 

131013 9/16 / 2015 MICHIGAN HETER TECHNOLOGY GRP INC 95322 
ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

INVOI CE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

8/26 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

VEH REPAIR/ 143168 

8 / 31/2015 001 
DESCR I PTION 

09 ESCAPE/B69634 

7 / 31 / 2015 001 
DE SC RI PT ION 

SUPPLIES 

8 / 24 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

POWER TOOL 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

244.80 

4 0.44 

147.28 

749.99 

8 / 19 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

1,891.65 · 

PRICE ADJ USTMENT 

8 / 06 / 2015 001 2 , 479.16 
DESCRIPTION 

INV 95181 · POCKET 
SHIPPING & HANDLING 

8 / 13/2015 001 503 . 00 
DESCRIPTION 

INV 95248 · SUBCONTRACTOR 
GASKETS.FI TTI NGS, VALVES 

8 / 19/ 2015 001 6,032.37 
DE SCRIPT ION 

I NSTALL ME TERS 
ANTENNA ASSY 6" CABLE 
ANTENNA ASSY 20 ' CABLE 
CROSS TEE BO LT 
HJ GASKET 6 " FLANGE ADAPT 
MI SC PARTS 
BALL VALVE 
BRASS NIPPLE 
6 " UNFLANGE FOR PI PIPE 
3 / 4 X3 " BOLT GRADE 2 
6Xl / 8 " RED GASKET 
INSTALL ME TERS 

8 / 25 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

184 . 00 

SEP . 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 7 

NET DUE DA TE I 
AMOUNT CHK. DAT E 

244 . 80 9 / 23/2 015 

40 . 44 9 /2 3 / 2 015 

147 . 28 9 / 23 / 2 015 

749 . 99 9 / 23 / 2 0 15 

1,891 . 65· 9 / 23 / 20 15 

2 , 479.16 9 / 23 / 20 15 

503 . 00 9 / 23 / 2015 

6 , 032 . 37 9 / 23 / 2 0 15 

184.00 9 /23 / 2015 
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9 / 16 / 15 15 . 16.38 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

592 · 172-963.000 

131018 9 / 16 / 2015 MICHIGAN LINEN SE RVICE 
ACCOUNT 

592 -172·758.000 

131019 9/16/2015 MICHIGAN LINEN SERVICE 
ACCOUNT 

592 - 172 - 759.000 

131018 9 / 16/2015 MICHIGAN LINEN SERVICE 
ACCOUNT 

592·172 -759 . 000 

161272 9 / 16/2015 PLYMOUTH RUBBER & TRANSMISSION 
ACCOUNT 

592 - 291-851 . 000 

161930 9/16 / 2015 AIRGAS USA, LLC 
ACCOUNT 

592. 291·851. 000 
592·291-851.000 

192119 9 / 16/ 2015 SURE · FIT LAUNDRY CO . 
ACCOUNT 

101·325 · 851.000 

192119 9/16/2015 SURE · FIT LAUNDRY CO . 
ACCOUNT 

101·325 -851.000 

62 415 9/16/2015 FREDERICKSON SUPPLY , LLC 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 291 -851 . 000 

11300 9 / 16/2015 ALPHAGRAPHICS #336 

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 

ACCOUNT 
101 -3 71-727 . 000 

79 INVOICES 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNI E 
BATCH .. SEP0515 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

184.00 

327339 
AMOUNT 

77.20 

327624 
AMOUNT 

77 . 20 

327910 
AMOUNT 

77 . 20 

180632 
AMOUNT 

99 .79 

9929393106 
AMOUNT 
30.38 

8.95 

349081 
AMOUNT 

15.75 

349449 
AMOUNT 
31. 50 

01 · 325 
AMOUNT 
319.63 

105873 
AMOUNT 
286 . 36 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

STAKING FLAGS 

8/14 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

UNIFORMS · B/14 / 15 

8/21/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

UNIFORMS · B/21 /15 

8 / 28/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

UNIFORMS · 8 / 28 / 15 

8 / 25/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

SUPPLIES 

7/31/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

RENTAL 
+ HAZMAT 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

77. 20 

77 .20 

77 . 2 0 

99.79 

39 . 33 

8/27/ 2015 001 15 . 75 
DESCRIPTION 

PRISONER BLANKET CLEANING 

9/03/2015 001 31.50 
DESCRIPTION 

PRISONER BLANKET CLEANING 

7/29/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

SWEEPER 

9/09/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

INSPECTION LABELS 

54, 766.71 

319.63 

286.36 

SEP . 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 8 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK . DATE 

77. 20 9 / 23/2015 

77.20 9 /2 3/2015 

77. 2 0 9 /23 /2015 

99 . 79 9 / 23/2015 

39 . 33 9 /23 / 2015 

15 .75 9 / 23 / 2015 

31.50 9 / 23/2015 

319 . 63 9 / 23/2015 

286 . 36 9 / 23 /2015 

54, 766. 71 
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9/16/15 15.06.17 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO . DATE NAME 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH • SEP0615 

SEP . GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 1 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

.. .. .. .. .......................... .... - .... ...... - - - - .......... - .... .... .. .... ...... - ......... - .. - .. . .. .. - .. - - .... ...... - ... ...... ........ .......... .. .. .. ......... - - .. - .......... .. - .... - .......... - - .. - .. - - .. - ....... ...... - - - - -

12050 9/16/2015 ADP INC 
ACCOUNT 

101·290·941.000 

460243357 
AMOUNT 
637.86 

9/04/2015 001 637.86 
DESCRIPTION 

PAYROLL PROCESS 09/11/15 

N 637.86 9/16/2015 

.... .... .. .. - - ......... .. - - - ......... -- ........ - .. .. .. - .... .. ... .. .... .. .......... .... -- .. ............ - - ................. .. - .. .............. .. - .... .. ........ .. .. .. - - ................ .. .......... .............. .. . .... - .. .... ........... .. 

20050 9 / 16 / 2015 B & R JANITORIAL SUPPLY 
ACCOUNT 

101·691 · 931.000 

168180 
AMOUNT 
123.76 

8 / 26/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

TP 2 PLY 96 RLS 

123 . 76 N 123 . 76 9 / 16 / 2015 

.. .... - .. .. - ........ .. - .... ........ - - - .. .. - .. .. -- - ...... .. .. .......... ........... .. - .......... - .. - - ...... .. .. - .... - - .. ..... .. .... .. .... - .. .. .. .......... .. ...... ...... . ...... .... .. - - .................. .. - - .. ................ .. - - - - - - .. -

21360 9/16/2015 BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN OCT 2015 
AMOUNT 
443.37 
443.37 
443.37 
443 . 37 
443 . 37 
443.37 
443 . 37 
264.15 
443.37 
443.37 

130926 9/16/2015 MICHIGAN 

ACCOUNT 
101 · 336·714.000 
101-336·714.000 
101 - 290·714.000 
101·336-714.000 
101 - 336 - 714.000 
101 - 336-714 . 000 
101-336·714.000 
101 - 336·714.000 
101-336·714.000 
101 · 336·714.000 

CONFERENCE OF TEAMSTERS 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 172 · 716.000 
592 · 172 · 716 . 000 
592 - 172 - 716 . 000 
592 · 172-716.000 
5 92·172 · 716.000 
592 · 172 · 716.000 
592 · 172-716.000 

130961 9/16/2015 M M L WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 101 · 720.000 
101·171 ·720 . 000 
101-201 - 72 0 .000 
101·209 ·720 . 000 
101 · 215 · 720.000 
101 · 220-720.000 
101 - 247-720.000 
101 · 253- 720.000 
101·265- 720.000 
101·290-720.000 
101 · 305 · 720.000 
101-325·720 . 000 
101 · 336· 720.000 
101 · 371·720 . 000 
101·400 - 720.000 
101·691· 720.000 

OCT 2015 
AMOUNT 

1 , 743.75 
2 . 092 . 50· 
1,743 . 75 
l, 743. 75 
1 , 743.75 
1. 743. 75 
1,743.75 

2381204 
AMOUNT 

12.00 
95 . 00 
68 . 50 
21. 50 

160.00 
2.00 
7.00 

86.00 
187 .00 

1. 25 
7 .629. 50 

299.55 
8,398.50 

2 18 . 00 
21.50 

428.50 

9/04/2015 001 4.254.48 
DESCRIPTION 

BELSKY, B (SPOUSE) OCT 
BELSKY, D (RETIREE) OCT 
HAGOPIAN , G (RETIREE) OCT 
HONKE , A (SPOUSE) OCT 
KNUPP , F (RETIREE) OCT 
KNUPP , L (SPOUSE) OCT 
MAAS , C (RETIREE) OCT 
Ml CLAIM TAX ASSESSMENT OCT 
MOTHERSBAUGH, F (RETIREE) OCT 
MOTHERSBAUGH, S (RETIREE) OCT 

9/03 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

BARTLETT, J OCT 
COURTER, R CRED 
KRUEGER, R OCT 
MELOW . s OCT 
OVERAITIS, J OCT 
SCHOLTEN, J OCT 
THOMAS, J OCT 

9/ 01/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COM P 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORK ERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 

8,370.00 

FOR SEPT OCT 

19,649.00 

N 4,254.48 9/16/2015 

N 8,370.00 9/16/2015 

N 19,649.00 9/ 16 / 2015 
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9/16/15 15.06.17 INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0615 Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

101·801-720.000 
101·815 · 720.000 
226·226 · 720.000 
592 · 172 - 720.000 

190310 9/16/2015 SCHULTZ ANO YOUNG, P.C. 
ACCOUNT 

101-325 - 828 . 000 
101-336 - 826.000 
101 - 290-826.000 
101-305 - 826.000 
592 - 172-830.000 

191650 9/16/2015 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS 
ACCOUNT 

510-510-776.000 
510-510-776.000 

191650 9/16/2015 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS 

230125 9/16/2015 WCA ASSESSING 

ACCOUNT 
510 - 510 - 776.000 
510-510 - 776.000 
510·510-776.000 

ACCOUNT 
101·209-826.000 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

8.00 
2.50 

65.70 
1 , 937.00 

20597 · 20598 
AMOUNT 

228.75 
1,715.63 

11702955 
AMOUNT 

12.52 
62.24 

11702297 
AMOUNT 

16.68 
247.72 
49.10 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

1,835.26 

230555 9/16/2015 WESTERN TWNSPS UTILITI ES AUTHORITY AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 

ACCOUNT 
592-100 - 185.000 
592 -443 - 937.000 
592 · 441 - 743.000 
592 -441 - 742.000 

10 INVOICES 

588.47 
3,816.65 

300,118.47 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 
WORKERS COMP 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

8/30 /201 5 001 1,944.38 
DESCRIPTION 

LEGAL SERVICE AUG 
LEGAL SERVICE AUG 
LEGAL SERVICE AUG 
LEGAL SERVICE AUG 
LEGAL SERVICE AUG 

9/02/2015 001 74.76 
DESCRIPTION 

FREIGHT 
HARNESS-WIRE FUSIBLE LINK 

8 /26/ 2015 001 313.50 
DESCRIPTION 

FREIGHT 
ROLLER LARGE LESS SHAFT 
SHAFT 

9/10 / 2015 001 1.835.26 
DE SC RI PTI ON 

LEGAL SERVICES AUG15 

9/09/2015 001 304,523 . 59 
DESCRIPTION 

CAPITAL IHPR MAY 2015 AUG 
COUNTRY ACRES P STA HAINT AUG 
YCUA IPP AUG 
YCUA/OPERATING MA Y 2015 AUG 

341 ,726.59 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 2 

NET DUE DA TE I 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

1 ,944.38 9/16/2015 

74.76 9 / 16/2015 

313.50 9 / 16/2015 

1,835.26 9/16/2015 

304,523 . 59 9/16/2015 

341.726.59 
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9/14/15 15 . 01.51 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. OATE NAME 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0415 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 1 

NET DUE DATE/ 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

.. .... - .......... -........... - ......... - - ............ - ...... .. .. - .......................................................... ...... ...... - ............... - .................................. .. .... .. .. .. - .................. - - .. .... .. ...... .. - - - .. .. 

12032 9/14/2015 ASSOCIATED NEWSPAPERS OF MICHIGAN 
ACCOUNT 

101-215 - 813.000 

41790 
AMOUNT 
22.48 

9/03/2015 001 22 - 48 
DESCRIPTION 

BOT MTG NOTICE SEPT 2015 

N 22.48 9 / 14/2015 

....................... - ............ - ........ .. - - ............................ .. -.... .................................. - - .......... .. - - ........ .. .. .... .. .. ........ .... ................ .......... ........................... .... - .... .......... .. - - - - .. 

40585 9/14/2015 DETROIT BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONER004·1091.400 9/10/2015 001 19,384.75 N 19.384.75 9/14/2015 
ACCOUNT AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

592-441-743.000 19.384.75 IWC CHARGES - AUG 2015 
...... - - .......... - ........ - .... - .. ..... .. - .. ..... .... .......... .. .. - ...... ......... - ........ .. ...... -.... - ........ .. - ...... .. .. - .. .. .. .. .... .. .... .......... ......... ... .. ... - .............. - - - - .. .............. - - - . ... . .... - .. - - - .. . 

31460 9/14/2015 CONSUMERS ENERGY 

130982 9/14/2015 MICHIGAN,STATE OF 

ACCOUNT 
101-171-921.000 
101-201 - 921.000 
101-209-921.000 
101-215-921.000 
101·253-921.000 
101-265. 854. 000 
101-265 -776.000 
101·305-921.000 
101·315 ·951.000 
101-325-921.000 
101 -336-921.000 
101·371-921.000 
101-400 - 921.000 
101·691-921.000 
226-226-921.000 
592-172·921.000 
510-510 -737 .000 
592-444-745.000 
101-265. 921. 000 
226·226-921.000 
510-510·737.000 
592 - 172·921.000 
592-444 - 745.000 
101·265·921.000 
226 - 226-921.000 
510 · 510-737.000 
592 · 172. 921. 000 
592-444-745-000 

ACCOUNT 
703- 100-225.010 

160700 9/14/2015 PERFORMANCE STAGING INC. 
ACCOUNT 

701 - 100-056.000 

160700 9/14/2015 PERFORMANCE STAGING INC . 
ACCOUNT 

AUG 2015 
AMO UNT 
141. 29 

75.60 
40.44 

122.79 
51.28 
19.92 

405.77 

168.92 
190.70 
88.95 
49.83 

160. 72 
11.71 

143.32 
12.50 
26 . 49 

1,516.21· 
11. 71 · 
12.50· 

143.32 -
26.49· 

1 , 516.21 
11. 71 
12.50 

143.32 
26.49 

SEP 2015 
AH OU NT 

155,651.08 

20 15-11 76 
AMOUNT 

l,115.50 

2015 · 11 77 
AMOUNT 

9/01/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NAT URAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 

NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 

NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATURAL GAS 
AUG15 NATU RA L 
AUG15 NATURAL 
AUG15 NATURAL 
AUG1 5 NATURAL 
AUG15 NATURAL 
AUG15 NATURAL 

9/12/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

IFT 

7/08/2015 001 
DESCR IPT ION 

FIREWORKS 

7/08/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

GAS 
GAS 
GAS 
GAS 
GAS 
GAS 

1,710.23 N l,710.23 9 / 14 / 2015 

155.651.08 N 155 .651.08 9 / 14 / 2015 

1,115 . 50 N 1,115.50 9 / 14 / 2015 

1. 025. 00 N 1. 025 .00 9/ 14/ 2015 
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9/14/15 15.01.51 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

701·100·055.000 

570 9/14/2015 EDWARDS, RON TREASURER 

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 

ACCOUNT 
701·100-056.000 
701·100·056.000 

7 INVOICES 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH • SEP0415 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

1.025.00 

JULY 2015 
AMOUNT 
202.01 
445.17 

INVOICE 
DATE 

PICNIC 

BANK 
CODE 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

9/12/2015 001 647.18 
DESCRIPTION 

FIREWORKS TABLECLOTHS 
FIREWORKS KROGER 

179,556.22 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 2 

NET DUE DATE/ 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

647. 18 9114/2015 

179,556.22 



150

9/09 / 15 13 . 58 . 13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

11242 9 / 09/2015 ALERUS FINANCIAL 
ACCOUNT 

101·100·231.000 
101·325·714.050 

INVOICE EDI T LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

SEP. INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 

89.44 
268.32 

9/08/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

RODRIGUEZ , T EE 
RODRIG UEZ. T ER 

357. 76 N 

CD0130 
PAGE 1 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CH K. DATE 

357.76 9/09/2015 

.. - -- - ..... .... - ..... - .. - .. - ........ - - .. - ...... - .. - .. .... .. - - .... .... .. - ....... - .. - ......... -- - - ......... - - .. - .. - -............. -- - ........ -........ ....... . -- .. - ...... ... -- - - .......... .. - - ...... - . .. .. .. - - - .. 

11450 9/09/2015 A T & T 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 325 - 853.000 

734R01030609 
AMOUNT 
348.50 

9 / 01 / 2015 001 348.50 
DESCRIPTION 

AUG15 VIDEO ARRAIGNMENT 

N 348.50 9/09/2015 

.. - .. - - ........ - .. ........ - - -... - .. - .......... - .... ........ -- - - .... .. .. - . - ........................... -- -............. - - .. ............. - - .... - ...... - - ... .. .. ...... - - - - ... .. .... .. .... .. - - - ............ - - - - - .. ............ - - - -

11450 9/09/2015 A T & T 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 201 - 853.000 
101 · 209·853.000 
101-371-853.000 
101 - 336 -853.000 
101-305-853.000 
101-171 - 853.000 
101-253-853 . 000 
101-215 -853.000 
101 - 400 -853.000 
101·325-853.000 
226·226-853.000 
592·172 · 853 . 000 
592-291 - 805 . 000 
101·265 - 854.000 
101-691-853 . 000 
101-265-853.000 
226·226-853.000 
592 - 172-853.000 
101·265·853.000 
226·226-853.000 
592-172-853.000 

734R01977709 
AMOUNT 

91. 91 
57.28 

101.90 
345.25 
270.23 
122 . 65 

79.51 
123.08 
148 . 02 
130.90 

13.00 
116. 97 

43.32 
15.54 
38.74 

1.525 . 01 
13 . 00 

160.29 
1.525.01 · 

13.00 · 
160.29 · 

22257 9/09/2015 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF MI 710439560 
ACCOUNT AMOUNT 

101-371 -818.000 
101·691- 72 7 .000 101.50 
101-209 -72 7 .000 
101-305-818.000 
101 - 325 -835 . 000 
592 - 172·72 7 . 000 
101 · 336-835.000 

9/01/2015 001 
DESCRIPT ION 

AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG 15 TELEPHONE 
AUG 15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TE LEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUG15 TE LEPHONE 
AUG15 TE LEPHONE 
AUG15 TELEPHONE 
AUGl S TE LE PHON E 
AUG15 TELE PHONE 

1. 698.30 

9/01/2015 001 101. 50 
DESCRIPTION 

PRE-P LACEMENT PHYSICAL 
PREPLACEHENT 
PREPLACEHENT 
PREPLACEMENT · POLICE 
PREPLACEMENT PHYSICAL 
REG UDS COLLECT I BAT 
RETURN TO WORK PHYS - FIRE 

N 1,698.30 9 / 09/ 2 015 

N 101.50 9/ 09 /2015 

- ......... - .. .. .. .... ....... ... - .. - ..... - ............... ....... .. .. .. .. .. .. - . - .. - ............... - .. - - - - -....... .. - - ...... - .. .. - - --....... -- - .... ---.... .. - -.... ...... .. .. .. - .. - .............. - .... ....... .... .... .. .. 

30010 9/09/2015 C.O.A.H. · PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP 
ACCOUNT 

101·100-232.050 
101·100 -232 .050 
101·100-232 . 050 
101-100 - 2 32.050 

S EP 2015 
AMOUNT 

6 7 .3 1 
67.31 
67.31 
6 7 . 3 1 

9/03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

269.24 N 269.24 9/09/2015 



151

9/09/15 13.58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH • SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 2 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

............................................ -.. - .. - - ...... .. .. ......... - ......... .. - .. ........ ................ - - ........ .. .................. ........... - .... .. ........ - - .. .......... .. ........ .. .... .. - .... ....... .... - - .. ......... .... - - .. .. 

31421 9/09/2015 COMCAST 
ACCOUNT 

101 - 290 - 941.000 

0952053400401-4 
AMOUNT 
112. 90 

8/28/2015 001 112.90 N 112. 90 9/09/2015 
DESCRIPTION 

INTERNET 9/9/15 - 10/8/15 SEP 
..... - - .......... .. - ...... - - - ............ .. .. ..... .... - .......... - .. ........ . - .... ........ .. - .. .. .. .. . ........ .......... ...... ......... ...... ........... - ...... . .... .. - - .. - ......... ...... .......... - - .... ..... - .... - - ............. .. .. - -

31428 9/09/2015 COMCAST 
ACCOUNT 

101-290 - 941.000 

37624022 
AMOUNT 
194.85 

9/01/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

TWP SEPT 2015 

194.85 N 194.85 9/09/2015 

.. ...... - ............................ - ...................... .. ... .... - - - .. .... .. .. - .... ........ .. ............ .. - .. ............. - .... .. ...... ........ .......... .. - . ........... - - ..................... - .......... ........ .......... ... ..... . 

31505 9/09/2015 CORPORATE CLEANING GROUP INC 

60805 9/09/2015 FELLRATH. PATRICK 

130061 9/09/2015 M E R S 

ACCOUNT 
101-305 - 776.000 
101-265-776.000 
592-172 - 776.000 
101-336 - 776.000 
101-325-818.000 
101-265 - 776.000 
101-265 - 776.000 

ACCOUNT 
592-172-727 . 000 

ACCOUNT 
101·305 · 714.010 
101-305 - 714.030 
101-305 -7 14.030 
101 - 305 · 714.030 
101 · 305 - 714.030 
101 - 305 - 714.030 
101 - 305 - 714.030 
101 - 305-714.030 
101-305 - 714.030 
101 - 305-714.030 
101 - 305 · 714.030 
101-305 - 714.030 
101 - 305 - 714.030 
101 - 305 - 714.030 
101 - 305 · 714.030 
101-305 - 714.030 
101 -305 - 714 . 030 
101 -305 -714.010 
101 · 305-714.030 
101-305·714.030 
101 - 305-714.030 
265 - 300-714.030 
101- 305 - 714. 030 
101 -305-714.030 
101 -305-714.030 

1282 
AMOUNT 
904.37 
893.97 
187. 11 

93.55 
174.00 
477.00 
500.00 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 
157.55 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

1,359.84 
736.22 

1,359.85 
1.096.05 
1.143. 88 
1,091.69 

974.27 
1,397.55 

815 . 08 
1,043.86 

687.06 
1,148.23 

677. 98 
1,004.71 

867.30 
1,220.97 
1.246 . 20 
1,359.84 
1.043 . 85 

978.61 
1,004.71 
1,048.21 
1,017.76 

913.67 
1,352.14 

7/09/2015 001 3 ,230.00 
DESCRIPTION 

CLEANING JUL 
CLEANING JUL 
CLEANING JUL 
CLEANING JUL 
HAZ MAT JULY 2015 JUL 
SPEICAL CLEANING 6/22-24 JUL 
STRIP & WAX WEIGHT ROOM JU L 

9 / 03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

MILEAGE AUGUST 2015 

8/31/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

157 . 55 

29.222.86 

N 3.230.00 9/09/2015 

N 157.55 9/09/2015 

N 29.222.86 9/09/2015 
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9/09/15 13 . 5B.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE 

130061 9/09/ 2015 H E R S 

130061 9 / 09/2015 M E R S 

NAME 

101 · 305·714 . 030 
101 · 305·714.030 
101·305·714.030 

ACCOUNT 
101·100 · 231 . 000 
101·100-231.000 
101-100 · 231.000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101-100·231.000 
101 - 100 - 231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101-100 · 231 . 000 
101 - 100-231 . 000 
101 - 100·231 . 000 
101·100 - 231 . 000 
101 · 100 - 231.000 
101 · 100-231.000 
101 - 100 · 231 . 000 
101-100 · 231 . 000 
101·100·231 . 000 
101 · 100-231.000 
101 · 100 - 231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101-100 · 231 . 000 
101 · 100-231.000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101 · 100-231.000 
101·100 - 231.000 
101 - 100 - 231. 000 
101 · 100 -231 . 000 
101-100 -231. 000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 

ACCOUNT 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101·100 · 231 . 000 
101·100 - 231 . 000 
101 · 100 - 231.000 
101·100 - 231.000 
101-100-231 . 000 
101·100·231.000 
101·100·231 . 000 
101 - 100-231.000 
101 · 100·231 . 000 
101-100-231.000 
101 · 100-231 . 000 
101·100·231.000 
101-100-231.000 
101 -100-231.000 

INVOICE EDI T LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

913. 76 
1. 097. 36 

622 . 21 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 
542.70 
293.82 
542 . 70 
437 . 41 
456.51 
435.68 
388.82 
557.74 
325.29 
416.59 
274 . 20 
45B.25 
270 . 58 
400.97 
346.14 
487.28 
497.34 
542.70 
416 . 59 
390.56 
400.97 
418.32 
406.17 
364.64 
539.62 
364 . 68 
437 . 95 
248.32 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 
617.73 
536.61 
615.37 
685.66 
668.44 
591. 30 
525.26 
626 . 29 
577.34 
525. 76 
525.22 
B02.97 
766 . 68 
526.20 
666.62 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

8 / 31/2015 001 
DESCRI PTION 

8/31 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

11 , 662.54 N 

9 , 871.84 N 

CD0 130 
PAGE 3 

NET DUE DATE I 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

11 ,662. 54 9/09 / 2015 

9. 871.84 9 /09 / 2 015 



153

9/09/15 13 .58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 4 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

.. - .. - - .... .. - - - .. - . - - .... -... - . --- - ...... - - - -- .. - .. - .. - - - - - ...... - - - ...... - .. .. .. ...... .... ....... ................. - ...... - - .......... - - . - .... - - - - .. - .... - - -....... - - - ........ - - - .......... ... - - . 
101·100-231.000 614.39 

...... ................. - ... - - .... ..... ........ - - ...... .. - ................................. - .. ...... .... - ...... .. . .. .. ........ .. -.... ...... - - .. . ..... - ................................................................ - ...... ...... .. .. .. - .. 

130061 9/09/2015 M E R S 

130061 9/09/2015 H E R S 

130061 9/09/2015 H E R S 

ACCOUNT 
101·336 - 714.020 
101 · 336-714.020 
101 · 336 - 714.020 
101·336 · 714.020 
101 · 336·714 . 020 
101 · 336·714.020 
101 · 336-714.020 
101 · 336 · 714.020 
101 · 336·714 . 020 
101·336 · 714.020 
101·336 · 714.020 
101 · 336 · 714.020 
101 · 336-714 . 020 
101 · 336 · 714.020 
101·336 · 714.020 
10 1· 336-714.020 

ACCOUNT 
101·100·231.000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101·100·231.000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101·100 - 231.000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101·100-231.000 
101·100·231.000 
101·100 · 231.000 

ACCOUNT 
101·325 · 714.050 
101·325 · 714.050 
101·325·714.050 
101·325 · 714 . 050 
101·325-714.050 
101·325. 714 . 050 
101 · 325·714.050 
101·325. 714. 050 
101·325·714.050 
101 ·325·714.050 

130065 9/09/2015 H H R BILLING SERVICES 
ACCOUNT 

101·336 · 727.000 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

1,359.01 
l , 180.53 
1.353.83 
1,508.46 
1 , 470.56 
1,300.86 
1,155.55 
1,377. 83 
1.270.13 
1.156.67 
1,155.47 
1,766.54 
1. 686. 69 
1.157.64 
1,466.57 
1.351.66 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 
421. 87 
402.40 
423.22 
446.78 
425.68 
452.70 
443.82 
423.29 
429.02 
435.55 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 
343.82 
327.95 
344.92 
364 . 12 
346.93 
368.95 
361. 71 
344.99 
349.64 
354.97 

2403 
AMOUNT 
486.00 

8 / 31 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

8/31 / 20 15 001 
DESCRIPTION 

8 / 31/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

6/30/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

BILLING FEES JUN15 

21,718.00 N 21.718.00 9/09/2015 

4,304.33 N 4,304.33 9/09/2015 

3,508.00 N 3,508.00 9/09/2015 

486.00 N 486.00 9/09/20 15 
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9/09/15 13 .58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 5 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

.. ......... - - ...... ........ - .. - - ...... - ...... . .. . - .. .. ..... .. - ........ -- ....... - ...... - .. -.... ..... .. .. .. - - ........ - - ...... ....... .. ..... .. .. .............. - ........ .... .......... .. - .......... - - . ...... .. .. .. - - ......... - - - .... . 

130139 9/09/2015 JOHN HANCOCK LIFE INSURANCE CO. 
ACCOUNT 

101·100·231.000 
101·100-231 . 000 
101·100. 231. 000 
101·100. 231. 000 
101 ·100·231.000 
101·100 · 231 .000 
101-100 · 231 . 000 
101 - 100 · 231.000 
101 · 100 - 231 . 000 
101-100 - 231 . 000 
101 - 100·231.000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101 - 100 - 231 .000 
101-100 . 231. 000 
101 · 100 . 231. 000 
101 - 100 - 231.000 
101-100-231.000 
101 - 100 · 231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 - 100 - 231.000 
101·100 - 231 .000 
101 - 100-231.000 
101 - 100-231.000 
101·100-231.000 
101-100-231.000 
101-100-231 . 000 
101 - 100-231.000 
101-100-231 . 000 
101 · 100 · 231 . 000 
101 · 100-231 . 000 
101 - 100·231.000 
101·100-231.000 
101-100-231 . 000 
101-100-231 . 000 

130139 9/09/2015 JOHN HANCOCK LIFE INSURANCE CO. 
ACCOUNT 

592. 291·714 . 040 
592·291 · 714 .010 
101 -2 15 - 714 . 010 
101-171 · 714 .010 
592 ·291-714 . 040 
101·336 . 714. 020 
101·253 - 714 . 010 
592·291 · 714.010 
101 -305-714 . 010 
101 · 265-714.010 
101·336-714.020 
101 · 253. 714. 010 
101 -325·714 . 050 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

90.60 
117. 68 
195.02 
172.32 

99.88 
88.42 

195.02 
193.17 

78.02 
106.80 

180.49 

95.12 
166.56 
106 . 80 

90 .60 
115 . 38 

90.60 

65.24 
88 . 42 

214 . 20 
103.55 
82.34 
88.42 

100 . 00 
90 . 60 
90.60 

216.26 

118. 53 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 
271. 80 
353.04 
585.06 
516.96 
299.64 
265 . 27 
585 . 06 
579.51 
265.28 
220.28 
234.06 
320 . 41 
265.28 

9 /03/201 5 001 
DESCRIPTION 

9/03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

3,440.64 

12,835.43 

A 

A 

3,440.64 9/09/20 15 

12,835.43 9/09/20 15 
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9/09/15 13.58 . 13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

101-201·714.010 
101·336·714. 010 
592. 291·714. 040 
592·172-714.010 
101 · 215·714.010 
101·371-714 . 010 
101 ·215·714.010 
592·291·714.040 
101·336·714 . 010 
592·291 ·714.040 
101 · 371·714.010 
101·305. 714 . 010 
101·336·714.020 
101 · 171·714.010 
101·371·714.010 
101·400 ·714 . 010 
592·291·714.040 
101 ·336·714.020 
592·172-714.010 
592·291·714.040 
592 ·291·714.040 
101-305-714.010 
226. 226. 714 . 010 
592·172-714.010 
101·l71·714. 010 

130139 9/09 /2015 JOHN HANCOCK LIFE INSURANCE CO. 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 100-231.000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101 · 100 . 231. 000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101 · 100-231.000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101 · 100·231 . 000 
101 · 100 · 231 . 000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 · 100 - 231.000 
101·100 · 231.000 
101 · 100 · 231 . 000 
101 · 100 · 231 .000 
101 · 100 · 231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 · 100·231 .000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101·100·231 . 000 
101 · 100·231.000 
101 · 100. 231. 000 

INVOICE EDI T LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

541. 48 
230.74 
285.36 
230.74 
291. 83 
499.68 
320.41 
271.80 
346.15 
271. 80 
252 .11 
230.74 
265.27 
642.60 
291. 63 
310.64 
247.01 
265.27 
230.74 
271. 60 
271. 80 
646.78 
291. 83 
207.79 
355.58 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 

90.60 
117. 68 
195 . 02 
172.32 
123.08 
88.42 

195.02 
193.17 

78. 02 
106.BO 

180 . 49 

95.12 
166.56 
106.80 

90.60 
115. 38 
90.60 

65.24 
88.42 

214.20 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

9/03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

3,463 .84 B 

CD0130 
PAGE 6 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

3,463.84 9/09/2015 



156

9/09/ 15 13 . 58 . 13 
Cha r ter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO . DATE NAME 

101 · 100- 231. 000 
101·100 · 231 . 000 
101 - 100-231.000 
101 - 100 - 231.000 
101 - 100-231 . 000 
101-100 - 231 . 000 
101·100 - 231.000 
101-100 - 231.000 
101·100 - 231 . 000 

130139 9 / 09 / 2015 JOHN HANCOCK LIFE INSURANCE CO . 
ACCOUNT 

592 · 291-714.040 
592 - 291-714.010 
101·215-714 . 010 
101 - 171-714.010 
592·291·714 . 040 
101 -336-714.020 
101-253 - 714.010 
592 - 291 - 714 . 010 
101 -305-714 . 010 
101·265 - 714.010 
101 - 336-714 . 020 
101 -253-714.010 
101 - 325-714 . 050 
101-201 - 714 . 0 10 
101-336 · 714.010 
592 -291-714 . 040 
592-172 - 714 . 010 
101 -215-714.010 
101·37 1-714 . 010 
101-215 - 714 . 010 
592 - 291-714.040 
101·336 · 714.010 
592 - 291· 714 . 040 
101 -371-714.010 
101 · 305-714 . 010 
101 -336-714 . 020 
101 -171·714. 010 
101 - 371-714 . 010 
101-400 · 714 . 010 
592-291 - 714 . 040 
101-336-714.020 
592-172 - 714 . 010 
592 . 291·714. 040 
592 - 291 - 714.040 
101 · 305 - 714.010 
226-226 - 714.010 
592 - 172-714.010 
101 - 171-714.010 

130140 9/09/ 2015 JOHN HANCOCK LIFE INSURANCE CO . 
ACCOUNT 

I NVO I CE EDIT LISTING 

INVOI CE 
NUMBER 

103 . 55 
82.34 
88.42 

100 . 00 
90 . 60 
90.60 

216.26 

118. 53 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 
271.80 
353.04 
585.06 
516.96 
369.23 
265.27 
585.06 
579.51 
265.28 
220.28 
234.06 
320.41 
265.28 
541. 48 
230.74 
285.36 
230.74 
291. 83 
499.68 
320.41 
271.80 
346.15 
271. 80 
252.11 
230. 74 
265 . 27 
642.60 
291.83 
310.64 
247.01 
265.27 
230.74 
271.80 
271.80 
648.78 
291. 83 
207.79 
355.58 

AUG 2015 
AMOUNT 

IN VO I CE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

9/03 / 2015 001 
DE SC RI PTI ON 

8/27 / 2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH .. SEP03 15 

S EP. GROSS 
AM OU NT CHECK 

12 , 905 . 02 B 

8 4 . 40 N 

CD0130 
PAGE 7 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMO UNT CHK. DATE 

12 , 905.02 9 / 09 / 201 5 

84 . 40 9 / 09 / 201 5 
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9/09/15 13.58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

101-100 -237.000 
101·100 · 237.000 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

20 . 00 
64.40 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

ANTAL. ROBERT AUG15 
JOWSEY, NANCY AUG15 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

SEP. 
CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 8 

NE T DUE DATE/ 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

... -- - ...... - - . - ..... - - - - .. ... --.. - --..... - .. - .. - ....................... - - .. -- .. .. - ...... - .. - - .. .. .. .. - - .......... -.................. -....... .......... - ............ - - ......... - - - ......... - - - ....... .... - - ...... .. . 

130963 9/09/2015 MICHIGAN. STATE OF 
ACCOUNT 

101-371-958. 000 

140150 9/09/2015 NATIONWIDE RET SOL USCM/MIDWEST 
ACCOUNT 

101-100-239.000 
101·100-239 . 000 
101·100-239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101 - 100-239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101 · 100-239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101 · 100-239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101·100·239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101-100-239 . 000 
101·100 · 239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101-100 - 239.000 
101·100 - 239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101·100 - 239.000 
101 - 100-239.000 
101-100 · 239.000 
101 · 100·239.000 
101·100 - 239.000 
101·100 · 239.000 
101 · 100-239.000 
101·100 - 239.000 
101-100 - 239.000 
101·100 - 239.000 
101·100 · 239.000 
101-100 -239.000 
101 · 100·239.000 
101 · 100·239.000 
101 · 100-239.000 
101 -100-239.000 
101·100-239 . 000 
101 -100-239.000 
101·100·239.000 
101·100 · 239 . 000 
101 · 100-239.000 
101 · 100 · 239.000 
101 · 100 · 239 . 000 

002417 
AMOUNT 
225 .00 

0037121001 
AMOUNT 
307.69 
415.64 
350.00 

40 . 00 
100.00 
50.00 

100.00 
200.00 

20.00 
100.00 
30.60 

300.00 
270.00 

20.00 
125.00 

10 . 00 
650.00 
150.00 
50.00 

415.64 
330.00 

36.00 
150.00 
100 .00 
100.00 
450.00 

693.00 
782.00 

200.00 
200.00 

50.00 
200.00 

30.00 
250.00 
150.00 
150.00 
175.00 
240.00 
20.00 

150.00 
200.00 

8/20/2015 001 225.00 
DESCRIPTION 

PLY TWP REGIST 002417 

9/03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

12,376.57 

N 225.00 9/09/2015 

N 12,376.57 9/09/2015 
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9/09/15 13.58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

101-100-239.000 
101 - 100-239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101 -100-239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101-100·239 . 000 
101-100-239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101·100-239.000 
101-100-239.000 
101 - 100-239.000 
101·100 - 239.000 
101-100 - 239.000 
101 · 100-239.000 
101 - 100 - 239.000 
101-100 - 239 . 000 
101 - 100-239.000 
101 - 100 - 239.000 
101 - 100 - 239.000 
101 - 100-239.000 

160005 9/09/2015 P.O.A.M. · PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP 
ACCOUNT 

101-100 - 232.010 
101 - 100-232.040 
101·100 -232.040 
101 -100·232.040 
101·100 - 232.010 
101-100-232.010 
101·100-232.040 
101·100-232 . 010 
101 - 100-232.040 
101·100 -232.010 
101 · 100·232 . 040 
101·100 · 232.010 
101 - 100 · 232.010 
101 · 100 - 232 . 010 
101 · 100-232.010 
101·100 -232.010 
101 · 100-232.010 
101 - 100-232 . 040 
101 - 100-232 . 010 
101 - 100-232.010 
101·100 - 232.010 
101-100 - 232.010 
101·100-232.040 
101 · 100 · 232 . 010 
101 - 100-232.010 
101 · 100 · 232.010 
101 · 100-232.040 
101·100 - 232.010 
101 -100-232.010 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

200.00 
120.00 

67.00 
50.00 

130.00 
35.00 

100.00 
150.00 
300.00 
125 .00 
50.00 

250.00 
200.00 
100.00 
100.00 
150.00 
50.00 

1,139.00 
100.00 
100.00 
500.00 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 

62.31 
43.44 
43.44 
48.44 
62.31 
62.31 
48.44 
62.31 
43.44 
62.31 
43.44 
62.31 
62.31 
62.31 
57. 31 
62.31 
62.31 
48.44 
62.31 
62.31 
62.31 
62.31 
43.44 
62.31 
62.31 
62.31 
43.44 
62.31 
62.31 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

9/03/2015 001 
DE SC RI PTI ON 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

l,796.35 N 

CD0130 
PAGE 9 

NET OUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

1.796.35 9/09/20 15 
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9/09/15 13.58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

GGLENNIE 
BATCH .. SEP0315 

SEP. GROSS 
AMOUNT CHECK 

CD0130 
PAGE 10 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOU NT CHK. DATE 

...... ___ ···--- · -----· ···- --· ·· ·· - --··· -- --··· ·-- ·-- - - -- ····· ·--········ ····· ······ .. ··--······------ · ---- ····· --- · ·· .. -- ----··· · ···--- - · 
101 · 100 · 232.040 
101·100 · 232.010 
101 · 100 · 232.040 

43 . 44 
62 . 31 
43.44 

.. - .. - ..... ...... .......... - - .... ... - - .... .. - .. .. - .......... -- .. -........ - .. ......... ...... .......... .... .. - ...... .. - .. .. .... - .. .. - - ........ ...... - ........... .... - .. ...... .. .. .. . ... . ......... ....... .......... ... - - ...... .......... - .. .. 

161293 9/09/2015 PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP SENIORS 
ACCOUNT 

101·265·858.000 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 

79. 27 

9/03/20 15 001 
OESCR IPT JON 

PAPER PRODUCTS 

79.27 N 79.27 9 / 09 / 2 0 15 

...... ........ .......... ............. .. .. .. - .... .. - .... - ...... .. .. - .... .. . .. .. .. .. .. ...... ............ .......... .. - - .. .. ..... - .. - - .... - .... .. - .... .... ........ - - .............. - .. - ............................... - .... ......... ... .... ... .. .... . 

161298 9/09/2015 CHARTER TWSP OF PLYMOUTH 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 171 - 921.000 
101-201 · 921.000 
101 · 209 · 921.000 
101 · 215 · 921.000 
101 · 253 · 921.000 
101 · 265 · 854.000 
101 · 265 ·776.000 
101 · 305 - 921.000 
101·315 · 951.000 
101 · 325·921.000 
101·336 · 921.000 
101 · 371 · 921.000 
101·400·921.000 
101·691·921.000 
226-226·921.000 
592·172 - 921.000 
510·510 ·737.000 
592·444 - 745.000 
101·265 · 921.000 
226. 226 . 921. 000 
510·510 - 737.000 
592·172 - 921.000 
592 · 444 ·745.000 
101 -265 · 921.000 
226 · 226 · 921.000 
510 · 510 ·737.000 
592 ·172-921.000 
592·444-745.000 

161850 9/09/2015 PROGRESSIVE PRINTING 

180550 9/09/2015 R.D.REOHE COMPANY 

ACCOUNT 
101·955-885.000 
592 - 172 ·727.000 

ACCOUNT 
101·400·727.000 

19 1687 9/09/20 15 SPENCER OI L COMPANY 
ACCOUNT 

JULY 2015 
AMOUNT 

36.63 
19.60 
10.49 
31.84 
13.30 

540.42 

105.21 

43.80 
5,862.74 

23.06 
12.92 

11,314.54 
3.04 

965.73 
228.89 

52 . 87 
18 , 014.55 · 

3.04 · 
228.89 · 
965.73 · 

52 . 87· 
18,014.55 

3.04 
228.89 
965.73 

52.87 

462988 
AMOUNT 

10 , 439 .23 
3,479. 75 

10514 
AMOUNT 
366.00 

484701 
AMOUNT 

8/19/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

J UL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 

WATER 
JUL15 WATER 

WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JULlS WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 
JUL15 WATER 

7 / 01 /2 015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

JUNE NEWSLETTERS 
JUNE NEWS LETTE RS 

9 /0 1/2015 001 
DESCRI PTION 

HAINT 9/B/15·9/8/16 

8 /2 6 /2 015 001 
DESCRIPTI ON 

19 ,265.08 N 19 ,265.08 9 /09 /2015 

13,918.98 N 13.918.98 9/09/2015 

366.00 N 366.00 9/09/2015 

952.15 N 9 52 . 15 9/09/2015 
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9/09/15 13.58.13 INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH .. SEP0315 Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

510-510-737.000 

191687 9/09/2015 SPENCER OIL COMPANY 
ACCOUNT 

510-510 - 737.000 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

952.15 

484702 
AMOUNT 
532.21 

200260 9/09/2015 TECHNICAL, PROFESSIONAL AND OFFICE-SEP 2015 

200120 9/09/2015 TEAMSTER LOCAL # 

220290 9/09/2015 VERIZON WIRELESS 

ACCOUNT 
101 - 100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101 - 100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101 - 100 - 232.060 
101 - 100-232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232 . 060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101 · 100-232 . 060 
101 - 100-232.060 
101 - 100 - 232 . 060 
101·100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101 - 100-232.060 
101- 100 - 232.060 
101-100 - 232.060 
101 - 100-232.060 
101 - 100 - 232.060 
101 -1 00 - 232.060 
101 - 100-232.060 
101·100 - 232.060 

214 
ACCOUNT 

101 · 100-232.030 
101 - 100-232.030 
101 · 100-232.030 
101 - 100-232 . 030 
101 - 100-232.030 
101 · 100-232.030 
101 · 100 · 232.030 

ACCOUNT 
101-215-853.000 
101-253-853.000 
101·305- 853.000 
101-371-853.000 
101 -2 01 -853.000 

SEP 

AMOUNT 
15.50 
15.50 
15.50 
15.50 
15.50 
15.50 
15.50 
31. 00 
31. 00 
31.00 
31.00 
31.00 
31. 00 
15.50 
15.50 
15.50 
31.00 
31. 00 
31. 00 
15.50 
31.00 
15.50 
31. 00 
31. 00 

2015 
AMOUNT 

52.00 
55.00 
52.00 
52.00 
47.00 
52.00 
52.00 

9751369055 
AMOUNT 
129.90 
139.77 
439.77 
463.02 

60.44 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

ETHANOL 530.9 AUG15 

GROSS 
AMOUNT 

8/26/2015 001 532.21 
DESCRIPTION 

DIESEL· 308 . 5 GALS AUG15 

9/03/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

8/17/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

BARTLETT, J AUG 
KRUEGER, R AUG 
MELOW, s AUG 
OVERAITIS, J AUG 
SCHOLTEN , J AUG 
STANISLAWSKI, T 
THOMAS, J AUG 

B/26/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 

558.00 

362.00 

AUG 

1,836.47 

SEP. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 11 

NET DUE DATE / 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

532.21 9/09 / 2015 

558.00 9/09/2015 

362.00 9/09/2015 

1 ,836.47 9/09/2015 
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9/09/15 13 . 58.13 
Charter Township of Plymouth 

VENDOR ENTRY 
NO. DATE NAME 

220290 9/09/2015 VERIZON WIRELESS 

101·336 · 853 . 000 
101 · 691-853.000 
592·172 - 853.000 

ACCOUNT 
592 - 172 - 853.000 
101·201 · 853.000 
101 - 325-853.000 
101·336 - 853.000 
101 · 691 · 853.000 
805·805·970.005 
226 · 226-853.000 

131019 9/09/2015 MICH, STATE OF, MDEQ 
ACCOUNT 

592·172·963.000 

130210 9/09/2015 MATTIOLI CEMENT CO 

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 

ACCOUNT 
805·805 - 970.260 

36 INVOICES 

INVOICE EDIT LISTING GGLENNIE 
BATCH - SEP0315 

INVOICE 
NUMBER 

300.37 
116. 53 
186.67 

9751468473 
AMOUNT 
386.68 

.83 
52.42 
80 .14 
40.01 
29.65 
51.88 

SEP 2015 
AMOUNT 
350.00 

DRAW #4 
AMOUNT 

6,945.31 

INVOICE 
DATE 

BANK 
CODE 

AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG 15 CELL PHONE 
AUG 15 CELL PHONE 

8 / 28/2015 001 
DESCRIPTION 

AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CEL L PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 
AUG15 CELL PHONE 

GROSS 
AMO UNT 

641.61 

9 / 09 / 2015 001 350.00 
DESCRIPTION 

WASTEWATER CERTIFICAT ION 

8/04/ 2015 001 6,945.31 
DESCRIPTION 

WOODLOR E SOUTH DRAW #4 

180,178.50 

SE P. 
CHECK 

N 

N 

N 

CD0130 
PAGE 12 

NET DUE DATE/ 
AMOUNT CHK. DATE 

641 . 61 9 / 09 / 2015 

350.00 9 / 09 / 2 0 15 

6 , 945 . 3 1 9 / 09 / 2 015 

180,178.50 
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